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HSBC Global Asset Management Shariah Committee

The Management Company has entered into a Shariah Compliance Advisory Agreement with HSBC
Saudi Arabia Limited under which the latter agrees to appoint the members of the HSBC Global Asset
Management Shariah Committee (the “Shariah Committee"). The members of the Shariah Committee are

Dr. Nizam Yaquby - resident in Bahrain and
Dr. Mohamed Ali Elgari - resident in Saudi Arabia
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Directors’ Report

The board of directors of the Company (each a “Director”, together the “Directors” or the “Board”) submit
their annual report together with the audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2022 (the “Financial Statements”).

Company information

HSBC ETFs PLC (the “Company”) was incorporated as an open-ended investment company with variable
capital on 27 February 2009 with registration number 467896. The Company is authorised by the Central
Bank of Ireland (the “Central Bank”) as an Undertaking for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities
(“UCITS”) pursuant to the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable
Securities) Regulations, 2011 as amended (the “2011 UCITS Regulations”) and is also subject to the Central
Bank (Supervision and Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48 (1)) (Undertakings for Collective Investment In
Transferable Securities) Regulations 2019 (the “Central Bank UCITS Regulations”), (together “the UCITS
Regulations”).

The Company is structured as an umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds and comprises
separate sub-funds, in that the Directors may from time to time, with the prior approval of the Central Bank,
issue different series of shares representing separate portfolios of assets. The assets of each sub-fund will
be invested in accordance with the investment objective and policies applicable to such sub-fund as
disclosed in the prospectus of the Company (the “Prospectus”) and the relevant sub-fund’s supplement (the
“Supplement”).

As at 31 December 2022, the Company has 50 sub-funds in operation (31 December 2021: 41). The
Company has 5 inactive sub-funds. HSBC ECONOMIC SCALE WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS ETF was
closed on 18 September 2020 and was delisted from London Stock Exchange on 21 September 2020.
HSBC MSCI RUSSIA CAPPED UCITS ETF was suspended from trading from 2 March 2022 as a result of
Russia’s invasion of Ukraine. The sub-fund was closed on 24 March 2023 and was delisted from London
Stock Exchange on 29 March 2023. HSBC MSCI SOUTH AFRICA CAPPED UCITS ETF was closed on 21
April 2022 and was delisted from London Stock Exchange on 26 April 2022. HSBC MSCI EM FAR EAST
UCITS ETF was closed on 6 July 2022 and was delisted from London Stock Exchange on 11 July 2022.
HSBC MSCI MALAYSIA UCITS ETF was closed on 7 December 2022 and was delisted from London Stock
Exchange on 12 December 2022.

The authorisation of HSBC MSCI SAUDI ARABIA 20/35 CAPPED UCITS ETF was revoked by the Central
Bank on 8 December 2021, and as such is not an inactive sub-fund.

Each of the sub-funds, through the listing of their shares on one or more stock exchanges, is an exchange
traded fund (“ETF”).

The Financial Statements are published on the Company’s website. The Directors, together with the

Management Company, are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the Company’s website.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Corporate Governance Statement

The Board is committed to maintaining the highest standards of corporate governance and is accountable
to shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) for the governance of the Company’s affairs.

The Company’s corporate governance practices comply with the following:

i) The European Communities (Directive 2006/43/EC) Regulations (CA 2014 S.1373) which requires
the inclusion of a corporate governance statement in the Directors’ Report;

i)  The Companies Act 2014;

iii) The Articles of Association of the Company which are available for inspection at the registered office
of the Company and at the Companies Registration Office in Ireland;

iv) The UCITS Regulations;

v)  The Financial Conduct Authority Listing Rules (the “FCA Listing Rules”) as they apply to overseas
open-ended investment funds under Chapter 16A of the FCA Listing Rules; and

vi)  The Irish Funds’ Corporate Governance Code for Collective Investment Schemes and Management
Companies (December 2011) (the “IF Code”).

The Company is not subject to the European Communities (Takeover Bids (Directive 2004/25/EC))
Regulations 2006.

Compliance with the IF Code

The Directors have adopted the IF Code with effect from 31 December 2012. The Directors have reviewed
and assessed the measures included in the IF Code and consider the corporate governance practices and
procedures since the adoption of the IF Code as consistent therewith. The Board considers that the
Company has complied with the IF Code throughout this accounting year and that it complies with the
various other corporate governance requirements prescribed by the legislation noted above.

Internal controls and risk management systems

The Directors in conjunction with the Management Company are responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control and risk management systems of the Company in relation to the
financial reporting process. Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of error or
fraud in achieving the Company’s financial reporting objectives and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Directors in conjunction with the Management Company have procedures in place designed to ensure
that all relevant accounting records are properly maintained and are readily available, including production
of annual and interim financial statements. The annual and interim financial statements of the Company are
required to be approved by the Directors and filed with the Central Bank. The annual financial statements
are required to be audited by an independent auditor who reports annually to the Board of Directors on their
findings. The Directors evaluate and discuss significant accounting and reporting issues as the need arises.

18



Directors’ Report (continued)

Internal controls and risk management systems (continued)

The Management Company has established processes regarding internal control and risk management
systems designed to ensure their effective oversight of the financial reporting process. These include
appointing the Administrator to maintain adequate accounting records of the Company independently of
the Investment Manager and the Depositary. The Administrator is authorised and regulated by the Central
Bank and complies with the rules imposed by the Central Bank.

The Management Company also periodically reviews the Administrator’s financial accounting and reporting
routines along with the independent auditor's performance, qualifications and independence. The
Administrator has operating responsibility in respect of its internal controls in relation to the financial
reporting process and the Administrator’s report to the Directors.

The Directors receive regular presentations and review reports from the Management Company, the
Depositary, the Investment Manager and the Administrator. The Directors also have an annual process to
consider and address any shortcomings identified and measures recommended by the independent auditor.

Dealings with Shareholders

The Shareholders invest in sub-funds to gain exposure to the expertise of the Investment Manager and
investment strategies. The Company has appointed the Distributor who is tasked with actively managing
the relationship between the Company and Shareholders. The Distributor provides the Board with quarterly
updates which form the primary information source for the Directors to understand the views of major
Shareholders. A senior representative of the Distributor attends each Board meeting and presents a report
providing the Directors with additional information on the ongoing Shareholder relationships.

The Company also communicates with Shareholders through the annual and interim Financial Statements
which aim to provide Shareholders with a full understanding of the Company’s activities and its results.
Additional information is also available on the Company’s website at www.etf.hsbc.com.

The convening and conduct of Shareholders’ meetings are governed by the Articles of Association of the
Company and the Companies Act 2014, as amended (the “Companies Act”). Although the Directors may
convene an extraordinary general meeting of the Company at any time, the Directors must convene an
annual general meeting of the Company within fifteen months of the date of the previous annual general
meeting. Extraordinary general meetings of the Company may also be convened by holders of Subscriber
Shares. Not less than twenty-one clear days’ notice of every annual general meeting and any meeting
convened for the passing of a special resolution must be given to Shareholders.

One Shareholder present either in person or by proxy constitutes a quorum at a general meeting. Subject
to any special rights or restrictions for the time being attached to any series or class of shares of the
Company, each Shareholder is entitled to such number of votes as is produced by dividing the aggregate
net asset value of that Shareholder’s holding (expressed or converted into US Dollars and calculated as
of the relevant record date) by one. The shareholders of the Subscriber Shares and the shareholders of
the Capitalisation Shares have one vote for each Subscriber Share or Capitalisation Share held
respectively, as defined in the Company’s Articles of Association.

At any general meeting, a resolution put to the vote of the meeting will be decided on a poll. On a poll,
every member in person or by proxy has such number of votes as is calculated in accordance with the
methodology set out above.

The rights attached to any class of shares in the capital of the Company may only (unless otherwise provided
by the terms of the issue of the shares of that class) be varied or abrogated with the consent in writing of
the holders of three-fourths of the issued shares of that class, or with the sanction of a resolution passed
by a majority of three-quarters of the votes cast by the members of that class who attend at a separate
general meeting of the holders of the shares of the relevant class.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Composition and operation of the Board of Directors

Unless otherwise determined by an ordinary resolution of the Company in a general meeting, the number
of Directors shall not be less than two. Currently the Board of Directors is composed of six Directors, being
those listed in General Information section of these Financial Statements. The Directors meet at least
quarterly. The Board has also established an audit committee comprising of three Directors.

The business of the Company is managed by the Directors, who exercise all such powers of the Company
as are, by the Companies Act or by the Articles of Association of the Company, required to be exercised by
the Company in a general meeting. A Director may, and the Secretary of the Company on the requisition of
a Director will, at any time summon a meeting of the Directors. Questions arising at any meeting of the
Directors are determined by a majority of votes. In the case of an equality of votes, the Chairperson of the
Board has a second or casting vote. The quorum necessary for the transaction of business at a meeting of
the Directors is two.

The principal responsibility of the Directors is oversight of the business affairs of the Company and consistent
with these oversight responsibiliies the Directors have delegated management functions and
responsibilities to duly qualified service providers. Such service providers are subject to ongoing oversight
by the Directors.

Accounting Records

The Directors believe that they have complied with the requirements of the Companies Act with regard to
accounting records by engaging the services of the Administrator, who employs personnel with appropriate
expertise and adequate resources, appropriate systems and procedures to provide the Company’s finance
function. The accounting records are retained at the office of the Administrator at 1 Grand Canal Square,
Grand Canal Harbour, Dublin 2, Ireland.

Directors and secretary

The names of the persons who were Directors at any time during the financial year ended 31 December
2022 are set out in General Information section of these Financial Statements. All the Directors serve in a
non-executive capacity. Goodbody Secretarial Limited held the office of secretary (the “Secretary”)
throughout the financial year.

Directors’ and Secretary’s interests

None of the Directors nor the Secretary or their respective families held any interest, beneficial or otherwise,
in the share capital of the Company during or at the end of the financial year.

The Board of Directors is not aware of any contracts or arrangements of any significance in relation to the
business of the Company in which the Directors had any interest at any time during the year ended 31
December 2022, other than those described in Note 11, ‘Related parties’.

Employees

The governance framework of the Company reflects the fact that, as a collective investment scheme, it has
no employees and outsources investment management and administration. The Management Company is
responsible on a day-to-day basis, under the supervision of the Directors, for providing administration,
marketing, investment management and advice services in respect of all sub-funds. The Management
Company employs a number of staff across different categories of staff including senior management to
oversee their responsibilities.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Review of performance, risks, uncertainties and future developments

The Company's overall risk management policy focuses on the agreed risk management mechanisms and
techniques that are used by the Investment Manager to measure, manage and report the relevant risks
which the sub-funds of the Company are or might be exposed to. The main risks arising from investment in
the Company include, but are not limited to, the risks referred to in Note 4 of these Financial Statements.
Geopolitical risks (e.g Russia’s invasion of Ukraine, impact of pandemics, withdrawal of the UK from the
EU) are outlined below.

The Company’s business activities and performance during the year together with the factors likely to affect
its future development, are set out in the Investment Manager’s Report. The performance review within the
Investment Manager’s Report encompasses tracking error and tracking difference disclosures which are
key metrics as to how well the sub-funds of the Company have performed and how they have been managed
against their benchmark indices.

The Company will continue its investment objective as set out in each relevant sub-fund’s Supplement.
Key performance indicators

The key performance indicators monitored for each sub-fund include the performance and the financial
position of the sub-funds. The financial position of the Company is described in the Financial Statements
on page 223.

Segregated liability

The Company has segregated liability between its sub-funds and accordingly any liability incurred on behalf
of or attributable to any sub-fund shall be discharged solely out of the assets of that sub-fund. As of the date
of the financial year end the Directors are not aware of any unrecognised existing or contingent liability of
any sub-fund of the Company.

Climate Change Risks

The Directors acknowledge that climate change is an emerging risk impacting the global economy and will
continue to be of interest to all stakeholders. However, having considered such factors relating to climate
change, the Directors have determined that there are no direct or immediate impacts of climate change on
the business operations of the Company. Given this, there is no basis on which to provide extended
information of analysis relating to climate change risks on the business operations of the Company.
Furthermore, the Directors conclude that at present there is no material impact to the fair value of assets
and liabilities of the Company. The Directors recognise that governmental and societal responses to climate
change risks are still developing and the future impact cannot be predicted. Therefore, the future fair value
of assets and liabilities may fluctuate as the market responds to climate change policies, physical events
and changes in societal behaviours.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Significant events during the financial year

1.

10.

11.

Effective 1 January 2022, facilities for investors for dealing in shares of the sub-funds related to
Article 92 (b-e) of the Directive 2009/65/EC (as amended by the Directive (EU) 2019/1160), are
available from HSBC Investment Funds (Luxembourg) S.A., 16, Boulevard d’Avranches, L-1160
Luxembourg via https://eifs.lu/hsbc-asset-management.

HSBC BLOOMBERG GLOBAL SUSTAINABLE HIGH YIELD CORPORATE BOND UCITS ETF
was authorised by the Central Bank on 11 January 2022.

HSBC BLOOMBERG GLOBAL SUSTAINABLE AGGREGATE 1-3 YEAR BOND UCITS ETF was
launched on 13 January 2022. The sub-fund was listed on London Stock Exchange on 14 January
2022.

HSBC NASDAQ GLOBAL SEMICONDUCTOR UCITS ETF was launched on 25 January 2022.
The sub-fund was listed on London Stock Exchange on 26 January 2022.

The TER of the HSBC FTSE EPRA/NAREIT DEVELOPED UCITS ETF was reduced from 0.40%
to 0.24% on 1 March 2022.

HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF was launched on 7
April 2022. The sub-fund was listed on London Stock Exchange on 8 April 2022.

HSBC MSCI AC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF was launched
on 11 April 2022. The sub-fund was listed on London Stock Exchange on 12 April 2022.

HSBC EUROPE EX UK SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF was launched on 21 April 2022. The
sub-fund was listed on London Stock Exchange on 22 April 2022.

HSBC MSCI SOUTH AFRICA CAPPED UCITS ETF was closed on 21 April 2022.

An updated Prospectus and Supplements for the sub-funds were issued on 26 May 2022. The
major changes are listed as follows:

- introduction of multiple new share classes;

- update to the risk factors;

- change to the subscription settlement to certain sub-funds as listed below;

- removal of the Plan d'Epargne en Actions Eligibility disclosure for HSBC FTSE 100 UCITS ETF,
HSBC FTSE 250 UCITS ETF and HSBC MSCI EUROPE UCITS ETF;

- HSBC MSCI Japan Climate Paris Aligned UCITS ETF added to the qualifying funds under the
German Investment Tax Act, new investment fund tax regime effective as from 8 November 2018;
- TER reduction for HSBC FTSE EPRA/NAREIT DEVELOPED UCITS ETF.

Subscription settlement in HSBC FTSE EPRA/NAREIT DEVELOPED UCITS ETF, HSBC MSCI
JAPAN UCITS ETF, HSBC MSCI PACIFIC EX JAPAN UCITS ETF and HSBC MSCI WORLD
UCITS ETF was changed from 2 business days from the dealing day to 3 business days from the
dealing day on 26 May 2022.
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Significant events during the financial year (continued)

12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

24,

25,

26.

27.

HSBC MSCI EM FAR EAST UCITS ETF was closed on 6 July 2022 and delisted from London
Stock Exchange on 11 July 2022.

HSBC WORLD ESG BIODIVERSITY SCREENED EQUITY UCITS ETF was authorised by the
Central Bank on 07 July 2022 and launched on 10 August 2022. The sub-fund was listed on
London Stock Exchange on 11 August 2022.

HSBC MSCI WORLD VALUE ESG UCITS ETF was authorised by the Central Bank on 19 August
2022 and launched on 18 October 2022. The sub-fund was listed on London Stock Exchange on
19 October 2022.

HSBC MSCI WORLD SMALL CAP ESG UCITS ETF was authorised by the Central Bank on 19
August 2022 and launched on 20 October 2022. The sub-fund was listed on London Stock
Exchange on 21 October 2022.

HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS SMALL CAP ESG UCITS ETF was authorised by the Central
Bank on 19 August 2022 and launched on 3 November 2022. The sub-fund was listed on London
Stock Exchange on 4 November 2022.

HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS VALUE ESG UCITS ETF was authorised by the Central Bank
on 19 August 2022 and launched on 6 December 2022. The sub-fund was listed on London Stock
Exchange on 8 December 2022.

Effective 1 September 2022, the registered address of the Company temporarily changed to 3
Dublin Landings, North Wall Quay, Dublin 1, Ireland.

HSBC MSCI AC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF and HSBC MSCI
EMERGING MARKETS ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF were authorised by the Central Bank on 6
September 2022.

HSBC MSCI USA ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF was authorised by the Central Bank on 6 September
2022 and launched on 17 November 2022. The sub-fund was listed on London Stock Exchange on
18 November 2022.

HSBC MSCI EUROPE ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF was authorised by the Central Bank on 6
September 2022 and launched on 5 December 2022. The sub-fund was listed on London Stock
Exchange on 6 December 2022.

HSBC MSCI WORLD ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF was authorised by the Central Bank on 6
September 2022 and launched on 30 November 2022. The sub-fund was listed on London Stock
Exchange on 1 December 2022.

Distribution policy of HSBC EUROPE EX UK SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF sub-fund’s EUR
share class changed from accumulating to distributing, with effect from 28 October 2022.

Effective 1 November 2022, the registered address of the Management Company changed to 18
Boulevard de Kockelscheuer, L-1821, Luxembourg.

The Prospectus of the Company was amended on 1 December 2022 to include disclosures required
under Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2022/1288 of 6 April 2022 supplementing
Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 of the European Parliament and of the Council.

HSBC MSCI MALAYSIA UCITS ETF was closed on 7 December 2022 and delisted from London
Stock Exchange on 12 December 2022.

Updated Supplements for HSBC BLOOMBERG EUR SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND
UCITS ETF, HSBC BLOOMBERG GLOBAL SUSTAINABLE AGGREGATE 1-3 YEAR BOND
UCITS ETF and HSBC BLOOMBERG USD SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND UCITS ETF
were issued on 18 November 2022 to reflect a minor change to the index description.
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Significant events during the financial year (continued)

28. The following sub-funds were re-categorised under the Sustainable Finance Disclosures
Regulation (“SFDR”) from Article 9 funds to Article 8 funds effective from 1 December 2022:

-HSBC MSCI EUROPE CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF

-HSBC MSCI JAPAN CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF

-HSBC MSCI USA CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF

-HSBC MSCI WORLD CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF

-HSBC MSCI AC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF
-HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF

29. Several sub-funds launched new share classes. The newly launched share classes are listed as
follows:

- HSBC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF USD(DIST) Class

- HSBC BLOOMBERG GLOBAL SUSTAINABLE AGGREGATE 1-3 YEAR BOND UCITS ETF
USD(ACC) Class

- HSBC DEVELOPED WORLD SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF USD(DIST) Class

- HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF USD(DIST) Class

- HSBC EURO STOXX 50 UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) Class

- HSBC EUROPE EX UK SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF EUR(DIST) Class

- HSBC EUROPE SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF EUR(DIST) Class

- HSBC FTSE EPRA/NAREIT DEVELOPED UCITS ETF USD(ACC) Class

- HSBC JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF USD(DIST) Class

- HSBC MSCI AC FAR EAST EX JAPAN UCITS ETF USD(DIST) Class

- HSBC MSCI AC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF
USD(ACC) Class

- HSBC MSCI CHINA A UCITS ETF USD(ACC) Class

- HSBC MSCI CHINA UCITS ETF USD(ACC) Class

- HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF USD(ACC) Class

- HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS SMALL CAP ESG UCITS ETF USD(ACC) Class

- HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF USD (ACC) Class

- HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS VALUE ESG UCITS ETF USD(ACC) Class

- HSBC MSCI EUROPE ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF EUR(ACC) Class

- HSBC MSCI EUROPE UCITS ETF EUR(ACC) Class

- HSBC MSCI JAPAN UCITS ETF USD(ACC) Class

- HSBC MSCI PACIFIC EX JAPAN UCITS ETF USD(ACC) Class

- HSBC MSCI USA CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF USD(DIST) Class

- HSBC MSCI USA ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF USD(ACC) Class

- HSBC MSCI WORLD ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF USD(ACC) Class

- HSBC MSCI WORLD SMALL CAP ESG UCITS ETF USD(ACC) Class

- HSBC MSCI WORLD UCITS ETF EUR HEDGED (ACC) Class

- HSBC MSCI WORLD UCITS ETF USD (ACC) Class

- HSBC MSCI WORLD VALUE ESG UCITS ETF USD(ACC) Class

- HSBC MULTI FACTOR WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS ETF USD(ACC) Class

- HSBC NASDAQ GLOBAL SEMICONDUCTOR UCITS ETF USD(ACC) Class

- HSBC S&P 500 UCITS ETF USD (ACC) Class

- HSBC UK SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF GBP(DIST) Class

- HSBC USA SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF USD(DIST) Class

- HSBC WORLD ESG BIODIVERSITY SCREENED EQUITY UCITS ETF USD(ACC) Class
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Significant events during the financial year (continued)
Impact of pandemics

Pandemics can impact global markets in several ways, including: (i) adding ongoing uncertainty to global
markets as there is no clarity as to how long a pandemic will continue; (ii) impeding regular business
operations across many different businesses, including manufacturers and service providers; and (iii)
slowing down or stopping international, national, and local travel. By way of an example, all of these factors
and more have been seen in recent years with the global outbreak of the Coronavirus (“COVID-19").
Notwithstanding that COVID-19 continues, the initial impact on global markets on certain industries has
started to lessen however, the financial impact of the outbreak to date, and whether or not any new variant
will give rise to further challenges, cannot be estimated reliably. The Board continues to monitor the situation
and receives regular updates from the Management Company. As at 31 December 2022, to our knowledge,
the impact of COVID-19 has not affected the Investment Manager’s ability to execute the investment
strategy of the sub-funds, nor has there been interruption to key service providers engaged by the Company.

Russia’s invasion of Ukraine

Russia’s invasion of Ukraine has had, and could continue to have, severe adverse effects on regional and
global economic markets for securities and commodities. Following Russia’s actions, various governments
have issued broad-ranging economic sanctions against Russia, including, among other actions;

e a prohibition on doing business with certain Russian companies, large financial institutions,
officials and oligarchs;

e the removal by certain countries and the European Union of selected Russian banks from
the Society for Worldwide Interbank Financial Telecommunications (“SWIFT”), the electronic
banking network that connects banks globally; and

e restrictive measures to prevent the Russian Central Bank from undermining the impact of
the sanctions.

The current events, including sanctions and the potential for future sanctions, including any which include
(but are not limited to) those impacting Russia’s energy sector, and other actions, and Russia’s retaliatory
responses to those sanctions and actions, may continue to adversely impact the Russian economy. This,
in turn, may result in the further decline of the value and liquidity of Russian securities, a continued
weakening of the rouble and continued exchange closures, and may have other adverse consequences
on the Russian economy that could impact the value of Russian investments and impair the ability of the
sub-funds to buy, sell, receive or deliver those securities. Moreover, these events have, and could continue
to have, an adverse effect on global markets performance and liquidity, thereby negatively affecting the
value of the sub-funds’ investments beyond any direct exposure to Russian issuers.

They also give rise to material uncertainty and risk with respect to markets globally and the performance
of the sub-funds and their investments or operations could be negatively impacted. Investors should be
aware that the duration of the ongoing hostilities and the vast array of sanctions and related events cannot
be predicted.

HSBC MSCI RUSSIA CAPPED UCITS ETF was temporarily suspended from trading from 2 March 2022
following Russia’s invasion of Ukraine and closed on 24 March 2023 and was delisted from London Stock
Exchange on 29 March 2023. Shareholder notices were sent to the relevant Shareholders notifying them
of the closure.

Based on the unprecedented market circumstances, the Investment Manager’s Pricing and Valuation
Committee advised the Management Company to write down all Russian Ruble (RUB) denominated
Russian Government Bonds and any associated coupons to zero in HSBC BLOOMBERG GLOBAL
SUSTAINABLE AGGREGATE 1-3 YEAR BOND UCITS ETF on 2 March 2022 and all local RUB
denominated Russian equities to zero in HSBC EMERGING MARKETS SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS
ETF, HSBC MULTI FACTOR WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS ETF and HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS
UCITS ETF on 10 March 2022.
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Significant events during the financial year (continued)
Withdrawal of the UK from the EU

Following the end of the transition period all cross-border passporting rights to the UK for EU funds have
ceased however, the UK'’s introduction of a Temporary Marketing Permissions Regime enables all funds
that have registered into the regime to continue to be distributed in the UK and purchased by UK domiciled
investors. The UK Government has brought forward domestic legislation to streamline the process to allow
overseas (including EU) investment funds to be sold in the UK post-Brexit.

It is becoming increasingly clear that there will be more divergence between UK and EU regulations which
may limit the cross-border activities that can take place. As at the date of the Financial Statements, the sub-
funds continue to be recognised by the FCA and can be marketed to UK investors. The UK is continuing to
consider regulatory changes post-Brexit. The nature and extent of such changes still remains uncertain, but
may be significant.

There were no other significant events during the financial year.
Significant events since the financial year end

Significant events since the financial year end are disclosed in Note 18.
Connected Persons transactions

The Central Bank (Supervision and Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1)) (Undertakings for Collective
Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2019 require that any transaction carried out with the
Company by the Management Company or Depositary to the Company and the delegates or sub-delegates
of the Management Company or Depositary (excluding any non-group company sub-custodians appointed
by the Depositary) and any associated or group companies of the Management Company, Depositary,
delegate or sub-delegate (“Connected Persons”) must be conducted at arm’s length and must be in the
best interests of the Shareholders .

The board of directors of the Management Company is satisfied that there are arrangements, evidenced by
written procedures, in place to ensure that any transaction carried out with the Company by a Connected
Person is conducted at arm’s length; and in the best interests of the Shareholders.

The board of directors of the Management Company is satisfied that all transactions with a Connected
Person entered into during the year complied with the requirements that any transaction carried out with
the Company by a Connected Person is conducted at arm’s length; and in the best interests of the
Shareholders.

Auditor

KPMG Chartered Accountants were appointed as statutory auditor on 6 November 2015 and pursuant to
section 383 (2) will continue in office.

Directors’ compliance statement

The Directors, in accordance with Section 225 (2) of the Companies Act, acknowledge that they are
responsible for securing the Company's compliance with certain obligations specified in that section arising
from the Companies Act and Tax laws ("relevant obligations"). The Directors confirm that:

e a compliance policy document has been drawn up that sets out policies, that in our opinion are
appropriate to the Company, respecting compliance by the Company with its relevant obligations;

e appropriate arrangements or structures are in place that are, in our opinion, designed to secure
material compliance with the Company's relevant obligations; and

e areview has been conducted, during the financial year, of those arrangements and structures.
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Statement of relevant audit information

In discharging their responsibilities under Section 225 of the Companies Act, the Directors relied upon,
among other things, the services provided, advice and/or representations from third parties whom the
Directors believe have the requisite knowledge and experience in order to secure material compliance with
the Company’s relevant obligations.

The Directors believe that they have complied with the requirements of Section 330 of the Companies Act
as follows:

e So far as each person who is a Director at the date of approving this report is aware, there is no
relevant audit information, being information needed by the auditor in connection with preparing its
report, of which the auditors are unaware; and

¢ Having made enquiries of fellow Directors and the Company’s auditor, each Director has taken all
the steps that he/she is obliged to take as a Director in order to make himself/herself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of the information.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent Non-Executive Directors — Feargal Dempsey
as a chair of the Audit Committee, Eimear Cowhey and Peter Blessing.

Results and dividends

The results for the financial year are shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The Board of
Directors may declare at its discretion, dividends in respect of each distribution share class of each sub-
fund. Dividend distributions during the financial year are set out in Note 10 of these Financial Statements.

Going concern

Accounting standards require the Board of Directors to make an assessment of the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, taking into account all available information about the future, which is at least,
but is not limited to, twelve months from the date the accounts are approved. The Board’s going concern
assessment must be updated to consider all relevant information available up to the date of this assessment.

Having assessed the Company’s core activities, the financial position, the principal risks and the other
matters affecting the future performance of the Company included in connection with the Financial
Statements, the Directors consider it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Financial
Statements. The Directors have arrived at this opinion by considering, among other matters:

o the Company’ investments comprise readily realisable securities which can be expected to be sold
to meet funding requirements if necessary;

¢ the Company has no material borrowings;

e the Company is in a position to meet all current and future expenses. If any of the sub-funds’
expenses will exceed the TER in relation to operating the sub-funds, the Management Company
will cover any shortfall from its own assets; and

e the Investment Manager consolidated its ETF strategy in 2021 as a provider of sustainable,
thematic and Emerging Market strategies. The Investment Manager further invested in its ETF
infrastructure, including the ETF offering with product launches focused on these strategies both in
the equity and fixed income space.

Diversity report

The Board acknowledges the importance of diversity to enhance its operation. During the selection process
for new Directors, the Board is committed to selecting those with diversity of age, gender and educational
and professional background and candidates for appointment are selected based on these attributes. The
Board’s policy is that selection decisions are based on merit and objective criteria, that recruitment is fair
and non-discriminatory and within this context promote diversity of gender, social and ethnic backgrounds,
cognitive and personal strengths. The Board has not set specific targets in respect of diversity but
acknowledges its importance and currently has female representation of 33%, 3 different nationalities and
Directors with a wide variety of skills and experience.
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Diversity report (continued)

The objective of the Board Diversity and Inclusion Policy is to ensure diversity and inclusion is taken into
consideration in the succession planning, selection, nomination, operation and evaluation of the Board.

The Board notes the diversity and inclusion policy of HSBC Group (the “Group”), which is focused on
building a more diverse and inclusive workforce, regards diversity and inclusion as a critical component to
developing a sustainable and successful business within the Group and is informed by the Group's deep
roots in many geographical regions and its international approach. In particular, it is noted that the Group
policy is particularly focused on:

e improving the diversity of its workforce;
o fostering open, inclusive and, where appropriate, challenging discussion; and
e leveraging diversity of thought.

The Board is conscious of its regulatory obligations in relation to Board composition. In considering Board
diversity, the Board will also take into account the following non-exhaustive factors:

1. the obligation to have two Directors resident in Ireland on the Board,;

2. the obligation for the Company to comply with the Central Bank's Fitness and Probity Regime;

3. the Board's existing arrangements with current Directors;

4. the nature, scale and complexity of the Company and its activities;

5. the obligation to act in the best interests of investors, including in relation to costs; and

6. market sentiment, which may favour the capture of a diverse range of perspectives, insights and
challenge on a Board, so as to support good decision-making.

Taking into account the objectives of this Company’s policy and the factors listed above, new appointments
to the Board will be made on merit, taking account of the specific skills and experience, independence and
knowledge needed to ensure a rounded Board and the diversity benefits that each candidate can bring to
overall Board composition.

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and Financial Statements, in accordance
with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Financial Statements for each financial year. Under that law
the Directors have elected to prepare the Financial Statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU.

Under Company law the Directors must not approve the Financial Statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the Company and of its change
in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares for that financial year. In preparing
the Financial Statements, the Directors are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU;

assess the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern; and

. use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities (continued)

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and enable
them to ensure that the Financial Statements comply with the Companies Act, the European Communities
(Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011 and the Central
Bank (Supervision and Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1)) (Undertakings for Collective Investment in
Transferable Securities) Regulations 2019. They are responsible for such internal controls as they
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the Financial Statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company. In this regard they have entrusted the
assets of the Company to the Depositary for safe-keeping. They have general responsibility for taking
such steps as are reasonably open to them to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are also responsible for preparing a Directors’ report that complies with the requirements
of the Companies Act. The Companies Act require Directors to ensure that the annual report and Financial
Statements, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced, understandable and provide the information necessary to
assess the Company’s performance and strategy. The audit committee of the Board considers whether the
annual report and Financial Statements fulfill these requirements and advises the Board accordingly. As a
result, the Directors have concluded that the annual report and Financial Statements for the financial year
ended 31 December 2021, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and provide the
information necessary for Shareholders to assess the Company’s position and performance, business
model and strategy.

Signed on behalf of the Board

P Iicwiingir=tlip P Mikwligieet o
& ) ! P A .
AP U (i S SN st S
e AMeriieedd 40 - —c FATANS- dLLs
Eimear Cowhey Feargal Dempsey
Director Director

Date: 18 April 2023
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Market Commentary

Global equities had a challenging start to the year, as inflation, the resulting interest rate hikes and Russia’s
invasion of Ukraine weighed on investor sentiment. Government bond yields rose sharply while corporate
bonds underperformed, with spreads widening over the quarter. Commodities rallied strongly in the first
quarter, driven by energy prices, as investors grew concerned over supply issues, amongst other potential
impacts arising from the Russian invasion of Ukraine. This further exacerbated concerns over already
existing inflationary pressures going into 2022. Elsewhere, lockdowns in China, also weighed on investor
sentiment in the region.

Global equities continued to struggle in the second quarter of the year, as the impact of inflation and the
expectations of higher rates dampened consumer sentiment and economic activity across most regions.
Major central banks continued their hawkish rhetoric, with the US Federal Reserve (the “Fed”) and Bank of
England hiking rates on the back of record high inflation readings. Meanwhile, the European Central Bank
(the “ECB”) also signalled its intentions to increase rates and end its asset purchase programme. In the
fixed income world, government bond yields increased. Emerging market bonds were particularly hit as a
strengthening US dollar also created additional headwinds late in the period. Corporate bonds were down,
with spreads broadly widening. Commodities were mixed, with energy leading the way for the second
consecutive quarter, while other major components fell.

Global equities showed signs of recovery early in the third quarter but ended the quarter in negative territory.
With the aim of curbing still high inflation, most major central banks continued to hike interest rates. Investor
sentiment was further dampened on the back of a possible recession as global growth showed signs of a
slowdown, coupled with continued geopolitical uncertainties, with the Russia-Ukraine crisis seeing no sight
of resolution. On the fixed income side, both government and corporate bonds were down over the quarter.
UK fixed income markets were particularly volatile as the newly elected prime minister released a mini
budget which was received poorly by the markets. Additionally, Sterling also fell sharply. Commaodities
moved lower, driven by weakness in energy and industrial and precious metals.

Equities recovered in the fourth quarter as inflation and economic activity across major economies showed
signs of cooling and investors expected central banks to slow down their pace of policy tightening. Both the
ECB and Fed pared down their rate hikes in December and indicated that policy would continue to tighten
given the economic backdrop. Investor sentiment was buoyed by China’s relaxation of COVID-19 policies
and support package announced for its struggling real estate sector. In the fixed income world, yields were
broadly mixed through the quarter, but witnessed some easing early on in the period, while increasing in
December as investors digested relatively softer inflation data. Corporate bonds saw positive returns and
tighter spreads, as investors priced in a more moderate pace of rate hikes on the back of slowing inflation.
UK Gilts and corporate bonds were up over the quarter, as investor sentiment recovered from the turbulence
caused by former prime minister Liz Truss’s ‘mini budget’. Elsewhere, the Bank of Japan surprised markets
by widening its yield curve control band by 25 basis points in its meeting in December, leaving markets
uncertain about the future of its ultra-loose monetary policy. Commodities were up in the fourth quarter,
driven by higher prices, while the US dollar weakened.

30



Investment Manager’s Report (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022

Market Commentary (continued)

Figure 1: Asset class performance
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Source: Bloomberg, HSBC Global Asset Management. Data as of December 2022 in USD, total return,
month-to-date terms. Past performance is not a guarantee of future performance.
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Tracking Error

A realised tracking error is an annualised standard deviation of the difference in daily returns between a
sub-fund and its benchmark index. The tracking error shows the consistency of returns relative to the
benchmark index over a defined financial period of time.

An anticipated tracking error is based on the expected volatility of differences between the returns of a sub-
fund and the returns of its benchmark index.

For physically replicating sub-funds, the investment management approach is to buy a portfolio of securities
that as far as practicable consist of the securities that make up the benchmark index, in similar proportion
to the weights presented in the benchmark index.

For non-replicating sub-funds, the investment management approach aims to match the main risk
characteristics of the benchmark index by investing in a portfolio that is primarily made up of securities that
represent the benchmark index. The aim is to generate a return which is as close as practicable to the total
return of the index net of transaction costs and gross of fees and other costs.

The primary drivers represent where the impact makes a material difference to the sub-fund’s performance
to deviate from the underlying index. The primary drivers impacting tracking difference include withholding
tax, accrued capital gains tax, securities lending, transaction costs from rebalancing, holding a proxy future,
as a result of HSBC Group policy to exclude banned weapon stocks, sampling techniques and holding ADR
and GDRs. These impacts can be either positive or negative depending on the underlying circumstances.

The table below and the relevant footnotes indicate the primary drivers impacting tracking difference gross
of the total expense ratio and where realised tracking difference is greater than the anticipated tracking
error.
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Sub-Fund name Index drivers

HSBC ASIA PACIFIC

EX JAPAN FTSE Asia Pacific ex Japan

SUSTAINABLE ESG Low Carbon Select

EQUITY UCITS ETF | Index (16.04) | (15.83) | (15.70) | 0.25 (0.14) ® [ 0.20 | 0.22

HSBC BLOOMBERG

EUR SUSTAINABLE | Bloomberg Barclays MSCI

CORPORATE BOND | Euro Corporate SRI Carbon

UCITS ETF ESG Weighted (13.78) | (13.62) | (13.47) | 0.18 (0.15) ° 0.55 | 0.16

HSBC BLOOMBERG

GLOBAL

SUSTAINABLE

AGGREGATE 1-3 Bloomberg MSCI Global

YEAR BOND UCITS | Aggregate 1-3 SRI Carbon

ETF* ESG-Weighted Index (8.09) (7.93) (7.91) | 0.18 (0.02) ° 0.40 | 0.05

HSBC BLOOMBERG

USD SUSTAINABLE | Bloomberg Barclays MSCI

CORPORATE BOND | US Corporate SRI Carbon

UCITS ETF ESG Weighted (15.81) | (15.66) | (15.65) | 0.18 (0.01) ° 0.55| 0.19

HSBC DEVELOPED

WORLD

SUSTAINABLE FTSE Developed ESG Low

EQUITY UCITS ETF | Carbon Select Index (17.17) | (17.02) | (17.14) | 0.18 0.11 [ [ 0.20 | 0.06

*The sub-fund was launched on 13 January 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 14 January 2022.

Note

(1) sub-funds with less than 12 months performance are reported since inception.

(2) sub-funds with less than 3 year performance are reported since inception.
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Sub-Fund name Index L — L — = = € drivers

HSBC EMERGING

MARKET

SUSTAINABLE FTSE Emerging ESG Low

EQUITY UCITS ETF | Carbon Select Index (18.23) | (18.08) | (17.98) | 0.18 | (0.10) ° ° ° 0.20 | 0.29

HSBC EURO STOXX

50 UCITS ETF EURO STOXX 50® Index (9.01) (8.97) (9.49) | 0.05 0.52 [ 0.20 | 0.22

HSBC EUROPE EX FTSE Developed Europe

UK SUSTAINABLE ex UK ESG Low Carbon

EQUITY UCITS ETF* | Emissions Select Index (3.62) (3.52) (3.79) | 0.15 0.27 [J 0.10 | 0.22

HSBC EUROPE FTSE Developed Europe

SUSTAINABLE ESG Low Carbon Select

EQUITY UCITS ETF | index (11.59) | (11.45) | (11.70) | 0.15 0.25 ° ° 0.20 | 0.14

HSBC FTSE 100

UCITS ETF FTSE 100® Index 4.62 4.69 4.70 | 0.07 (0.01) [J 0.10 | 0.07

HSBC FTSE 250

UCITS ETF FTSE 250® Index (17.74) | (17.46) | (17.39) | 0.35 | (0.06) ° 0.10 | 0.05

HSBC FTSE

EPRA/NAREIT

DEVELOPED UCITS FTSE EPRA/NAREIT

ETF Developed Index (25.08) | (24.78) | (25.09) | 0.24 0.31 ° 0.20 | 0.12

HSBC HANG SENG HANG SENG TECH INDEX

TECH UCITS ETF NET (26.98) | (26.62) | (26.67) | 0.50 0.05 (] 0.20 | 0.05

*The sub-fund was launched on 21 April 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 22 April 2022,
Note

(1) sub-funds with less than 12 months performance are reported since inception.
(2) sub-funds with less than 3 year performance are reported since inception.
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Sub-Fund name Index L — L — = = € drivers
HSBC JAPAN
SUSTAINABLE FTSE Japan ESG Low
EQUITY UCITS ETF | Carbon Select Index (15.24) | (15.09) | (15.11) | 0.18 0.02 ° 0.10 | 0.06
HSBC MSCI AC
ASIA PACIFIC EX
JAPAN CLIMATE MSCI AC Asia Pacific ex
PARIS ALIGNED Japan Climate Paris
UCITS ETF* Aligned Index (11.05) | (10.89) | (10.91) | 0.25 0.02 ° 0.20 | 0.14
HSBC MSCI AC FAR
EAST EX JAPAN MSCI AC Far East ex
UCITS ETF Japan Index (21.84) | (21.49) | (21.57) | 0.45 0.08 ° 0.40 | 0.24
HSBC MSCI BRAZIL
UCITS ETF MSCI Brazil Index 12.25 12.81 14.15 | 0.50 (1.34) [J ® 0.20 | 0.33 A
HSBC MSCI
CANADA UCITS ETF | MSCI Canada Index (13.13) | (12.82) | (12.87) | 0.35 0.05 [ J 0.10 | 0.08
HSBC MSCI CHINA MSCI China A Inclusion Net
A UCITS ETF Total Return Index (25.91) | (25.69) | (25.90) | 0.30 | 0.21 0.20 | 0.20 [
HSBC MSCI CHINA
UCITS ETF MSCI China Index (22.07) | (21.83) | (21.93) | 0.30 0.10 ° 0.20 | 0.13

*The sub-fund was launched on 11 April 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 12 April 2022.

Note

(1) sub-funds with less than 12 months performance are reported since inception.

(2) sub-funds with less than 3 year performance are reported since inception.

A: Currency impact in 2022 due to large local stock dividend payouts and currency movement between BRL/USD in periods between ex-dividend date and pay date.
C: Futures impact +7 basis points, currency impact +6 basis points.
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HSBC MSCI EM

LATIN AMERICA MSCI EM Latin America

UCITS ETF Index 7.74 8.39 8.92 | 0.60 | (0.53) [ 0.20 | 0.24 A

HSBC MSCI

EMERGING

MARKETS CLIMATE

PARIS ALIGNED MSCI Emerging Markets

UCITS ETF* Climate Paris Aligned Index | (13.88) | (13.76) | (13.75) | 0.18 | (0.02) ° ° 0.20 | 0.28

HSBC MSCI

EMERGING

MARKETS SMALL 100% MSCI Emerging

CAP ESG UCITS Markets Small Cap SRI

ETF**(1) ESG Universal Select Index 6.50 6.56 6.63 | 0.35 | (0.07) [ 0.40 | 0.68 D

HSBC MSCI

EMERGING

MARKETS UCITS MSCI Emerging Markets

ETF Index (20.09) | (19.97) | (20.09) | 0.15 0.12 ° ° ° 0.40 | 0.25

HSBC MSCI

EUROPE CLIMATE

PARIS ALIGNED MSCI Europe Climate Paris

UCITS ETF Aligned Index (13.19) | (13.06) | (13.33) | 0.15 0.27 ° ° 0.10 | 0.12

*The sub-fund was launched on 7 April 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 8 April 2022.
**The sub-fund was launched on 3 November 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 4 November 2022.

Note

(1) sub-funds with less than 12 months performance are reported since inception.

(2) sub-funds with less than 3 year performance are reported since inception.

A: Currency impact in 2022 due to large local stock dividend payouts, and currency movement between BRL/USD in periods between ex-dividend date and pay date.
D: Inception ex post tracking error based on daily observations due to short period between launch and the end of December 2022.
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Sub-Fund name Index L L = 2 drivers
HSBC MSCI
EUROPE UCITS ETF | MSCI Europe Index 9.27) | (9.18) | (9.49) | 0.10 0.31 ° 0.10 | 0.11
HSBC MSCI
INDONESIA UCITS
ETFA MSCI Indonesia Index 3.05 3.57 3.59 | 0.50 (0.02) 0.20 | 0.08
HSBC MSCI JAPAN
CLIMATE PARIS
ALIGNED UCITS MSCI Japan Climate Paris
ETF Aligned Index (23.74) | (23.60) | (23.65) | 0.18 0.05 ° 0.10 | 0.07
HSBC MSCI JAPAN
UCITS ETF MSCI Japan Index (16.75) | (16.59) | (16.65) | 0.19 0.06 ° 0.10 | 0.05
HSBC MSCI KOREA
CAPPED UCITS ETF | MSCI Korea Index (29.27) | (28.91) | (29.05) | 0.50 0.14 [ J 0.20 | 0.16
HSBC MSCI
MEXICO CAPPED MSCI Mexico Capped
UCITS ETF Index (2.28) | (1.79) | (2.02) | 0.50 0.23 ° 0.10 | 0.08
HSBC MSCI
PACIFIC EX JAPAN MSCI Pacific ex Japan
UCITS ETFA Index (6.11) | (5.97) | (5.94) | 0.15| (0.02) 0.20 | 0.07
HSBC MSCI
TAIWAN CAPPED MSCI Taiwan Capped
UCITS ETF Index (29.29) | (28.93) | (28.99) | 0.50 0.06 ° 0.40 | 0.27
Note

(1) sub-funds with less than 12 months performance are reported since inception.

(2) sub-funds with less than 3 year performance are reported since inception.

"These funds have low tracking differential (circa 2bps) and are within the tracking error parameters.
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Sub-Fund name Index drivers
HSBC MSCI
TURKEY UCITS ETF | MSCI Turkey Index 89.13 90.07 90.42 | 0.50 (0.34) [ ] [ ] [ ) 0.10 | 0.19 B
HSBC MSCI USA
CLIMATE PARIS
ALIGNED UCITS MSCI USA Climate Paris
ETF Aligned Index (23.52) | (23.43) | (23.64) | 0.12 0.21 ° ° 0.10 | 0.04
HSBC MSCI USA 100% MSCI USA lIslamic
ISLAMIC ESG UCITS | ESG Universal Screened
ETF*(1) Index (2.28) | (2.25)| (2.27)| 0.30 0.02 ° 0.10 | 0.08 D
HSBC MSCI USA
UCITS ETF MSCI USA Index (19.88) | (19.64) | (19.85) | 0.30 0.20 ° ° 0.10 | 0.15
HSBC MSCI WORLD
CLIMATE PARIS
ALIGNED UCITS MSCI World Climate Paris
ETF Aligned Index (21.56) | (21.42) | (21.57) | 0.18 0.15 ° ° 0.20 | 0.05
HSBC MSCIWORLD | 100% MSCI World Islamic
ISLAMIC ESG UCITS | Universal ESG Screened
ETF*(1) Index (4.10) (4.07) (4.09) | 0.25 0.02 [ 0.20 | 0.06 D

*The sub-fund was launched on 17 November 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 18 November 2022.
**The sub-fund was launched on 30 November 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 1 December 2022.

Note

(1) sub-funds with less than 12 months performance are reported since inception.

(2) sub-funds with less than 3 year performance are reported since inception.

B: Security impact (-25 basis points) on 1 December 2022 due to intra-day trade on Hektas at re-balance date.

D: Inception ex post tracking error based on daily observations due to short period between launch and the end of December 2022.
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Sub-Fund name Index drivers
HSBC MSCIWORLD | 100% MSCI World Small
SMALL CAP ESG Cap SRI ESG Leaders
UCITS ETF*(1) Select Index 9.21 9.26 9.23 | 0.25 0.03 [ 0.20 | 0.03
HSBC MSCI WORLD
UCITS ETF MSCI World Index (18.11) | (17.99) | (18.14) | 0.15 0.15 [J ® 0.20 | 0.12
HSBC MSCI WORLD | 100% MSCI World Value
VALUE ESG UCITS SRI ESG Target Select
ETF**(1) Index 8.96 9.01 8.98 | 0.25 0.03 ® 0.20 | 0.01
HSBC MULTI
FACTOR
WORLDWIDE
EQUITY UCITS ETF MSCI AC World Net (17.61) | (17.40) | (18.36) | 0.25 0.96 240 | 2.18 E
HSBC NASDAQ
GLOBAL
SEMICONDUCTOR Nasdag Global
UCITS ETF***(1) Semiconductor Index (26.62) | (26.38) | (26.53) | 0.35 0.14 ° 0.20 | 0.18
HSBC S&P 500
UCITS ETF S&P 500® Index (18.51) | (18.44) | (18.51) | 0.09 0.07 ° ° 0.10 | 0.14

*The sub-fund was launched on 20 October 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 21 October 2022.
**The sub-fund was launched on 18 October 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 19 October 2022.

***The sub-fund was launched on 25 January 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 26 January 2022.

Note

(1) sub-funds with less than 12 months performance are reported since inception.

(2) sub-funds with less than 3 year performance are reported since inception.
E: Active Quant Management Style. Exposure to styles contributed significantly to performance and within alpha styles, our exposure to the value factor, which was well protected in the hawkish
and inflationary environment in 2022, contributed the most to performance. Our exposures to the industry momentum and quality factors also contributed to performance while our exposures to

size and low risk weighed on performance.
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Sub-Fund name Index L — L= = = 2 < k- @ e @] O« LW A grivers
HSBC UK
SUSTAINABLE FTSE UK ESG Low Carbon
EQUITY UCITS ETF | Select Index 657) | (6.46) | (6.61) | 012 | 0.6 o| o 0.20 | 0.29
HSBC USA
SUSTAINABLE FTSE USA ESG Low
EQUITY UCITS ETF | Carbon Select Index (17.33) | (17.23) | 17.48) | 0.12 | 0.25 ° ° 0.10 | 0.03
HSBC WORLD ESG
BIODIVERSITY 100% Euronext ESG
SCREENED EQUITY | Biodiversity Screened
UCITS ETF*(1) World USD Index (7.03) | 6.91) | (6.96) | 0.35| 0.05 ° 0.20 | 0.04

*The sub-fund was launched on 10 August 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 11 August 2022.
Note

(1) sub-funds with less than 12 months performance are reported since inception.

(2) sub-funds with less than 3 year performance are reported since inception.

Tracking differential and tracking error are different calculations. Tracking differential is simply the compound differential between the fund return and the index return. Ex-post tracking error is
calculated as the annualised standard deviation of the daily arithmetic difference between the sub-fund’s return and the index’ return.
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Performance Summary

Performance| Performance| Performance| Share Class| Performance
1 Jan- 31 1 Jan- 31 1 Jan- 31 Vs 1 Jan- 31
December December December Benchmark December
2022 2022 2022 (Since 2022
Share Class| Share Class| Share Class| inception to Tracking
Performance| Benchmark vs| 31 December Error
Share Class (Gross)** Performance| Benchmark 2022)| (Gross”/*)
Developed Countries
HSBC DEVELOPED WORLD SUSTAINABLE
EQUITY UCITS ETF USD(ACC) (17.02%) (17.14%) 0.11% 0.48% 0.13%
HSBC DEVELOPED WORLD SUSTAINABLE
EQUITY UCITS ETF USD (DIST)* N/A N/A N/A (0.02%) N/A
HSBC EURO STOXX 50 UCITS ETF EUR
(ACC)** N/A N/A N/A (0.16%) N/A
HSBC EURO STOXX 50 UCITS ETF EUR
(DIST) (8.97%) (9.49%) 0.52% 16.82% 0.14%
HSBC EUROPE EX UK SUSTAINABLE
EQUITY UCITS ETF EUR(DIST)*** N/A N/A N/A 0.27% 0.11%
HSBC EUROPE SUSTAINABLE EQUITY
UCITS ETF EUR(ACC) (11.45%) (11.70%) 0.25% 0.62% 0.18%
HSBC EUROPE SUSTAINABLE EQUITY
UCITS ETF EUR(DIST)**** N/A N/A N/A 0.02% N/A
HSBC FTSE 100 UCITS ETF GBP(DIST) 4.69% 4.70% (0.01%) (0.89%) 0.14%
HSBC FTSE 250 UCITS ETF GBP(DIST) (17.46%) (17.39%) (0.06%) (3.89%) 0.09%
HSBC FTSE EPRA/NAREIT DEVELOPED
UCITS ETF USD(ACC)***** N/A N/A N/A (0.10%) N/A
HSBC FTSE EPRA/NAREIT DEVELOPED
UCITS ETF USD(DIST) (24.78%) (25.09%) 0.31% 7.22% 0.16%
HSBC JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY
UCITS ETF USD(ACC) (15.08%) (15.11%) 0.02% 0.02% 0.08%
HSBC JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY
UCITS ETF USD(DIST)**** N/A N/A N/A 0.00% N/A
HSBC MSCI CANADA UCITS ETF
USD(DIST) (12.82%) (12.87%) 0.05% 1.15% 0.07%
HSBC MSCI EUROPE ISLAMIC ESG UCITS
ETF EUR(ACC)" N/A N/A N/A (0.03%) N/A
HSBC MSCI EUROPE UCITS ETF
EUR(ACC)M N/A N/A N/A (0.06%) N/A
HSBC MSCI EUROPE UCITS ETF
EUR(DIST) (9.18%) (9.49%) 0.31% 10.09% 0.10%
HSBC MSCI JAPAN UCITS ETF USD(ACC)
Fkkdk N/A N/A N/A (0.03%) N/A
HSBC MSCI JAPAN UCITS ETF USD(DIST) (16.59%) (16.65%) 0.06% 0.08% 0.08%
HSBC MSCI PACIFIC EX JAPAN UCITS ETF
USD(ACC)***** N/A N/A N/A (0.04%) N/A

*The share class was launched on 27 July 2022. As a result, YTD performance rate is not available.
**The share class was launched on 28 June 2022. As a result, YTD performance rate is not available.

*** The share class was launched on 21 April 2022. As a result, YTD performance rate is not available.

***The share class was launched on 6 July 2022. As a result, YTD performance rate is not available.

**xxThe share class was launched on 20 July 2022. As a result, YTD performance rate is not available.
The share class was launched on 5 December 2022. As a result, YTD performance rate is not available.

MThe share class was launched on 13 July 2022. As a result, YTD performance rate is not available.

*The gross percentage is calculated on a daily basis by dividing the latest daily NAV against its most recent daily NAV and
the resulting answer is then deducted by one. The resulting answer is multiplied by the corresponding daily change in the index
to arrive at the daily gross return percentage. The accumulation of all the daily return percentages gives the yearly gross
performance percentage. The performance percentages disclosed are not deemed to be directly reconcilable to the Financial

Statements. Also it allows the users to understand the relevance and reliability of the amounts quoted.

M*Calculation of tracking error is explained in detail on page 32.
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Performance Summary (continued)

Performance| Performance| Performance| Share Class| Performance|
1Jan- 31 1 Jan- 31 1 Jan- 31 VS 1 Jan-
December December December Benchmark| 31 December
2022 2022 2022 (Since 2022
Share Class| Share Class| Share Class| inception to Tracking
Performance| Benchmark vs| 31 December Error
Share Class (Gross)** Performance| Benchmark 2022)|  (Gross™™¥)
Developed Countries (continued)
HSBC MSCI PACIFIC EX JAPAN UCITS ETF
USD(DIST) (5.97%) (5.94%) (0.02%) 0.02% 0.08%
HSBC MSCI USA ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF
USD(ACC)* N/A N/A N/A 0.02% 0.08%
HSBC MSCI USA UCITS ETF USD(DIST) (19.64%) (19.85%) 0.20% 18.22% 0.11%
HSBC MSCI WORLD ISLAMIC ESG UCITS
ETF USD(ACC)** N/A N/A N/A 0.02% 0.06%
HSBC MSCI WORLD SMALL CAP ESG
UCITS ETF USD (ACC)*** N/A N/A N/A 0.03% 0.08%
HSBC MSCI WORLD UCITS ETF EUR
HEDGED(ACC)**** N/A N/A N/A (1.95%) N/A
HSBC MSCI WORLD UCITS ETF
USD(ACC)***** N/A N/A N/A (0.15%) N/A
HSBC MSCI WORLD UCITS ETF USD(DIST) (17.99%) (18.14%) 0.15% 7.79% 0.30%
HSBC MSCI WORLD VALUE ESG UCITS
ETF USD(ACC)***** N/A N/A N/A 0.03% 0.09%
HSBC NASDAQ GLOBAL
SEMICONDUCTOR UCITS ETF USD(ACC)? N/A N/A N/A 0.14% 0.17%
HSBC S&P 500 UCITS ETF USD(ACC)Y™ N/A N/A N/A (0.16%) N/A
HSBC S&P 500 UCITS ETF USD(DIST) (18.44%) (18.51%) 0.07% 16.01% 0.10%
HSBC UK SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS
ETF GBP(ACC) (6.46%) (6.61%) 0.16% (0.18%) 0.29%
HSBC UK SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS
ETF GBP(DIST) M N/A N/A N/A 0.12% N/A
HSBC USA SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS
ETF USD(ACC) (17.23%) (17.48%) 0.25% 0.86% 0.04%
HSBC USA SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS
ETF USD(DIST)MM N/A N/A N/A (0.17%) N/A
HSBC WORLD ESG BIODIVERSITY
SCREENED EQUITY UCITS ETF USD
(ACCY)MAN N/A N/A N/A 0.05% 0.07%

*The share class was launched on 17 November 2022. As a result, YTD performance rate is not available.
**The share class was launched on 30 November 2022. As a result, YTD performance rate is not available.
***The share class was launched on 20 October 2022. As a result, YTD performance rate is not available.
****The share class was launched on 08 December 2022. As a result, YTD performance rate is not available.
**xxThe share class was launched on 28 June 2022. As a result, YTD performance rate is not available.
reexxxThe share class was launched on 18 October 2022. As a result, YTD performance rate is not available.
The share class was launched on 25 January 2022. As a result, YTD performance rate is not available.

MThe share class was launched on 21 June 2022. As a result, YTD performance rate is not available.
MAThe share class was launched on 27 July 2022. As a result, YTD performance rate is not available.
AMAMThe share class was launched on 6 July 2022. As a result, YTD performance rate is not available.

MAMThe share class was launched on 11 August 2022. As a result, YTD performance rate is not available.

~The gross percentage is calculated on a daily basis by dividing the latest daily NAV against its most recent daily NAV and
the resulting answer is then deducted by one. The resulting answer is multiplied by the corresponding daily change in the index
to arrive at the daily gross return percentage. The accumulation of all the daily return percentages gives the yearly gross
performance percentage. The performance percentages disclosed are not deemed to be directly reconcilable to the Financial

Statements. Also it allows the users to understand the relevance and reliability of the amounts quoted.

~*Calculation of tracking error is explained in detail on page 32.
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Performance Summary (continued)

Performance| Performance | Performance| Share Class| Performance
1 Jan- 31 1Jan- 31 1 Jan- 31 Vs 1Jan- 31
December December December| Benchmark December
2022 2022 2022 (Since 2022
Share Class| Share Class | Share Class| inception to Tracking
Performance| Benchmark vs| 31 December Error
Share Class (Gross)** Performance Benchmark 2022)| (Gross””*)
Emerging Countries
HSBC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN
SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF
USD(ACC) (15.83%) (15.70%) (0.14%) (1.16%) 0.31%
HSBC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN
SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF USD
(DIST)* N/A N/A N/A 0.26% N/A
HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE
EQUITY UCITS ETF USD(ACC) (18.08%) (17.98%) (0.10%) (0.77%) 1.59%
HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE
EQUITY UCITS ETF USD(DIST)** N/A N/A N/A 0.17% N/A
HSBC HANG SENG TECH UCITS ETF
HKD(ACC) (26.62%) (26.67%) 0.05% 0.00% 0.08%
HSBC MSCI AC FAR EAST EX JAPAN
UCITS ETF USD(ACC) (21.49%) (21.57%) 0.08% 0.74% 0.32%
HSBC MSCI AC FAR EAST EX JAPAN
UCITS ETF USD(DIST)*** N/A N/A N/A (0.04%) N/A
HSBC MSCI BRAZIL UCITS ETF USD(DIST) 12.81% 14.15% (1.34%) (2.96%) 0.70%
HSBC MSCI CHINA A UCITS ETF
USD(ACC)*** N/A N/A N/A (0.14%) N/A
HSBC MSCI CHINA A UCITS ETF
USD(DIST) (25.69%) (25.90%) 0.21% 0.19% 0.22%
HSBC MSCI CHINA UCITS ETF
USD(ACC)*** N/A N/A N/A 0.00% N/A
HSBC MSCI CHINA UCITS ETF USD(DIST) (21.83%) (21.93%) 0.10% 0.82% 0.28%
HSBC MSCI EM FAR EAST UCITS ETF
USD(DIST)**** N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
HSBC MSCI EM LATIN AMERICA UCITS
ETF USD(DIST) 8.39% 8.92% (0.53%) (1.09%) 0.63%
HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS SMALL
CAP ESG UCITS ETF USD (ACC)» N/A N/A N/A (0.07%) 0.68%
HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS
ETF USD(ACC)** N/A N/A N/A (0.02%) N/A

*The share class was launched on 6 July 2022. As a result, YTD performance rate is not available.

**The share class was launched on 28 June 2022. As a result, YTD performance rate is not available.
***The share class was launched on 13 July 2022. As a result, YTD performance rate is not available.

****The sub-fund was closed on 6 July 2022 and delisted from London Stock Exchange on 11 July 2022.
"The share class was launched on 3 November 2022. As a result, YTD performance rate is not available.

~The gross percentage is calculated on a daily basis by dividing the latest daily NAV against its most recent daily NAV and
the resulting answer is then deducted by one. The resulting answer is multiplied by the corresponding daily change in the index
to arrive at the daily gross return percentage. The accumulation of all the daily return percentages gives the yearly gross
performance percentage. The performance percentages disclosed are not deemed to be directly reconcilable to the Financial
Statements. Also it allows the users to understand the relevance and reliability of the amounts quoted.

A*Calculation of tracking error is explained in detail on page 32.
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Performance Summary (continued)

Performance | Performance |Performance Share Class| Performance
1Jan- 31 1Jan- 31 1Jan- 31 Vs 1Jan- 31
December December December Benchmark December
2022 2022 2022 (Since 2022
Share Class | Share Class | Share Class inception to Tracking
Performance Benchmark vs | 31 December Error
Share Class (Gross)** | Performance | Benchmark 2022) (Gross™™*)
Emerging Countries (continued)
HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS
ETF USD(DIST) (19.97%) (20.09%) 0.12% 0.95% 0.77%
HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS VALUE
ESG UCITS ETF USD(ACC)* N/A N/A N/A (0.02%) N/A
HSBC MSCI INDONESIA UCITS ETF
USD(DIST) 3.57% 3.59% (0.02%) (0.25%) 0.11%
HSBC MSCI KOREA CAPPED UCITS ETF
USD(DIST) (28.91%) (29.05%) 0.14% (1.09%) 0.41%
HSBC MSCI MALAYSIA UCITS ETF
USD(DIST)M™ N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
HSBC MSCI MEXICO CAPPED UCITS ETF
USD(DIST) (1.79%) (2.02%) 0.23% 1.33% 0.09%
HSBC MSCI RUSSIA CAPPED UCITS ETF
USD(DIST)** N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
HSBC MSCI SOUTH AFRICA CAPPED
UCITS ETF USD(DIST)*** N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
HSBC MSCI TAIWAN CAPPED UCITS ETF
USD(DIST) (28.93%) (28.99%) 0.06% 0.56% 0.11%
HSBC MSCI TURKEY UCITS ETF
USD(DIST) 90.07% 90.42% (0.34%) 0.16% 0.16%
Developed and Emerging Countries
HSBC BLOOMBERG EUR SUSTAINABLE
CORPORATE BOND UCITS ETF EUR(ACC) (13.62%) (13.47%) (0.15%) (0.13%) 0.17%
HSBC BLOOMBERG GLOBAL
SUSTAINABLE AGGREGATE 1-3 YEAR
BOND UCITS ETF USD(ACC)***=* N/A N/A N/A (0.02%) 0.17%
HSBC BLOOMBERG USD SUSTAINABLE
CORPORATE BOND UCITS ETF USD(ACC) (15.66%) (15.65%) (0.01%) 0.03% 0.30%
HSBC MSCI AC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN
CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF
USD(ACC)***** N/A N/A N/A 0.02% 0.26%
HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS
CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF
USD(ACC)? N/A N/A N/A (0.02%) 0.41%

*The sub-fund was launched on 7 December 2022. As a result, YTD performance rate is not available.
**The sub-fund was temporarily suspended from trading from 2 March 2022, following Russia’s invasion of Ukraine. The sub-
fund was closed on 24 March 2023 and was delisted from London Stock Exchange on 29 March 2023. .
***The sub-fund was closed on 21 April 2022 and delisted from London Stock Exchange on 26 April 2022.
***The sub-fund was launched on 13 January 2022. As a result, YTD performance rate is not available.

*exxThe sub-fund was launched on 11 April 2022. As a result, YTD performance rate is not available.

"The sub-fund was launched on 7 April 2022. As a result, YTD performance rate is not available.
MThe sub-fund was closed on 7 December 2022 and delisted from London Stock Exchange on 12 December 2022.

*The gross percentage is calculated on a daily basis by dividing the latest daily NAV against its most recent daily NAV and
the resulting answer is then deducted by one. The resulting answer is multiplied by the corresponding daily change in the
index to arrive at the daily gross return percentage. The accumulation of all the daily return percentages gives the yearly
gross performance percentage. The performance percentages disclosed are not deemed to be directly reconcilable to the
Financial Statements. Also it allows the users to understand the relevance and reliability of the amounts quoted.

*Calculation of tracking error is explained in detail on page 32.
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Performance Summary (continued)

Performance | Performance |Performance Share Class| Performance
1Jan- 31 1Jan- 31 1Jan- 31 Vs 1Jan- 31
December December December Benchmark December
2022 2022 2022 (Since 2022
Share Class | Share Class | Share Class inception to Tracking
Performance Benchmark vs | 31 December Error
Share Class (Gross)** | Performance | Benchmark 2022)| (Gross””*)
Developed and Emerging Countries
(continued)
HSBC MSCI EUROPE CLIMATE PARIS
ALIGNED UCITS ETF EUR(ACC) (13.06%) (13.33%) 0.27% 0.44% 0.11%
HSBC MSCI JAPAN CLIMATE PARIS
ALIGNED UCITS ETF USD(ACC) (23.60%) (23.65%) 0.05% 0.05% 0.08%
HSBC MSCI USA CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED
UCITS ETF USD(ACC) (23.43%) (23.64%) 0.21% 0.31% 0.05%
HSBC MSCI USA CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED
UCITS ETF USD(DIST)* N/A N/A N/A (0.13%) N/A
HSBC MSCI WORLD CLIMATE PARIS
ALIGNED UCITS ETF USD(ACC) (21.42%) (21.57%) 0.15% 0.23% 0.06%
HSBC MULTI FACTOR WORLDWIDE
EQUITY UCITS ETF USD(ACC)** N/A N/A N/A (0.86%) N/A
HSBC MULTI FACTOR WORLDWIDE
EQUITY UCITS ETF USD(DIST) (17.40%) (18.36%) 0.96% (3.07%) 1.94%

*The sub-fund was launched on 20 July 2022. As a result, YTD performance rate is not available.
**The sub-fund was launched on 27 July 2022. As a result, YTD performance rate is not available.

~The gross percentage is calculated on a daily basis by dividing the latest daily NAV against its most recent daily NAV and
the resulting answer is then deducted by one. The resulting answer is multiplied by the corresponding daily change in the
index to arrive at the daily gross return percentage. The accumulation of all the daily return percentages gives the yearly
gross performance percentage. The performance percentages disclosed are not deemed to be directly reconcilable to the
Financial Statements. Also it allows the users to understand the relevance and reliability of the amounts quoted.

~*Calculation of tracking error is explained in detail on page 32.
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Compliance with the Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation (SFDR) and Taxonomy Regulation

Article 6 SFDR Funds

The sub-funds listed below do not promote environmental and/or social characteristics within the meaning
of Article 8 SFDR or do not have a sustainable investment objective within the meaning of Article 9 SFDR.
The sub-funds are required to comply with the requirements of Article 6 SFDR and are categorised and
referred to as Article 6 SFDR funds (the “Article 6 SFDR Funds”):

HSBC EURO STOXX 50 UCITS ETF

HSBC FTSE 100 UCITS ETF

HSBC FTSE 250 UCITS ETF

HSBC FTSE EPRA NAREIT DEVELOPED UCITS ETF
HSBC HANG SENG TECH UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI AC FAR EAST EX JAPAN UCITS ETF
HSBC MSCI BRAZIL UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI CANADA UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI CHINA A UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI CHINA UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF
HSBC MSCI EM LATIN AMERICA UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI EUROPE UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI INDONESIA UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI JAPAN UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI KOREA CAPPED UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI MEXICO CAPPED UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI PACIFIC EX JAPAN UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI RUSSIA CAPPED UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI TAIWAN CAPPED UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI TURKEY UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI USA UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI WORLD UCITS ETF

HSBC MULTI FACTOR WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS ETF
HSBC NASDAQ GLOBAL SEMICONDUCTOR UCITS ETF
HSBC S&P 500 UCITS ETF

The investments underlying the Article 6 SFDR Funds do not take into account the EU criteria for
environmentally sustainable economic activities
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Compliance with the Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation (SFDR) and Taxonomy Regulation
(continued)

Article 8 SFDR Funds

The sub-funds listed below promote environmental and/or social characteristics within the meaning of Article
8 SFDR (the “Article 8 SFDR Funds”):

HSBC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

HSBC BLOOMBERG GLOBAL SUSTAINABLE AGGREGATE 1 -3 YEAR BOND UCITS ETF
HSBC BLOOMBERG EUR SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND UCITS ETF
HSBC BLOOMBERG USD SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND UCITS ETF
HSBC DEVELOPED WORLD SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

HSBC EUROPE EX UK SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

HSBC EUROPE SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

HSBC JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI AC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF
HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF
HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS SMALL CAP ESG UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS VALUE ESG UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI EUROPE CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI EUROPE ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI JAPAN CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI USA CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI WORLD CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI WORLD SMALL CAP ESG UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI WORLD VALUE ESG UCITS ETF

HSBC UK SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI USA ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF

HSBC USA SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

HSBC WORLD ESG BIODIVERSITY SCREENED EQUITY UCITS ETF
HSBC MSCI WORLD ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF

During the course of the year, regulation around sustainability-related disclosures continued to evolve,
through the SFDR and the EU Taxonomy Regulation and their associated regulatory technical standards
and available guidance. Additional disclosure requirements under SFDR Level 2 are applicable to all annual
reports published on or after 1 January 2023 and such disclosures as they relate to the sub-funds can be
found in the Other Additional Disclosures of this report. Such disclosures have in part been prepared using
data sourced from third party data providers which was available as at the date of which the disclosures
were produced. Similarly, the activities reported in the disclosures may be an output of proprietary analysis,
which in turn may utilise data published by underlying investee companies. It has been observed that the
availability of data, both from third party data providers and underlying investee companies, continues to be
challenging in some respects. Additionally, there may be further regulatory guidance of relevance to the
content of the disclosures that is still to be issued. The disclosures included in the Other Additional
Disclosures of this report should consequently be read and understood in light of these continuing
challenges. With the assistance of the Management Company and the Investment Manager, the Board
continues to monitor the ongoing development and evolution of sustainability-related regulation and
associated guidance and the availability of relevant third party and investee companies’ data in this regard.
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The Directors
HSBC ETFs plc

3 Dublin Landings,
North Wall Quay
Dublin 1

18 April 2023

Annual Depositary Report to the Shareholders

Re: HSBC ETFs plc (the "Company")

We, HSBC Continental Europe, Ireland, appointed Depositary to HSBC ETFs plc (the “Company”) provide
this report solely in favour of the Shareholders of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022
(“the Accounting Period”). This report is provided in accordance with the UCITS Regulations - European
Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011, as
amended (“the Regulations”). We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown.

In accordance with our Depositary obligation as provided for under the Regulations, we have enquired
into the conduct of the Company for the Accounting Period, and we hereby report thereon to the

Shareholders of the Company as follows;

We are of the opinion that the Company has been managed during the Accounting Period, in all
material respects:

(i) in accordance with the limitations imposed on the investment and borrowing powers of the
Company by the constitutional documents and the Regulations; and

(i) otherwise in accordance with the provisions of the constitutional documents and the Regulations.

Yours sincerely,

( CZere Mo e

For and on behalf of
HSBC Continental Europe, Ireland

1 Grand Canal Square
Grand Canal Harbour
Dublin 2

Ireland

HSBC Continental Europe
1 Grand Canal Square, Grand Canal Harbour, Dublin 2, D02 P820, Ireland
Tel: +353-1-635-6000 Website: www.hsbc.ie

HSBC Continental Europe has a registered branch in Ireland (registration number 908966) having its registered office at 1 Grand Canal Square, Grand
Canal Harbour, Dublin 2, D02 P820 and is regulated and supervised by the Central Bank of Ireland as a depositary for Irish authorised investment
funds and otherwise regulated by the Central Bank of Ireland for conduct of business rules. HSBC Continental Europe is a company incorporated
under the laws of France as a société anonyme (registered number 775 670 284 RCS Paris), having its registered office at 38 Avenue Kléber, 75116
Paris, France. HSBC Continental Europe is supervised by the European Central Bank, as part of the Single Supervisory Mechanism, the French
Prudential Supervisory and Resolution Authority (I’ Autorité de Controle Prudentiel et de Résolution) as the French National Competent Authority and
the French Financial Markets Authority (I’ Autorité des Marchés Financiers) for the activities carried out over financial instruments or in financial
markets
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HSBC ETFs
PLC

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of HSBC ETFs plc (the “Company’) for the year ended 31
December 2022, which comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Comprehensive income,
Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares, Statement
of Cash Flow, and related notes, including the summary of significant accounting policies set out in note
2.The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is Irish Law and International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the European Union.

In our opinion:

¢ the Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of
the Company as at 31 December 2022 and of its decrease in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares for the year then ended,;

¢ the Financial Statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the
European Union; and

e the Financial Statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirement of the
Companies Act 2014, the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in
Transferable Securities Regulations) 2011 and the Central Bank (Supervision and Enforcement)
Act 2013 (Section 48(1)) (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities)
Regulations 2019.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (“ISAs (Ireland)”)
and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient
and appropriate basis for our opinion. Our audit opinion is consistent with our report to the audit committee.

We were appointed as auditor by the directors on 6 November 2015. The period of total uninterrupted
engagement is the eight years ended 31 December 2022. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under,
and we remained independent of the Company in accordance with, ethical requirements applicable in
Ireland, including the Ethical Standard issued by the Irish Auditing and Accounting Supervisory Authority
(“IAASA”) as applied to listed public interest entities. No non-audit services prohibited by that standard were
provided.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the Financial Statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting in the preparation of the Financial Statements is appropriate.

Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the entity’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting included our knowledge of the Company and the asset management industry to identify
the inherent risks to the Company’s business model and analysing how those risks might affect the
Company’s financial resources or ability to continue operations over the going concern period. The risks
that we considered most likely to adversely affect the Company’s available financial resources over this
period related to the Investment Manager’s intention to continue to manage the portfolio, the Directors’
assessment of the operational resilience of the Company, and the valuation of financial assets including
market volatility, interest rate and currency risks, and counterparty risks.

We also considered less predictable but realistic second order impacts that could affect the Company such
as implications of the conflict between Russia and Ukraine.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HSBC ETFs
PLC (continued)

We considered whether the going concern disclosure in the Financial Statements gives an appropriate
description of the directors’ assessment of going concern, including the identified risks and dependencies.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the Financial Statements are
authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in
the relevant sections of this report.

Detecting irregularities including fraud

We identified the areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect
on the Financial Statements and risks of material misstatement due to fraud, using our understanding of
the entity's industry, regulatory environment and other external factors and inquiry with the Directors. In
addition, our risk assessment procedures included:

¢ Inquiring with the directors and other management as to the Company’s policies and procedures
regarding compliance with laws and regulations, identifying, evaluating and accounting for litigation
and claims, as well as whether they have knowledge of hon-compliance or instances of litigation or
claims.

e Inquiring of the directors and the audit committee, as to the Company’s high-level policies and
procedures to prevent and detect fraud, as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual,
suspected or alleged fraud.

¢ Inquiring of the directors and the audit committee regarding their assessment of the risk that the
Financial Statements may be materially misstated due to irregularities, including fraud.

e Inspecting the Company’s regulatory and legal correspondence.

e Reading Board and audit committee minutes.

¢ Performing planning analytical procedures to identify any usual or unexpected relationships.

We discussed identified laws and regulations, fraud risk factors and the need to remain alert among the
audit team.

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the Financial Statements including
companies and financial reporting legislation. We assessed the extent of compliance with these laws and
regulations as part of our procedures on the related Financial Statement’s items, including assessing the
Financial Statement’s disclosures and agreeing them to supporting documentation when necessary.

Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-
compliance could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the Financial Statements, for instance
through the imposition of fines or litigation. We identified the following areas as those most likely to have
such an effect: European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities)
Regulations 2011 and Central Bank (Supervision and Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1)) (Undertakings
for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2019 and certain aspects of company
legislation recognising the financial and regulated nature of the Company’s activities.

Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these non-direct laws

and regulations to inquiry of the directors and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal
correspondence, if any. These limited procedures did not identify actual or suspected non-compliance.
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We assessed events or conditions that could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide
an opportunity to commit fraud. As required by auditing standards, we performed procedures to address the
risk of management’s override of controls. On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud risk related to
revenue recognition. In response to the fraud risks, we also performed procedures including:

¢ Identifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria and comparing the identified entries to
supporting documentation.
e Assessing the disclosures in the financial statements.

As the Company is regulated, our assessment of risks involved obtaining an understanding of the legal and
regulatory framework that the Company operates and gaining an understanding of the control environment
including the entity’s procedures for complying with regulatory requirements.

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected
some material misstatements in the Financial Statements, even though we have properly planned and
performed our audit in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-
compliance with laws and regulations (irregularities) is from the events and transactions reflected in the
Financial Statements, the less likely the inherently limited procedures required by auditing standards would
identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remains a higher risk of non-detection of irregularities, as these may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. We
are not responsible for preventing non-compliance and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with
all laws and regulations.

Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in the
audit of the Financial Statements and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement
(whether or not due to fraud) identified by us, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall
audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In arriving at our audit opinion above, there was one key audit matter as follows (unchanged from 2021):

Accuracy, valuation and ownership of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss USD 18.1 billion
(2021: USD 19.4 billion).

Refer to note 2 of the Financial Statements (Significant accounting policies) and note 4 (Financial
instruments and associated risk).
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The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Company’s financial assets make up 99.02% Our procedures included but were not limited to:
(2021: 98.94%) of the net asset value (“NAV”) and ¢ Documenting the process in place to value
are considered to be the key driver of the Company’s the portfolio of investments;

results. While the nature of the Company’s financial e With the assistance of our valuation
assets do not require a significant level of judgement specialists, agreeing the valuation of 99.99%
because they comprise mainly of liquid, quoted of the financial asset portfolio to prices
investments, due to their significance in the context published by independent pricing sources;
of the Financial Statements as a whole, the accuracy and

valuation and ownership of the calculation of e Obtaining independent external confirmation
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of all positions held in the investment
was identified as the matter which had the greatest portfolio from the depositary/broker and
effect on our overall audit strategy and allocation of reconciling them to the Company’s records.

resources in planning and completing our audit.

No material misstatements were identified by our
audit procedures over the accuracy, valuation and
ownership of the calculation of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

Our application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit

Materiality for the Financial Statements as a whole was set at USD 91 million (2021: USD 98 million),
determined with reference to a benchmark of the Company’s NAV, of which it represents 50 basis points
as at 31 December 2022 (2021: 50 basis points).

We have selected NAV as the most appropriate benchmark given the circumstances and nature of the
Company's business as an investment fund. In determining the percentage to be applied to the benchmark,
we considered a number of factors, i.e. concentration of ownership and stability of the business environment
in which the Company operates. In line with our audit methodology, our procedures on individual account
balances and disclosures were performed to a lower threshold, performance materiality, so as to reduce to
an acceptable level the risk that individually immaterial individual account balances add up to a material
amount across the financial statements as a whole.

Performance materiality for the Financial Statements as a whole was set at USD 68 million (2021: USD 71
million), determined with reference to a benchmark of the Company’s NAV, of which it represents 75% of
materiality (2021: 75%). We determined 75% was an appropriate level for performance materiality because
in our judgement a normal level of aggregation risk is present.

We reported to the audit committee and Board of Directors any corrected or uncorrected identified
misstatements exceeding USD 4.5 million (2021: USD 4.9 million), in addition to other identified
misstatements that warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

We applied materiality and performance materiality to assist us to determine what risks were significant
risks and the procedures to be performed.

Our audit was undertaken to the materiality and performance materiality level specified above and was all
performed by a single engagement team in Dublin.

Other information

The Directors are responsible for the other information presented in the Annual Report together with the
Financial Statements. The other information comprises the information included in the General Information,
HSBC Global Asset Mangement Shariah Committee, Directors’ report, Investment Manager's Report,
Annual Depositary Report to the Shareholders, Portfolio Changes(unaudited), Other Additional
Disclosures(unaudited) and Appendix - SFDR.Disclosures.
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The Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon do not comprise part of the other information.
Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our Financial
Statements’ audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the Financial
Statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work we have not identified material misstatements
in the other information.

Based solely on our work on the other information undertaken during the course of the audit, we report that:

e we have not identified material misstatements in the directors’ report;

e in our opinion, the information given in the directors’ report is consistent with the Financial
Statements;

e inour opinion, the directors’ report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2014.

Corporate governance statement

In addition, we report, in relation to information given in the Corporate Governance Statement on page 18,
that:

e based on knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the course
of our audit, no material misstatements in the information identified above have come to our
attention; and

¢ based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit, in our opinion:

o the description of the main features of the internal control and risk management systems in
relation to the process for preparing the Financial Statements is consistent with the Financial
Statements and has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2014,

o information relating to voting rights and other matters required by the European Communities
(Takeover Bids (Directive 2004/EC)) Regulations 2006 and specified for our consideration, is
consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with the Act;

o the Corporate Governance Statement contains the information required by the Companies Act
2014; and

o the Directors’ report contains the information required by the European Union (Disclosure of
Non-Financial and Diversity Information by certain large undertakings and groups) Regulations
2017.
Our opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2014 are unmodified

We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of
our audit.

In our opinion the accounting records of the Company were sufficient to permit the Financial Statements to
be readily and properly audited and the Financial Statements are in agreement with the accounting records.

We have nothing to report on other matters on which we are required to report by exception
The Companies Act 2014 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion, the disclosures of directors’

remuneration and transactions required by Sections 305 to 312 of the Act are not made. We have nothing
to report in this regard.
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Respective responsibilities and restrictions on use
Responsibilities of directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 28, the directors are
responsible for: the preparation of the Financial Statements including being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view; such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the Financial
Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Financial Statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on IAASA’s website at
https://iaasa.ie/publications/description-of-the-auditors-responsibilities-for-the-audit-of-the-financial-
statements/.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report is made solely to the Company’s Shareholders, as a body, in accordance with Section 391 of
the Companies Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s
Shareholders those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company’s Shareholders, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions
we have formed.

(9&/(7\9%

l ohn Ahern 24 April 2023
for and on behalf of

KPMG

Chartered Accountants, Statutory Audit Firm

1 Harbourmaster Place

IFSC

Dublin 1

D01 F6F5

54


https://iaasa.ie/publications/description-of-the-auditors-responsibilities-for-the-audit-of-the-financial-statements/
https://iaasa.ie/publications/description-of-the-auditors-responsibilities-for-the-audit-of-the-financial-statements/

HSBC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD USD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 1,960,548 514,876
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 394,810,547 88,620,252
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 726 4,192
Due from brokers 2(i) 311,095 37,876
Other assets 800,016 156,176
Total assets 397,882,932 89,333,372
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 51,298 -
Other liabilities 703,073 217,515
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 754,371 217,515
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares 397,128,561 89,115,857

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD USD
Income
Dividend income 10,122,045 1,859,579
Other income 5,392 -
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and foreign exchange (45,246,649) (3,942,977)
Total loss (35,119,212) (2,083,398)
Expenses
Management fees 3 732,867 175,160
Other expenses 3 528,565 97,833
Total operating expenses 1,261,432 272,993
Operating loss (36,380,644) (2,356,391)
Finance Cost
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 10 (29,807) -
Loss for the financial year after distribution and before
withholding tax (36,410,451) (2,356,391)
Less: Withholding tax (927,132) (170,893)
Less: Capital Gains tax 13 (449,954) (209,103)
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (37,787,537) (2,736,387)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note UsD usD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 89,115,857 35,728,244
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations (37,787,537) (2,736,387)
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 362,909,158 55,663,252
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (19,288,745) -
Equalisation 2(s) 2,179,828 460,748
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the end of the financial year 397,128,561 89,115,857

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC BLOOMBERG EUR SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND UCITS

ETF*

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note EUR EUR
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 113,923 6,916
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 34,235,580 34,360,920
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 600 -
Due from brokers 2(i) 72,784 60,540
Other assets 777,413 224,619
Total assets 35,200,300 34,652,995
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 1,355 10
Other liabilities 516,782 5,324
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 518,137 5,334
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 34,682,163 34,647,661

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 16 November 2021.
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HSBC BLOOMBERG EUR SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND UCITS

ETF*

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note EUR EUR
Income
Other income 56 -
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and foreign exchange (5,369,513) (157,491)
Total loss (5,369,457) (157,491)
Expenses
Management fees 3 65,104 7,724
Other expenses 3 105 -
Total operating expenses 65,209 7,724
Operating loss (5,434,666) (165,215)
Loss for the financial year after distribution and before
withholding tax (5,434,666) (165,215)
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (5,434,666) (165,215)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 16 November 2021.
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HSBC BLOOMBERG EUR SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND UCITS

ETF*

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note EUR EUR
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 34,647,661 -
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations (5,434,666) (165,215)
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 13,579,961 34,812,876
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (8,110,123) -
Equalisation 2(s) (670) -
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the end of the financial year 34,682,163 34,647,661

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 16 November 2021.
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HSBC BLOOMBERG GLOBAL SUSTAINABLE AGGREGATE 1-3 YEAR

BOND UCITS ETF*

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022

Note USD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 405,323
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 78,531,292
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) -
Due from brokers 2(i) 52,325
Other assets 1,625,389
Total assets 80,614,329
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Other liabilities 631,554
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares) 631,554
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares 79,982,775

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 13 January 2022.
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HSBC BLOOMBERG GLOBAL SUSTAINABLE AGGREGATE 1-3 YEAR

BOND UCITS ETF*

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022
UsD
Income
Other income 133
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
foreign exchange (5,588,014)
Total (loss) (5,587,881)
Expenses
Management fees 123,000
Other expenses 769
Total operating expenses 123,769
Operating loss (5,711,650)
Loss for the financial year after distribution and before withholding tax (5,711,650)
Less: Withholding tax (3,999)
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares from operations (5,715,649)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 13 January 2022.
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HSBC BLOOMBERG GLOBAL SUSTAINABLE AGGREGATE 1-3 YEAR

BOND UCITS ETF*

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares

for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022

Note USD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the -
start of the financial year
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares from operations (5,715,649)
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 103,886,324
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (18,247,902)
Equalisation 2(s) 60,002
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at
the end of the financial year 79,982,775

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 13 January 2022.
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HSBC BLOOMBERG USD SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND UCITS

ETF*

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD USD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 375,232 243,818
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 53,472,763 48,725,910
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 227 -
Due from brokers 2(i) 59,231 53,961
Other assets 762,836 384,886
Total assets 54,670,289 49,408,575
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) - 31
Other liabilities 604,906 7,545
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 604,906 7,576
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 54,065,383 49,400,999

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 18 November 2021.
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HSBC BLOOMBERG USD SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND UCITS

ETF*

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
UsD uUsD
Income
Other income 8 -
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and foreign exchange (9,043,515) 236,827
Total (loss)/income (9,043,507) 236,827
Expenses
Management fees 96,180 10,453
Other expenses 120 -
Total operating expenses 96,300 10,453
Operating (loss)/profit (9,139,807) 226,374
(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and before
withholding tax (9,139,807) 226,374
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (9,139,807) 226,374

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 18 November 2021.
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HSBC BLOOMBERG USD SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND UCITS

ETF*

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note USsD USD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
at the start of the financial year 49,400,999 -
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (9,139,807) 226,374
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 22,733,770 49,174,625
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (8,998,236) -
Equalisation 2(s) 68,657 -
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the end of the financial year 54,065,383 49,400,999

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 18 November 2021.
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HSBC DEVELOPED WORLD SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note USD USD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 747,949 167,724
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 125,336,352 110,907,360
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) - 8,730
Due from brokers 2(i) 163,029 30,339
Other assets 139,245 91,376
Total assets 126,386,575 111,205,529
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 51,323 -
Other liabilities 38,569 29,497
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 89,892 29,497
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 126,296,683 111,176,032

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC DEVELOPED WORLD SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note uUsD UsD
Income
Dividend income 2,662,726 1,431,121
Other income 1,089 -
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and foreign exchange (24,597,932) 12,436,468
Total (loss)/income (21,934,117) 13,867,589
Expenses
Management fees 3 204,644 125,512
Other expenses 3 44,257 58,594
Total operating expenses 248,901 184,106
Operating (loss)/profit (22,183,018) 13,683,483
Finance Cost
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 10 (404) -
(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax (22,183,422) 13,683,483
Less: Withholding tax (337,281) (185,987)
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (22,520,703) 13,497,496

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC DEVELOPED WORLD SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD USD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 111,176,032 42,518,915
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (22,520,703) 13,497,496
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 66,385,570 109,359,976
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (29,075,593) (54,699,105)
Equalisation 2(s) 331,377 498,750
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year 126,296,683 111,176,032

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC ECONOMIC SCALE WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS ETF?

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note usSD UsD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 189,959* 130,883**
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 11,999 12,601
Other assets 152 -
Total assets 202,110 143,484
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Other liabilities 202,110 143,484
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 202,110 143,484

Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares - -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
The sub-fund was fully redeemed on 18 September 2020 and terminated on 21 September 2020.

*Consists of cash received from corporate actions on investments, bank interest received and tax reclaims on dividends.
**Consists of cash received from corporate actions on investments and tax reclaims on dividends.
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HSBC ECONOMIC SCALE WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS ETF?

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note uUsb UsD
Income
Dividend income 4,103 48
Other income 16,830 -
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and foreign exchange (20,933) (48)
Total loss - -
Expenses
Other expenses 3 - -

Total operating expenses -

Operating loss -

Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders -

Loss for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax -

Less: Withholding tax -
Less: Capital tax -

Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

The sub-fund was fully redeemed on 18 September 2020 and terminated on 21 September 2020.
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HSBC ECONOMIC SCALE WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS ETF?

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

Note

2022
usD

2021
usD

Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year

Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations

Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares
Equalisation 2(s)

Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

The sub-fund was fully redeemed on 18 September 2020 and terminated on 21 September 2020.
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HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD UsSD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 1,910,944 980,703
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 206,533,571 132,397,804
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 534 -
Due from brokers 2(i) 147,011 58,706
Other assets 911,356 209,538
Total assets 209,503,416 133,646,751
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 48,915 8,359
Other liabilities 818,176 272,467
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 867,091 280,826
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 208,636,325 133,365,925

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note Usb UsbD
Income
Dividend income 5,315,249 2,327,345
Other income 5,438 -
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and foreign exchange (39,060,115) (3,379,214)
Total loss (33,739,428) (1,051,869)
Expenses
Management fees 3 303,811 167,597
Other expenses 3 283,735 217,048
Total operating expenses 587,546 384,645
Operating loss (34,326,974) (1,436,514)
Loss for the financial year after distribution and before
withholding tax (34,326,974) (1,436,514)
Less: Withholding tax (675,484) (297,212)
Less: Capital gains tax 13 (33,659) (256,574)
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (35,036,117) (1,990,300)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note uUsbD USD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 133,365,925 57,669,102
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations (35,036,117) (1,990,300)
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 140,773,993 93,799,735
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (31,418,893) (17,101,712)
Equalisation 2(s) 951,417 989,100
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year 208,636,325 133,365,925

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC EURO STOXX 50 UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note EUR EUR
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 4,859,610 3,633,829
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 373,812,487 464,917,475
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) - 137,455
Due from brokers 2(i) 1,012,180 229,357
Other assets 1,679,813 633,164
Total assets 381,364,090 469,551,280
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 374,440 -
Other liabilities 95,112 18,343
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 469,552 18,343
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 380,894,538 469,532,937

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC EURO STOXX 50 UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note EUR EUR
Income
Dividend income 12,631,084 6,246,839
Other income 64,935 30,722
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and foreign exchange (60,098,489) 48,775,808
Total (loss)/income (47,402,470) 55,053,369
Expenses
Management fees 3 196,554 146,403
Other expenses 3 336,104 413,996
Total operating expenses 532,658 560,399
Operating (loss)/profit (47,935,128) 54,492,970
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 10 (11,490,337) (5,337,129)
(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax (59,425,465) 49,155,841
Less: Withholding tax (842,620) (305,788)
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (60,268,085) 48,850,053

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC EURO STOXX 50 UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note EUR EUR
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 469,532,937 163,773,833
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (60,268,085) 48,850,053
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 230,739,525 262,344,323
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (258,937,663) (6,412,425)
Equalisation 2(s) (172,176) 977,153
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year 380,894,538 469,532,937

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC EUROPE EX UK SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF*

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022

Note EUR
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 51,226
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 7,597,127
Due from brokers 2(i) 15,060
Other assets 5,779
Total assets 7,669,192
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 4,070
Other liabilities 961
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares) 5,031
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares 7,664,161

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 21 April 2022.
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HSBC EUROPE EX UK SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF*

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022

Note EUR
Income
Dividend income 128,151
Other income 42
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
foreign exchange (250,593)
Total loss (122,400)
Expenses
Management fees 3 7,485
Other expenses 3 9,144
Total operating expenses 16,629
Operating loss (139,029)
Loss for the financial year after distribution and before withholding tax (139,029)
Less: Withholding tax (9,615)
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares from operations (148,644)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 21 April 2022.
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HSBC EUROPE EX UK SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF*

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022

Note EUR
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the
start of the financial year -
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares from operations (148,644)
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 7,777,713
Equalisation 2(s) 35,092
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at
the end of the financial year 7,664,161

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 21 April 2022.
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HSBC EUROPE SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note EUR EUR
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 461,740 582,308
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 57,384,921 68,889,837
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) - 23,938
Due from brokers 2(i) 74,739 107,568
Other assets 65,737 51,872
Total assets 57,987,137 69,655,523
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 24,049 -
Other liabilities 7,696 8,672
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 31,745 8,672
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 57,955,392 69,646,851

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC EUROPE SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note EUR EUR
Income
Dividend income 2,424,945 1,084,800
Other income 12,691 -
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and foreign exchange (11,664,444) 5,598,754
Total (loss)/income (9,226,808) 6,683,554
Expenses
Management fees 3 106,327 64,761
Other expenses 3 110,421 139,621
Total operating expenses 216,748 204,382
Operating (loss)/profit (9,443,556) 6,479,172
(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax (9,443,556) 6,479,172
Less: Withholding tax (223,733) (99,694)
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (9,667,289) 6,379,478

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC EUROPE SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note EUR EUR
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 69,646,851 17,233,695
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (9,667,289) 6,379,478
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 31,463,739 45,367,519
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (33,072,454) -
Equalisation 2(s) (415,455) 666,159
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year 57,955,392 69,646,851

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC FTSE 100 UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note GBP GBP
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 9,542,998 2,883,020
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 474,826,302 371,830,160
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) - 84,300
Due from brokers 2(i) 666,679 249,038
Other assets 1,216,542 1,082,236
Total assets 486,252,521 376,128,754
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 6,240 -
Other liabilities 54,242 42,682
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 60,482 42,682
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 486,192,039 376,086,072

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

85




HSBC FTSE 100 UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note GBP GBP
Income
Dividend income 17,636,034 15,533,657
Other income 42,384 -
Net gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss and foreign exchange 2,566,013 51,073,315
Total income 20,244,431 66,606,972
Expenses
Management fees 3 328,636 277,813
Other expenses 3 819,280 224,887
Total operating expenses 1,147,916 502,700
Operating profit 19,096,515 66,104,272
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 10 (16,167,548) (13,873,793)

Profit for the financial year after distribution and before
withholding tax

Increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC FTSE 100 UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note GBP GBP
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 376,086,072 361,957,203
Increase in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations 2,928,967 52,230,479
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 137,689,376 30,059,291
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (30,645,450) (67,452,850)
Equalisation 2(s) 133,074 (708,051)
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year 486,192,039 376,086,072

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC FTSE 250 UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note GBP GBP
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 409,436 379,540
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 46,261,619 58,005,855
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) - 15,682
Due from brokers 2(i) 41,086 25,023
Other assets 191,766 90,940
Total assets 46,903,907 58,517,040
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 4,967 -
Other liabilities 31,937 26,436
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 36,904 26,436
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 46,867,003 58,490,604

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC FTSE 250 UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note GBP GBP
Income
Dividend income 1,665,617 1,292,114
Other Income 14,213 5,769
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss and foreign exchange (11,809,743) 7,101,148
Total (loss)/income (10,129,913) 8,399,031
Expenses
Management fees 3 172,505 193,618
Other expenses 3 40,255 66,633
Total operating expenses 212,760 260,251
Operating (loss)/profit (10,342,673) 8,138,780
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 10 (1,280,928) (1,164,264)
(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax (11,623,601) 6,974,516
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (11,623,601) 6,974,516

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC FTSE 250 UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note GBP GBP
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the start of the financial year 58,490,604 48,227,224
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (11,623,601) 6,974,516
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued - 3,280,272
Equalisation 2(s) - 8,592
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year 46,867,003 58,490,604

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC FTSE EPRA/NAREIT DEVELOPED UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD USD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 1,047,016 2,696,487
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 598,237,442 252,504,155
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) - 95,525
Due from brokers 2(i) 1,388,020 627,203
Other assets 3,682,588 1,069,949
Total assets 604,355,066 256,993,319
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 188,709 -
Other liabilities 752,013 247,159
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 940,722 247,159
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 603,414,344 256,746,160

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

91




HSBC FTSE EPRA/NAREIT DEVELOPED UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD uUsD
Income
Dividend income 15,473,212 6,324,613
Other income 108,521 33,008
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and foreign exchange (114,706,088) 42,248,940
Total (loss)/income (99,124,355) 48,606,561
Expenses
Management fees 3 921,776 818,717
Other expenses 3 284,707 84,458
Total operating expenses 1,206,483 903,175
Operating (loss)/profit (200,330,838) 47,703,386
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 10 (11,896,472) (5,093,180)
(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax (112,227,310) 42,610,206
Less: Withholding tax (1,800,956) (750,995)
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (114,028,266) 41,859,211

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC FTSE EPRA/NAREIT DEVELOPED UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note Usb UsbD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 256,746,160 158,764,971
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (114,028,266) 41,859,211
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 644,384,123 149,919,254
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (186,755,340) (94,125,336)
Equalisation 2(s) 3,067,667 328,060
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year 603,414,344 256,746,160

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC HANG SENG TECH UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note HKD HKD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 4,359,919 11,403,093
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 2,590,783,216 1,835,928,125
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) - 43,400
Due from brokers 2(i) 499,545 544,539
Other assets 176,815 42,301
Total assets 2,595,819,495 1,847,961,458
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 72,500 -
Other liabilities 1,983,459 8,300,385
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 2,055,959 8,300,385

Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable

Participating Shares

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC HANG SENG TECH UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note HKD HKD
Income
Dividend income 19,488,757 6,057,370
Other income 2,236,958 642,177
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and foreign exchange (825,785,191) (902,285,571)
Total loss (804,059,476) (895,586,024)
Expenses
Management fees 3 12,399,161 8,248,856
Other expenses 3 6,062,225 5,485,322
Total operating expenses 18,461,386 13,734,178

Operating loss

Loss for the financial year after distribution and before

withholding tax

Less: Withholding tax

Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC HANG SENG TECH UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note HKD HKD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the start of the financial year 1,839,661,073 244,638,493
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations (822,819,621) (909,413,781)
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 2,329,718,410 2,702,055,329
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (752,581,005) (197,798,356)
Equalisation 2(s) (215,321) 179,388

Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note USD UsD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 1,115,850 612,065
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 157,545,106 128,099,777
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) - 10,497
Due from brokers 2(i) 92,870 31,726
Other assets 230,602 164,326
Total assets 158,984,428 128,918,391
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 33,022 -
Other liabilities 58,829 43,413
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 91,851 43,413
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 158,892,577 128,874,978

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note Usb USsSD
Income
Dividend income 3,771,601 2,160,337
Other income 940 -
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and foreign exchange (27,134,629) (2,572,117)
Total loss (23,362,088) (411,780)
Expenses
Management fees 3 261,609 163,437
Other expenses 3 15,649 10,238
Total operating expenses 277,258 173,675
Operating loss (23,639,346) (585,455)
Loss for the financial year after distribution and before
withholding tax (23,639,346) (585,455)
Less: Withholding tax (577,503) (330,251)
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (24,216,849) (915,706)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note USD UsD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 128,874,978 22,560,489
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations (24,216,849) (915,706)
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 98,690,330 106,711,157
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (44,640,246) -
Equalisation 2(s) 184,364 519,038
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year 158,892,577 128,874,978

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI AC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED

UCITS ETF*

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022

Note USD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 85,295
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 20,576,979
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) -
Due from brokers 2(i) 64,134
Other assets 36,406
Total assets 20,762,814
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 2,719
Other liabilities 12,715
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares) 15,434
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares 20,747,380

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 11 April 2022.
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HSBC MSCI AC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED
UCITS ETF*

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022

Note USD
Income
Dividend income 362,439
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
foreign exchange (2,675,865)
Total loss (2,313,426)
Expenses
Management fees 3 36,028
Other expenses 3 24,383
Total operating expenses 60,411
Operating loss (2,373,837)
Loss for the financial year after distribution and before withholding tax (2,373,837)
Less: Withholding tax (38,349)
Less: Capital gains tax (857)
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares from operations (2,413,043)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 11 April 2022.
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HSBC MSCI AC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED

UCITS ETF*

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares

for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022

Note USD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the start
of the financial year -
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares from operations (2,413,043)
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 23,146,365
Equalisation 2(s) 14,058
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at
the end of the financial year 20,747,380

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 11 April 2022.
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HSBC MSCI AC FAR EAST EX JAPAN UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note USD usD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 828,467 1,557,322
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 396,435,240 518,144,583
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 2,030 36,662
Due from brokers 2(i) 1,109,048 1,358,875
Other assets 1,179,686 1,155,967
Total assets 399,554,471 522,253,409
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 45,807 -
Other liabilities 393,018 419,525
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 438,825 419,525
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 399,115,646 521,833,884

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI AC FAR EAST EX JAPAN UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD uUsD
Income
Dividend income 12,896,025 13,328,893
Other income 253,549 196,856
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and foreign exchange (126,376,846) (65,483,835)
Total loss (113,227,272) (51,958,086)
Expenses
Management fees 3 1,981,729 2,850,731
Other expenses 3 232,124 482,382
Total operating expenses 2,213,853 3,333,113
Operating loss (115,441,125) (55,291,199)
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 10 (13,210) -
Loss for the financial year after distribution and before
withholding tax (115,454,335) (55,291,199)
Less: Withholding tax (1,575,043) (1,570,525)
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (117,029,378) (56,861,724)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI AC FAR EAST EX JAPAN UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note UsbD USD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 521,833,884 602,294,457
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations (117,029,378) (56,861,724)
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 53,630,847 102,427,359
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (58,777,581) (125,078,438)
Equalisation 2(s) (542,126) (947,770)
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year 399,115,646 521,833,884

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI BRAZIL UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note Usb UsbD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 327,304 121,008
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 22,993,217 43,801,836
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 42,094 -
Due from brokers 2(i) 94,064 -
Other assets 408,852 188,584
Total assets 23,865,531 44,111,428
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Other liabilities 297,274 52,624
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 297,274 52,624
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 23,568,257 44,058,804

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

106




HSBC MSCI BRAZIL UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note uUsD uUsD
Income
Dividend income 4,044,737 3,933,482
Other income 28,377 2,021
Net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and foreign exchange 273,623 (12,961,903)
Total income/(loss) 4,346,737 (9,026,400)
Expenses
Management fees 3 179,950 265,660
Other expenses 3 27,781 13,271
Total operating expenses 207,731 278,931
Operating profit/(loss) 4,139,006 (9,305,331)
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 10 (3,452,807) (1,613,454)
Profit/(loss) for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax 686,199 (10,918,785)
Less: Withholding tax (236,242) (204,790)
Less: Capital gains tax 13 (270,235) (17,722)
Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders
of Redeemable Participating Shares from operations 179,722 (11,141,297)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI BRAZIL UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note usD usD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 44,058,804 55,200,101
Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations 179,722 (11,141,297)
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (19,664,089) -
Equalisation 2(s) (1,006,180) -
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year 23,568,257 44,058,804

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI CANADA UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note uUsD uSD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 210,363 4,904,689
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 30,329,162 844,870,699
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) - 77,486
Due from brokers 2(i) 49,958 2,300,610
Other assets 78,504 2,259,465
Total assets 30,667,987 854,412,949
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 11,340 2,295,186
Other liabilities 31,305 809,570
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 42,645 3,104,756
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 30,625,342 851,308,193

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

109




HSBC MSCI CANADA UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD USD
Income
Dividend income 2,516,041 18,257,129
Other income 26,936 444,845
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and foreign exchange (32,586,942) 95,779,747
Total (loss)/income (30,043,965) 114,481,721
Expenses
Management fees 3 352,783 2,332,630
Other expenses 3 25,938 56,397
Total operating expenses 378,721 2,389,027
Operating (loss)/profit (30,422,686) 112,092,694
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 10 (7,636,465) (7,415,100)
(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax (38,059,151) 104,677,594
Less: Withholding tax (629,043) (4,562,715)
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (38,688,194) 100,114,879

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI CANADA UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note Usb UsbD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 851,308,193 30,930,999
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (38,688,194) 100,114,879
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 4,398,950 762,688,966
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (785,604,067) (44,980,266)
Equalisation 2(s) (789,540) 2,553,615
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year 30,625,342 851,308,193

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI CHINA A UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note USD UsD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 503,055 940,077
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 58,714,258 58,466,107
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 27 -
Due from brokers 2(i) - 87,837
Other assets 1,532 19
Total assets 59,218,872 59,494,040
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) - 16,896
Due to broker 2(i) 18,749 -
Other liabilities 14,984 15,631
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 33,733 32,527
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 59,185,139 59,461,513

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI CHINA A UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note usD usD
Income
Dividend income 1,359,867 926,174
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and foreign exchange (20,171,271) 443,604
Total (loss)/income (18,811,404) 1,369,778
Expenses
Management fees 3 183,707 170,391
Other expenses 3 45,410 61,755
Total operating expenses 229,117 232,146
Operating (loss)/profit (19,040,521) 1,137,632
Finance Cost
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 10 (1,040,127) (680,160)
(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax (20,080,648) 457,472
Less: Withholding tax (136,286) (93,224)
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (20,216,934) 364,248

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI CHINA A UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsbD USD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 59,461,513 37,091,889
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (20,216,934) 364,248
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 27,529,584 26,352,558
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (7,655,993) (4,357,277)
Equalisation 2(s) 66,969 10,095
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year 59,185,139 59,461,513

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI CHINA UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note USD USD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 4,872,043 3,918,568
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 778,077,558 576,825,144
Due from brokers 2(i) 839,425 651,209
Other assets 437,643 151,524
Total assets 784,226,669 581,546,445
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 101,675 52,980
Other liabilities 223,870 149,173
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 325,545 202,153
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 783,901,124 581,344,292

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI CHINA UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD uUsD
Income
Dividend income 25,512,182 9,963,734
Other income 313,400 154,311
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and foreign exchange (349,201,548) (165,155,643)
Total loss (323,375,966) (155,037,598)
Expenses
Management fees 3 2,859,012 2,020,631
Other expenses 3 1,831,420 466,460
Total operating expenses 4,690,432 2,487,091
Operating loss (328,066,398) (157,524,689)
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 10 (17,060,739) (6,858,065)

Loss for the financial year after distribution and before

withholding tax

Less: Withholding tax

Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI CHINA UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note USD USD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 581,344,292 672,894,008
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations (346,959,242) (165,038,453)
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 933,436,909 186,707,875
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (383,030,233) (113,521,223)
Equalisation 2(s) (890,602) 302,085
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year 783,901,124 581,344,292

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI EM FAR EAST UCITS ETF*

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD USD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) - 231,300
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) - 26,596,860
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) - 2,370
Due from brokers 2(i) - 39,415
Other assets 162,849 70,594
Total assets 162,849 26,940,539
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft 162,849 -
Other liabilities - 28,518
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 162,849 28,518
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares - 26,912,021

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was closed on 6 July 2022 and delisted from London Stock Exchange on 11 July 2022.
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HSBC MSCI EM FAR EAST UCITS ETF*

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD uUsD
Income
Dividend income 364,692 610,178
Other income 1,924 1,198
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and foreign exchange (5,351,252) (3,894,602)
Total loss (4,984,636) (3,283,226)
Expenses
Management fees 3 73,407 177,636
Other expenses 3 48,207 18,407
Total operating expenses 121,614 196,043
Operating loss (5,106,250) (3,479,269)
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 10 (198,096) (316,239)
Loss for the financial year after distribution and before
withholding tax (5,304,346) (3,795,508)
Less: Withholding tax (47,931) (84,492)
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (5,352,277) (3,880,000)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was closed on 6 July 2022 and delisted from London Stock Exchange on 11 July 2022.
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HSBC MSCI EM FAR EAST UCITS ETF*

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note USD USD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 26,912,021 23,802,397
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations (5,352,277) (3,880,000)
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued - 10,184,912
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (21,306,352) (3,198,108)
Equalisation 2(s) (253,392) 2,820
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year - 26,912,021

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was closed on 6 July 2022 and delisted from London Stock Exchange on 11 July 2022.
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HSBC MSCI EM LATIN AMERICA UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD USD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 235,722 289,188
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 20,269,188 20,545,316
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 3,600 5,314
Due from brokers 2(i) 77,125 38,274
Other assets 210,502 92,259
Total assets 20,796,137 20,970,351
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 3,540 -
Other liabilities 49,138 60,583
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 52,678 60,583
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 20,743,459 20,909,768

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI EM LATIN AMERICA UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD uUsD
Income
Dividend income 2,009,919 1,461,885
Other income 5,414 262
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and foreign exchange (207,674) (3,174,588)
Total income/(loss) 1,807,659 (1,712,441)
Expenses
Management fees 3 131,401 146,303
Other expenses 3 5,870 6,747
Total operating expenses 137,271 153,050
Operating profit/(loss) 1,670,388 (1,865,491)
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 10 (1,725,361) (923,385)
Loss for the financial year after distribution and before
withholding tax (54,973) (2,788,876)
Less: Withholding tax (130,688) (94,585)
Less: Capital gains tax 13 19,352n (33,665)
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (166,309) (2,917,126)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

"Positive balance is due to a daily unrealised Indian capital gain tax accrual movement on the sub-fund. This will be offset with
any future gains.
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HSBC MSCI EM LATIN AMERICA UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note UsSD UsSD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 20,909,768 23,777,910
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations (166,309) (2,917,126)
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued - 1,632,359
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares - (1,569,980)
Equalisation 2(s) - (13,395)
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year 20,743,459 20,909,768

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS

ETF*

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022
Note USD

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 60,316
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 20,431,868
Due from brokers 2(i) 33,337
Other assets 36,146
Total assets 20,561,667
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 1,549
Other liabilities 23,142
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares) 24,691
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares 20,536,976

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 7 April 2022.
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HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS
ETF*

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022

Note USD
Income
Dividend income 380,387
Other income 4
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
foreign exchange (3,058,674)
Total loss (2,678,283)
Expenses
Management fees 3 26,516
Other expenses 3 36,940
Total operating expenses 63,456
Operating loss (2,741,739)
Loss for the financial year after distribution and before withholding tax (2,741,739)
Less: Withholding tax (49,416)
Less: Capital gain tax (5,828)
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares from operations (2,796,983)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 7 April 2022.
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HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS

ETF*

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares

for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022

Note USD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the
start of the financial year -
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares from operations (2,796,983)
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 23,326,266
Equalisation 2(s) 7,693
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at
the end of the financial year 20,536,976

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 7 April 2022.

126




HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS SMALL CAP ESG UCITS ETF*

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022
Note USD

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 286,645
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 20,133,490
Due from brokers 2(i) 17,204
Other assets 98,078
Total assets 20,535,417
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 2,239
Other liabilities 24,846
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares) 27,085
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares 20,508,332

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 3 November 2022.
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HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS SMALL CAP ESG UCITS ETF*

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022

Note USD
Income
Dividend income 117,753
Net gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
foreign exchange 169,586
Total income 287,339
Expenses
Management fees 3 4,965
Other expenses 3 20,254
Total operating expenses 25,219
Operating profit 262,120
Profit for the financial year after distribution and before withholding tax 262,120
Less: Withholding tax (23,486)
Less: Capital gains tax (35)
Increase in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares from operations 238,599

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 3 November 2022.
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HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS SMALL CAP ESG UCITS ETF*

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022

Note USD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the
start of the financial year -
Increase in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares from operations 238,599
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 20,228,153
Equalisation 2(s) 41,580
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at
the end of the financial year 20,508,332

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 3 November 2022.
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HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD USD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 6,820,323 15,554,577
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 1,626,841,163 1,218,626,072
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 2,798 425
Due from brokers 2(i) 509,374 831,022
Other assets 5,389,237 2,862,882
Total assets 1,639,562,895 1,237,874,978
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 160,967 115,221
Other liabilities 3,782,212 4,442 159
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 3,943,179 4,557,380

Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable

Participating Shares

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD uUsD
Income
Dividend income 38,161,344 28,337,580
Other income 504,343 436,519
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and foreign exchange (234,741,537) (77,908,338)
Total loss (196,075,850) (49,134,239)
Expenses
Management fees 3 1,792,382 1,725,096
Other expenses 3 1,134,244 1,091,573
Total operating expenses 2,926,626 2,816,669
Operating loss (199,002,476) (51,950,908)
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 10 (33,835,842) (23,605,490)
Loss for the financial year after distribution and before
withholding tax (232,838,318) (75,556,398)
Less: Withholding tax (4,430,438) (3,314,028)
Less: Capital gains tax 13 197,888" (4,444,420)

Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

(237,070,868)

(83,314,846)

"Positive balance is due to a daily unrealised Indian capital gain tax accrual movement on the sub-fund. This will be offset with

any future gains.
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HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note UsSD USD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 1,233,317,598 848,550,010
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations (237,070,868) (83,314,846)
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 812,683,494 577,956,757
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (178,829,137) (112,063,483)
Equalisation 2(s) 5,518,629 2,189,160

Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year

1,635,619,716

1,233,317,598

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS VALUE ESG UCITS ETF*

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022
Note USD

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 309,693
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 37,548,854
Due from brokers 2(i) 30,427
Other assets 199,029
Total assets 38,088,003
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 8,710
Other liabilities 64,635
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares) 73,345
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares 38,014,658

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 6 December 2022.
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HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS VALUE ESG UCITS ETF*

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022

Note USD
Income
Dividend income 178,834
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
foreign exchange (469,299)
Total loss (290,465)
Expenses
Management fees 3 5,873
Other expenses 3 37,950
Total operating expenses 43,823
Operating loss (334,288)
Loss for the financial year after distribution and before withholding tax (334,288)
Less: Withholding tax (38,773)
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares from operations (373,061)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 6 December 2022.
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HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS VALUE ESG UCITS ETF*

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022

Note USD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the
start of the financial year -
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares from operations (373,061)
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 38,387,119
Equalisation 2(s) 600
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at
the end of the financial year 38,014,658

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 6 December 2022.
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HSBC MSCI EUROPE CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF*

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note EUR EUR
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 177,400 91,625
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 12,438,591 14,467,600
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) - 4,188
Due from brokers 2(i) 36,234 11,805
Other assets 17,480 9,081
Total assets 12,669,705 14,584,299
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 8,627 -
Other liabilities 1,596 1,988
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 10,223 1,988
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares 12,659,482 14,582,311

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 5 August 2021.
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HSBC MSCI EUROPE CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF*

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note EUR EUR
Income
Dividend income 363,254 74,343
Other income 2 -
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and foreign exchange (2,229,937) 667,988
Total (loss)/income (1,866,681) 742,331
Expenses
Management fees 3 19,340 8,521
Other expenses 3 3,126 24,930
Total operating expenses 22,466 33,451
Operating (loss)/profit (1,889,147) 708,880
(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and before
withholding tax (1,889,147) 708,880
Less: Withholding tax (33,682) (2,287)
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (1,922,829) 706,593

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 5 August 2021.
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HSBC MSCI EUROPE CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF*

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note EUR EUR
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year
14,582,311 -
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (1,922,829) 706,593
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued - 13,875,718
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year 12,659,482 14,582,311

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 5 August 2021.
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HSBC MSCI EUROPE ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF*

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022
Note EUR

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 28,788
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 9,104,725
Other assets 7,110
Total assets 9,140,623
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Other liabilities 1,908
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares) 1,908
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares 9,138,715

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 5 December 2022.
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HSBC MSCI EUROPE ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF*

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022

Note EUR
Income
Dividend income 7,540
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
foreign exchange (366,493)
Total loss (358,953)
Expenses
Management fees 3 1,908
Other expenses 3 20,982
Total operating expenses 22,890
Operating loss (381,843)
Loss for the financial year after distribution and before withholding tax (381,843)
Less: Withholding tax -
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares from operations (381,843)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 5 December 2022.
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HSBC MSCI EUROPE ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF*

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022

Note EUR
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the
start of the financial year -
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares from operations (381,843)
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 9,520,558
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at
the end of the financial year 9,138,715

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 5 December 2022.
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HSBC MSCI EUROPE UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note EUR EUR
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 935,307 630,806
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 118,287,844 126,710,572
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 15,277 40,330
Due from brokers 2(i) 213,524 59,733
Other assets 683,819 532,857
Total assets 120,135,771 127,974,298
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 69,171 -
Other liabilities 24,175 16,643
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 93,346 16,643
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 120,042,425 127,957,655

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI EUROPE UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note EUR EUR
Income
Dividend income 4,001,706 4,014,693
Other Income 28,670 4,620
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss and foreign exchange (15,421,859) 29,343,370
Total (loss)/income (11,391,483) 33,362,683
Expenses
Management fees 3 121,680 143,898
Other expenses 3 36,795 11,728
Total operating expenses 158,475 155,626
Operating (loss)/profit (11,549,958) 33,207,057
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 10 (3,662,035) (3,411,725)
(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax (15,211,993) 29,795,332
Less: Withholding tax (315,423) (277,633)
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (15,527,416) 29,517,699

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI EUROPE UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note EUR EUR
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 127,957,655 164,957,931
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (15,527,416) 29,517,699
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 17,959,885 -
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (10,439,158) (66,153,775)
Equalisation 2(s) 91,459 (364,200)
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year 120,042,425 127,957,655

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI INDONESIA UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note usD usD

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 166,675 340,072
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 102,344,153 62,178,529
Due from brokers 2(i) 21,563 39,842
Total assets 102,532,391 62,558,443
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 3,695 484
Other liabilities 43,210 26,590
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 46,905 27,074
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 102,485,486 62,531,369

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI INDONESIA UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note usD usD
Income
Dividend income 2,252,371 1,272,421
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and foreign exchange (438,004) 1,337,276
Total income 1,814,367 2,609,697
Expenses
Management fees 3 396,487 281,095
Other expenses 3 145,450 57,012
Total operating expenses 541,937 338,107
Operating profit 1,272,430 2,271,590
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 10 (1,575,158) (683,857)
(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax (302,728) 1,587,733
Less: Withholding tax (450,474) (254,484)
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to
holders of Redeemable Participating Shares from
operations (753,202) 1,333,249

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI INDONESIA UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsSD USD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 62,531,369 53,197,087
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (753,202) 1,333,249
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 71,066,930 23,007,105
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (30,537,502) (15,005,747)
Equalisation 2(s) 177,891 (325)
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year 102,485,486 62,531,369

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI JAPAN CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF*

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note USD USD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 73,536 14,431
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 11,110,446 9,780,627
Due from brokers 2(i) 22,522 -
Other assets 11,485 8,818
Total assets 11,217,989 9,803,876
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 2,844 -
Other liabilities 3,396 2,829
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 6,240 2,829
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 11,211,749 9,801,047

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 10 November 2021.
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HSBC MSCI JAPAN CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF*

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
usD UsD
Income
Dividend income 160,742 8,699
Other income 4 -
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss and foreign exchange (2,368,781) (180,780)
Total loss (2,208,035) (172,081)
Expenses
Management fees 17,176 2,499
Other expenses 494 628
Total operating expenses 17,670 3,127
Operating Loss (2,225,705) (175,208)
Loss for the financial year after distribution and before
withholding tax (2,225,705) (175,208)
Less: Withholding tax (24,344) (1,332)
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations (2,250,049) (176,540)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 10 November 2021.
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HSBC MSCI JAPAN CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF*

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares

for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note USD UsD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 9,801,047 -
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations (2,250,049) (176,540)
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 3,635,263 9,977,587
Equalisation 2(s) 25,488 -
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the end of the financial year 11,211,749 9,801,047

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 10 November 2021.
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HSBC MSCI JAPAN UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD USD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 2,478,620 1,843,008
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 193,286,029 183,469,707
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) - 41,776
Due from brokers 2(i) 201,253 28,004
Other assets 321,251 243,368
Total assets 196,287,153 185,625,863
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 75,843 -
Other liabilities 75,891 65,365
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 151,734 65,365
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 196,135,419 185,560,498

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI JAPAN UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note USD USD
Income
Dividend income 3,933,434 4,079,333
Other income 47,492 35,761
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss and foreign exchange (33,787,440) 2,065,605
Total (loss)/income (29,806,514) 6,180,699
Expenses
Management fees 3 294,662 373,378
Other expenses 3 8,253 10,750
Total operating expenses 302,915 384,128
Operating (loss)/profit (30,109,429) 5,796,571
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 10 (3,145,556) (3,280,681)
(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax (33,254,985) 2,515,890
Less: Withholding tax (598,261) (618,450)
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (33,853,246) 1,897,440

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI JAPAN UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note USD USD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 185,560,498 240,229,045
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (33,853,246) 1,897,440
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 75,858,287 31,389,461
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (31,900,420) (87,885,408)
Equalisation 2(s) 470,300 (70,040)
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year 196,135,419 185,560,498

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

153



HSBC MSCI KOREA CAPPED UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsSD UsbD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 102,417 75,300
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 46,776,138 75,996,984
Due from brokers 2(i) 84,302 41,222
Other assets 733,518 709,191
Total assets 47,696,375 76,822,697
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 22,055 1,560
Other liabilities 181,605 192,907
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 203,660 194,467
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 47,492,715 76,628,230

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI KOREA CAPPED UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD uUsD
Income
Dividend income 1,465,709 1,269,638
Other income 47,322 17,339
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and foreign exchange (23,561,917) (4,966,181)
Total loss (22,048,886) (3,679,204)
Expenses
Management fees 3 295,654 242,964
Other expenses 3 45,438 34,917
Total operating expenses 341,092 277,881
Operating loss (22,389,978) (3,957,085)
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 10 (380,835) (254,485)
Loss for the financial year after distribution and before
withholding tax (22,770,813) (4,211,570)
Less: Withholding tax (312,703) (279,321)
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (23,083,516) (4,490,891)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI KOREA CAPPED UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note Usb UsbD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 76,628,230 34,684,082
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations (23,083,516) (4,490,891)
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued - 46,408,726
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (6,041,716) -
Equalisation 2(s) (10,283) 26,313
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year 47,492,715 76,628,230

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI MALAYSIA UCITS ETF*

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD USD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) - 30,722
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) - 3,893,219
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) - 984
Due from brokers 2(i) - 10,164
Other assets 329 1,377
Total assets 329 3,936,466
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft 329 -
Other liabilities - 1,712
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 329 1,712
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares - 3,934,754

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statement.

*The sub-fund was closed on 7 December 2022 and was delisted from London Stock Exchange on 12 December 2022.
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HSBC MSCI MALAYSIA UCITS ETF*

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note usD usD
Income
Dividend income 184,790 194,556
Other income - 1,831
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and foreign exchange (505,015) (522,519)
Total loss (320,225) (326,132)
Expenses
Management fees 3 23,262 22,827
Other expenses 3 22,665 7,763
Total operating expenses 45,927 30,590
Operating loss (366,152) (356,722)
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 10 (166,283) (148,222)
Loss for the financial year after distribution and before
withholding tax (532,435) (504,944)
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (532,435) (504,944)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was closed on 7 December 2022 and was delisted from London Stock Exchange on 12 December 2022.
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HSBC MSCI MALAYSIA UCITS ETF*

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note USD USD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 3,934,754 5,110,563
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations (532,435) (504,944)
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 3,606,910 1,386,736
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (7,005,397) (2,064,508)
Equalisation 2(s) (3,832) 6,907
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year - 3,934,754

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was closed on 7 December 2022 and was delisted from London Stock Exchange on 12 December 2022.

159



HSBC MSCI MEXICO CAPPED UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD USD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 171,043 115,931
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 12,848,432 12,608,011
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) - 5,511
Due from brokers 2(i) 23,844 4,809
Other assets 5,513 3,555
Total assets 13,048,832 12,737,817
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 11,595 -
Other liabilities 6,096 5,332
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 17,691 5,332
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 13,031,141 12,732,485

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI MEXICO CAPPED UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD uUsD
Income
Dividend income 478,168 347,042
Other income 286 3,661
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and foreign exchange (766,024) 2,282,747
Total (loss)/income (287,570) 2,633,450
Expenses
Management fees 3 63,265 66,503
Other expenses 3 3,047 5,005
Total operating expenses 66,312 71,508
Operating (loss)/profit (353,882) 2,561,942
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 10 (340,440) (226,020)
(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax (694,322) 2,335,922
Less: Withholding tax (8,980) (19,855)
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (703,302) 2,316,067

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI MEXICO CAPPED UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsbD USD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 12,732,485 12,251,366
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (703,302) 2,316,067
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 3,713,818 5,988,555
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (2,721,680) (7,810,665)
Equalisation 2(s) 9,820 (12,838)
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year 13,031,141 12,732,485

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

162



HSBC MSCI PACIFIC EX JAPAN UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note USD UsD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 2,222,511 1,022,346
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 351,680,801 227,610,322
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 21 10,425
Due from brokers 2(i) 1,072,571 338,307
Other assets 353,767 251,917
Total assets 355,329,671 229,233,317
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 62,041 -
Other liabilities 138,972 74,974
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 201,013 74,974
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 355,128,658 229,158,343

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI PACIFIC EX JAPAN UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD uUsD
Income
Dividend income 10,336,706 8,334,385
Other income 26,692 27,183
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and foreign exchange (15,831,406) 2,249,763
Total (loss)/income (5,468,008) 10,611,331
Expenses
Management fees 3 385,534 353,315
Other expenses 3 87,628 37,048
Total operating expenses 473,162 390,363
Operating (loss)/profit (5,941,170) 10,220,968
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 10 (8,618,721) (6,374,781)
(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax (14,559,891) 3,846,187
Less: Withholding tax (134,713) (101,396)
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (14,694,604) 3,744,791

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI PACIFIC EX JAPAN UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsSD USD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 229,158,343 229,534,043
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (14,694,604) 3,744,791
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 147,072,124 27,320,302
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (8,380,712) (31,359,253)
Equalisation 2(s) 1,973,507 (81,540)
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year 355,128,658 229,158,343

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI RUSSIA CAPPED UCITS ETF?

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD USD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 327,297 352,648
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) - 105,433,655
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) - 38,570
Due from brokers 2(i) - 120,782
Other assets - 1,034,260
Total assets 327,297 106,979,915
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Other liabilities 327,297 153,496
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 327,297 153,496
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares - 106,826,419

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

"The sub-fund was temporarily suspended from trading from 2 March 2022, following Russia’s invasion of Ukraine. The sub-

fund was closed on 24 March 2023 and was delisted from London Stock Exchange on 29 March 2023. .
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HSBC MSCI RUSSIA CAPPED UCITS ETF®

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note USD USD
Income
Dividend income 520,762 7,548,919
Other income 10,930 111,294
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and foreign exchange (152,009,708) 17,298,937
Total (loss)/income (151,478,016) 24,959,150
Expenses
Management fees 3 85,324 654,053
Other expenses 3 24,127 76,259
Total operating expenses 109,451 730,312
Operating (loss)/profit (151,587,467) 24,228,838
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 10 (3,245,330) (6,253,428)
(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax (154,832,797) 17,975,410
Less: Withholding tax (57,227) (743,215)
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (154,890,024) 17,232,195

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

"The sub-fund was temporarily suspended from trading from 2 March 2022, following Russia’s invasion of Ukraine. The sub-
fund was closed on 24 March 2023 and was delisted from London Stock Exchange on 29 March 2023. .
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HSBC MSCI RUSSIA CAPPED UCITS ETF?

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note Usb UsbD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 106,826,419 107,248,113
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (154,890,024) 17,232,195
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 48,730,993 30,840,897
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (925,320) (47,884,691)
Equalisation 2(s) 257,932 (610,095)
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year - 106,826,419

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

AThe sub-fund was temporarily suspended from trading from 2 March 2022, following Russia’s invasion of Ukraine. The sub-
fund was closed on 24 March 2023 and was delisted from London Stock Exchange on 29 March 2023.
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HSBC MSCI SAUDI ARABIA 20/35 CAPPED UCITS ETF?

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note Usb UsSbD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 1,279 1,266
Total assets 1,279 1,266
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Other liabilities 1,279 1,266
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 1,279 1,266

Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

AThe sub-fund was fully redeemed and terminated on 21 September 2020 and was revoked by the Central Bank on 8

December 2021.
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HSBC MSCI SAUDI ARABIA 20/35 CAPPED UCITS ETF?
Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note USD UsD

Income

Dividend income - -
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and foreign exchange - -

Total loss - -

Expenses
Management fees - -
Other expenses - -

Total operating expenses - -

Operating loss - -

Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders - -

Loss for the financial year after distribution and before
withholding tax - -

Less: Withholding tax - -

Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations - -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

"The sub-fund was fully redeemed and terminated on 21 September 2020 and was revoked by the Central Bank on 8
December 2021.
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HSBC MSCI SAUDI ARABIA 20/35 CAPPED UCITS ETF?

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note USD UsD

Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year - -

Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations - -

Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued - -
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares - -

Equalisation 2(s) - -

Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year - -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

AThe sub-fund was fully redeemed and terminated on 21 September 2020 and was revoked by the Central Bank on 8
December 2021.
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HSBC MSCI SOUTH AFRICA CAPPED UCITS ETF?

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD USD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 55 9,977
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) - 5,811,928
Other assets - 52
Total assets 55 5,821,957
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Other liabilities 55 2,916
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 55 2,916
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares - 5,819,041

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

The sub-fund was closed on 21 April 2022 and delisted from London Stock Exchange on 26 April 2022.

172



HSBC MSCI SOUTH AFRICA CAPPED UCITS ETF?

Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD usD
Income
Dividend income 87,106 187,920
Other income - 9,687
Net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and foreign exchange 490,370 (5,917)
Total income 577,476 191,690
Expenses
Management fees 3 10,585 30,581
Other expenses 3 3,101 35,044
Total operating expenses 13,686 65,625
Operating profit 563,790 126,065
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 10 (104,013) (46,880)
Profit for the financial year after distribution and before
withholding tax 459,777 79,185
Less: Withholding tax (8,556) (18,370)
Increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations 451,221 60,815

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

"The sub-fund was closed on 21 April 2022 and delisted from London Stock Exchange on 26 April 2022.
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HSBC MSCI SOUTH AFRICA CAPPED UCITS ETF?

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note USD USD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 5,819,041 3,388,850
Increase in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations 451,221 60,815
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued - 10,010,565
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (6,202,142) (7,634,729)
Equalisation 2(s) (68,120) (6,460)
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year - 5,819,041

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

"The sub-fund was closed on 21 April 2022 and delisted from London Stock Exchange on 26 April 2022.
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HSBC MSCI TAIWAN CAPPED UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note USD uUsD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 94,661 122,399
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 23,056,026 48,421,526
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) - 2,040
Due from brokers 2(i) 17,567 21,977
Other assets 43,908 72,818
Total assets 23,212,162 48,640,760
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 30 -
Other liabilities 19,228 34,814
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 19,258 34,814
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 23,192,904 48,605,946

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI TAIWAN CAPPED UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD uUsD
Income
Dividend income 1,515,760 1,437,917
Other income 22,650 5,155
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and foreign exchange (15,718,709) 4,833,957
Total (loss)/income (14,180,299) 6,277,029
Expenses
Management fees 3 183,834 207,758
Other expenses 3 91,747 106,684
Total operating expenses 275,581 314,442
Operating (loss)/profit (14,455,880) 5,962,587
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 10 (1,132,440) (333,670)
(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax (15,588,320) 5,628,917
Less: Withholding tax (308,713) (296,637)
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (15,897,033) 5,332,280

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI TAIWAN CAPPED UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note Usb UsSD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 48,605,946 20,807,545
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (15,897,033) 5,332,280
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 12,687,457 48,703,289
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (22,002,851) (26,065,753)
Equalisation 2(s) (200,615) (171,415)
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year 23,192,904 48,605,946

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI TURKEY UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note USD uUsD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 138,498 39,186
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 15,426,132 10,437,401
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 3,664 224
Due from brokers 2(i) 18,076 3,048
Other assets 16,043 668
Total assets 15,602,413 10,480,527
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Other liabilities 856,143 4,640
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 856,143 4,640
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 14,746,270 10,475,887

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI TURKEY UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD uUsD
Income
Dividend income 429,425 487,096
Other income 13,964 4,716
Net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and foreign exchange 7,719,448 (3,659,931)
Total income/(loss) 8,162,837 (3,168,119)
Expenses
Management fees 3 59,482 54,681
Other expenses 3 8,208 7,322
Total operating expenses 67,690 62,003
Operating profit/(loss) 8,095,147 (3,230,122)
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 10 (396,970) (339,810)
Profit/(loss) for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax 7,698,177 (3,569,932)
Less: Withholding tax (45,057) (72,843)
Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders
of Redeemable Participating Shares from operations 7,653,120 (3,642,775)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI TURKEY UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note Usb UsSD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 10,475,887 13,131,795
Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations 7,653,120 (3,642,775)
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 3,664,408 6,125,530
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (7,027,465) (5,164,853)
Equalisation 2(s) (19,680) 26,190
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year 14,746,270 10,475,887

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI USA CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF*

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note USD USD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 203,813 85,572
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 24,943,453 16,349,613
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) - 1,119
Due from brokers 2(i) 25,350 8,258
Other assets 28,146 26,589
Total assets 25,200,762 16,471,151
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 9,093 -
Other liabilities 6,623 3,438
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 15,716 3,438
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 25,185,046 16,467,713

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 3 August 2021.
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HSBC MSCI USA CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF*

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note usD usD
Income
Dividend income 394,011 82,459
Othe income 273 -
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and foreign exchange (7,490,514 1,111,630
Total (loss)/income (7,096,230) 1,194,089
Expenses
Management fees 3 32,247 7,784
Other expenses 3 2,069 910
Total operating expenses 34,316 8,694
Operating (loss)/profit (7,130,546) 1,185,395
(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and before
withholding tax (7,130,546) 1,185,395
Less: Withholding tax (56,966) (12,112)
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (7,187,512) 1,173,283

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 3 August 2021.
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HSBC MSCI USA CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF*

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares

for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note usD uUsD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 16,467,713 -
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (7,187,512) 1,173,283
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 30,388,413 15,294,430
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (14,472,719) -
Equalisation 2(s) (10,849) -
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the end of the financial year 25,185,046 16,467,713

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 3 August 2021.
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HSBC MSCI USA ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF*

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022
Note USD

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 16,033
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 11,957,257
Other assets 15,254
Total assets 11,988,544
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Other liabilities 4,538
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares) 4,538
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares 11,984,006

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 17 November 2022.
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HSBC MSCI USA ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF*

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022

Note USD
Income
Dividend income 15,626
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
foreign exchange (326,424)
Total loss (310,798)
Expenses
Management fees 3 3,093
Other expenses 3 121
Total operating expenses 3,214
Operating loss (314,012)
Loss for the financial year after distribution and before withholding tax (314,012)
Less: Withholding tax (1,999)
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares from operations (316,011)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 17 November 2022.
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HSBC MSCI USA ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF*

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares

for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022

Note USD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the
start of the financial year -
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares from operations (316,011)
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 13,332,524
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (1,037,340)
Equalisation 2(s) 4,833
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at
the end of the financial year 11,984,006

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 17 November 2022.
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HSBC MSCI USA UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note Usb UsbD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 244,546 521,099
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 32,917,029 41,266,102
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) - 5,977
Due from brokers 2(i) 29,485 27,525
Other assets 37,939 40,745
Total assets 33,228,999 41,861,448
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 10,850 -
Other liabilities 12,808 14,304
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 23,658 14,304
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 33,205,341 41,847,144

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI USA UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note usD usD
Income
Dividend income 568,297 525,983
Other income 997 331
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss and foreign exchange (8,671,604) 9,076,070
Total (loss)/income (8,102,310) 9,602,384
Expenses
Management fees 3 106,451 115,902
Other expenses 3 355 1,638
Total operating expenses 106,806 117,540
Operating (loss)/profit (8,209,116) 9,484,844
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 10 (353,520) (326,070)
(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax (8,562,636) 9,158,774
Less: Withholding tax (79,167) (72,757)
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (8,641,803) 9,086,017

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI USA UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsbD UsSD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 41,847,144 33,354,877
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (8,641,803) 9,086,017
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued - 10,874,800
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares - (11,461,700)
Equalisation 2(s) - (6,850)
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year 33,205,341 41,847,144

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI WORLD CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF*

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note USD USD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 944,372 887,586
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 160,867,031 145,661,302
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) - 14,256
Due from brokers 2(i) 359,203 44,219
Other assets 211,777 246,367
Total assets 162,382,383 146,853,730
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 61,404 -
Other liabilities 58,469 41,182
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 119,873 41,182
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 162,262,510 146,812,548

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 7 July 2021.
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HSBC MSCI WORLD CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF*

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
UsD UsD
Income
Dividend income 3,025,729 819,048
Other income 573 -
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and foreign exchange (41,837,366) 8,569,593
Total (loss)/income (38,811,064) 9,388,641
Expenses
Management fees 295,951 111,065
Other expenses 30,986 59,161
Total operating expenses 326,937 170,226
Operating (loss)/profit (39,138,001) 9,218,415
(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and before
withholding tax (39,138,001) 9,218,415
Less: Withholding tax (406,609) (109,759)
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (39,544,610) 9,108,656

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 7 July 2021.
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HSBC MSCI WORLD CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF*

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD UsD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 146,812,548 -
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (39,544,610) 9,108,656
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 54,899,958 137,641,050
Equalisation 2(s) 94,614 62,842
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the end of the financial year 162,262,510 146,812,548

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 7 July 2021.

192



HSBC MSCI WORLD ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF*

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022
Note USD

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 39,998
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 14,764,878
Other assets 16,590
Total assets 14,821,466
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Other liabilities 5,828
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares) 5,828
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares 14,815,638

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 30 November 2022.
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HSBC MSCI WORLD ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF*

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022

Note USD
Income
Dividend income 17,879
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
foreign exchange (635,339)
Total loss (617,460)
Expenses
Management fees 3 3,722
Other expenses 3 9,658
Total operating expenses 13,380
Operating loss (630,840)
Loss for the financial year after distribution and before withholding tax (630,840)
Less: Withholding tax (2,261)
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares from operations (633,101)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 30 November 2022.
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HSBC MSCI WORLD ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF*

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares

for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022

Note USD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the
start of the financial year -
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares from operations (633,101)
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 15,448,739
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at
the end of the financial year 14,815,638

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 30 November 2022.
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HSBC MSCI WORLD SMALL CAP ESG UCITS ETF*

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022
Note USD

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 355,276
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 59,405,012
Due from brokers 2(i) 47,011
Other assets 76,862
Total assets 59,884,161
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 10,026
Other liabilities 40,084
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares) 50,110
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares 59,834,051

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 20 October 2022.
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HSBC MSCI WORLD SMALL CAP ESG UCITS ETF*

Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022

Note USD
Income
Dividend income 87,822
Other income 2
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
foreign exchange (1,050,263)
Total loss (962,439)
Expenses
Management fees 3 8,192
Other expenses 3 28,116
Total operating expenses 36,308
Operating loss (998,747)
Loss for the financial year after distribution and before withholding tax (998,747)
Less: Withholding tax (12,508)
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares from operations (1,011,255)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 20 October 2022.
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HSBC MSCI WORLD SMALL CAP ESG UCITS ETF*

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022

Note USD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the
start of the financial year -
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares from operations (1,011,255)
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 60,745,856
Equalisation 2(s) 99,450
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at
the end of the financial year 59,834,051

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 20 October 2022.
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HSBC MSCI WORLD UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note Usb UsSbD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 49,515,547 96,322,812
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 4,516,454,777 4,558,374,176
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 51,005 2,095,200
Due from brokers 2(i) 12,885,781 14,537,588
Other assets 7,468,745 15,935,537
Total assets 4,586,375,855 4,687,265,313
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 3,474,888 -
Other liabilities 1,402,323 52,699,858
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 4,877,211 52,699,858
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 4,581,498,644 4,634,565,455

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI WORLD UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD uUsD
Income
Dividend income 94,932,180 61,388,338
Other Income 1,020,137 435,474
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and foreign exchange (1,002,435,614) 613,916,292
Total (loss)/income (906,483,297) 675,740,604
Expenses
Management fees 3 6,755,135 5,182,542
Other expenses 3 426,801 756,508
Total operating expenses 7,181,936 5,939,050
Operating (loss)/profit (913,665,233) 669,801,554
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 10 (76,541,963) (47,523,503)

(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax

Less: Withholding tax

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of Redeemable Participating Shares from operations

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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(990,207,196) 622,278,051
(11,589,408) (7,285,400)
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HSBC MSCI WORLD UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note USD USD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 4,634,565,455 2,363,615,324
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (1,001,796,604) 614,992,651
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 980,017,712 1,746,478,466
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (34,006,778) (94,023,729)
Equalisation 2(s) 2,718,859 3,502,743
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year 4,581,498,644 4,634,565,455

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MSCI WORLD VALUE ESG UCITS ETF*

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022
Note USD

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 621,347
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 138,076,830
Due from brokers 2(i) 72,246
Other assets 85,826
Total assets 138,856,249
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 21,031
Other liabilities 27,547
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares) 48,578
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares 138,807,671

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 18 October 2022.
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HSBC MSCI WORLD VALUE ESG UCITS ETF*

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022

Note Usb
Income
Dividend income 82,363
Other income 7
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
foreign exchange (4,745,864)
Total loss (4,663,494)
Expenses
Management fees 3 16,030
Other expenses 3 64,310
Total operating expenses 80,340
Operating loss (4,743,834)
Loss for the financial year after distribution and before withholding tax (4,743,834)
Less: Withholding tax (14,463)
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares from operations (4,758,297)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 18 October 2022.
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HSBC MSCI WORLD VALUE ESG UCITS ETF*

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares

for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022

Note USD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the
start of the financial year -
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares from operations (4,758,297)
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 143,192,751
Equalisation 2(s) 373,217
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at
the end of the financial year 138,807,671

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 18 October 2022.
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HSBC MULTI FACTOR WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD USD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 3,856,828 31,596,232
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 1,051,424,908 1,504,765,578
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) - 582,216
Due from brokers 2(i) 2,801,020 5,383,254
Other assets 3,197,670 4,812,285
Total assets 1,061,280,426 1,547,139,565
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 280,086 -
Other liabilities 2,497,470 585,820
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 2,777,556 585,820

Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable

Participating Shares

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MULTI FACTOR WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD usD
Income
Dividend income 37,825,181 27,683,121
Other income 370,655 235,331
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and foreign exchange (313,373,151) 212,075,289
Total (loss)/income (275,177,315) 239,993,741
Expenses
Management fees 3 3,157,536 3,307,109
Other expenses 3 2,827,879 1,329,340
Total operating expenses 5,985,415 4,636,449
Operating (loss)/profit (281,162,730) 235,357,292
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 10 (24,569,150) (21,262,805)
(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax (305,731,880) 214,094,487
Less: Withholding tax (6,403,008) (3,362,745)
Less: Capital gains tax 13 (363,168) (55,939)
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (312,498,056) 210,675,803

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC MULTI FACTOR WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note UsSbD USD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 1,546,553,745 1,111,265,634
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (312,498,056) 210,675,803
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 158,953,518 244,406,927
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (337,156,478) (20,295,059)
Equalisation 2(s) 2,650,141 500,440

Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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1,058,502,870

1,546,553,745




HSBC NASDAQ GLOBAL SEMICONDUCTOR UCITS ETF*

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022

Note USD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 51,584
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 13,856,628
Due from brokers 2(i) 14,851
Other assets 28,069
Total assets 13,951,132
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 3,268
Other liabilities 9,169
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares) 12,437
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares 13,938,695

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 25 January 2022.
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HSBC NASDAQ GLOBAL SEMICONDUCTOR UCITS ETF*

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022

Note USD
Income
Dividend income 255,093
Other income 9
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
foreign exchange (4,608,205)
Total loss (4,353,103)
Expenses
Management fees 3 44,757
Other expenses 3 2,983
Total operating expenses 47,740
Operating loss (4,400,843)
Loss for the financial year after distribution and before withholding tax (4,400,843)
Less: Withholding tax (42,834)
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares from operations (4,443,677)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 25 January 2022.
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HSBC NASDAQ GLOBAL SEMICONDUCTOR UCITS ETF*

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022

Note USD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the
start of the financial year -
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares from operations (4,443,677)
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 18,367,267
Equalisation 2(s) 15,105
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at
the end of the financial year 13,938,695

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 25 January 2022.

210




HSBC S&P 500 UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note Usb UsSD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 27,976,943 26,404,864
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 4,366,037,449 6,128,621,384
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) - 315,553
Due from brokers 2(i) 3,166,930 907,200
Other assets 35,394,367 3,827,896
Total assets 4,432,575,689 6,160,076,897
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 1,353,213 -
Other liabilities 32,106,932 1,034,529
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 33,460,145 1,034,529

Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable

Participating Shares

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements
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6,159,042,368




HSBC S&P 500 UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note USD USD
Income
Dividend income 79,175,596 80,635,964
Other income 222,646 2,556
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss and foreign exchange (1,116,828,984) 1,330,319,668
Total (loss)/income (1,037,430,742) 1,410,958,188
Expenses
Management fees 3 4,349,103 5,122,660
Other expenses 3 47,953 72,855
Total operating expenses 4,397,056 5,195,515
Operating (loss)/profit (1,041,827,798) 1,405,762,673
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 10 (63,316,517) (61,765,475)

(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax

Less: Withholding tax

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of Redeemable Participating Shares from operations

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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(1,105,144,315)

1,343,997,198

(11,099,248)

(11,284,173)

(1,116,243,563)

1,332,713,025




HSBC S&P 500 UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note UsD UsD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 6,159,042,368 4,894,911,943
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (1,116,243,563) 1,332,713,025
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 601,323,554 1,186,892,020
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (1,244,030,250) (1,254,612,650)
Equalisation 2(s) (976,565) (861,970)

Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC UK SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note GBP GBP
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 73,471 30,788
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 16,340,848 5,821,291
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) - 1,515
Due from brokers 2(i) 22,346 14,374
Other assets 60,633 21,023
Total assets 16,497,298 5,888,991
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 191 -
Other liabilities 2,414 592
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 2,605 592
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 16,494,693 5,888,399

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC UK SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note GBP GBP
Income
Dividend income 339,188 187,717
Other income 9,602 -
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and foreign exchange (669,421) 581,532
Total (loss)/income (320,631) 769,249
Expenses
Management fees 3 10,988 5,817
Other expenses 3 74,761 32,558
Total operating expenses 85,749 38,375
Operating (loss)/profit (406,380) 730,874
Finance Cost
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 10 (9,922) -
(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax (416,302) 730,874
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (416,302) 730,874

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC UK SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note GBP GBP
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 5,888,399 1,661,858
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (416,302) 730,874
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 12,347,245 3,471,333
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (1,575,918) -
Equalisation 2(s) 251,269 24,334
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year 16,494,693 5,888,399

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC USA SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note USD USD
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 3,803,906 1,144,013
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 651,657,538 545,473,742
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) - 16,755
Due from brokers 2(i) 555,076 63,365
Other assets 534,255 343,884
Total assets 656,550,775 547,041,759
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 188,495 -
Other liabilities 138,597 107,141
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares) 327,092 107,141
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares 656,223,683 546,934,618

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC USA SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD UsD
Income
Dividend income 12,068,869 4,924,459
Other income 6,262 21
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and foreign exchange (120,792,181) 70,469,347
Total (loss)/income (108,717,050) 75,393,827
Expenses
Management fees 3 747,664 373,697
Other expenses 3 35,602 17,430
Total operating expenses 783,266 391,127
Operating (loss)/profit (109,500,316) 75,002,700
(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax (109,500,316) 75,002,700
Less: Withholding tax (1,739,472) (704,722)
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (111,239,788) 74,297,978

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC USA SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note UsD UsD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 546,934,618 148,430,349
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (111,239,788) 74,297,978
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 289,069,105 330,653,561
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (69,384,283) (8,728,676)
Equalisation 2(s) 844,031 2,281,406
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year 656,223,683 546,934,618

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC WORLD ESG BIODIVERSITY SCREENED EQUITY UCITS ETF*

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022
Note USD

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 31,158
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 4(d) 7,578,194
Due from brokers 2(i) 6,529
Other assets 13,147
Total assets 7,629,028
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 1,634
Other liabilities 3,576
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares) 5,210
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares 7,623,818

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 10 August 2022.

220




HSBC WORLD ESG BIODIVERSITY SCREENED EQUITY UCITS ETF*

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022
uUsD
Income
Dividend income 53,433
Other income 15
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
foreign exchange (607,978)
Total loss (554,530)
Expenses
Management fees 10,242
Other expenses 4,413
Total operating expenses 14,655
Operating loss (569,185)
Loss for the financial year after distribution and before withholding tax (569,185)
Less: Withholding tax (6,556)
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares from operations (575,741)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 10 August 2022.
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HSBC WORLD ESG BIODIVERSITY SCREENED EQUITY UCITS
ETF*

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022
Note USD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the
start of the financial year -
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares from operations (575,741)
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 8,199,559
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at
7,623,818

the end of the financial year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

*The sub-fund was launched on 10 August 2022.
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HSBC ETFs PLC

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note usD usbD
Assets

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(h) 135,422,488 205,340,056
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

- Transferable securities 4(d) 18,085,789,435 19,387,530,019

- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 123,671 3,749,008
Due from brokers 2(i) 28,925,431 28,720,484
Other assets 70,229,601 39,690,532
Total assets 18,320,490,626 19,665,030,099
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft 163,178 -
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

- Financial derivative instruments 4(d) 6,841,011 2,490,728
Due to brokers 2(i) 18,749 -
Other liabilities 47,746,024 63,209,015
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders
of Redeemable Participating Shares) 54,768,962 65,699,743

Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable

Participating Shares

18,265,721,664

19,599,330,356

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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Director
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Feargal Dempsey
Director
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HSBC ETFs PLC

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note USsD UsD
Income
Dividend income 422,351,518 329,802,921
Other income 3,542,188 2,291,611
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss and foreign exchange (4,117,929,812) 2,143,071,741
Total (loss)/income (3,692,036,106) 2,475,166,273
Expenses
Management fees 3 30,375,637 29,815,971
Other expenses 3 11,017,163 7,129,322
Total operating expenses 41,392,800 36,945,293
Operating (loss)/profit (3,733,428,906) 2,438,220,980
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders 2(n),11 (298,201,355) (226,328,972)
(Loss)/Profit for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax (4,031,630,261) 2,211,892,008
Less: Withholding tax (48,430,361) (38,373,871)
Less: Capital gains tax 14 (906,496) (5,017,423)

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to
holders of Redeemable Participating Shares from
operations*

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

(4,080,967,118)

2,168,500,714

*There are no recognised gains or losses arising in the financial year other than the Increase in net assets attributable to

holders of Redeemable Participating Shares from operations of the Company.
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HSBC ETFs PLC

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note UsD USD
Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares at the start of the financial year 19,599,330,356 12,900,773,711
Notional foreign exchange 2(c) (iv) (121,317,310) (52,284,527)
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (4,080,967,118) 2,168,500,714
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares issued 6,929,723,514 6,964,790,445
Redemption of Redeemable Participating Shares (4,078,444,113) (2,394,531,810)
Equalisation 2(s) 17,396,335 12,081,823

Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at the end of the financial year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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HSBC ETFs PLC

Statement of Cash Flow
for the year ended 31 December 2022

Total Total
2022 2021
Note USD USD
Cashflows from operating activities
(Decrease)/Increase in net assets attributable to holders
Redeemable Participating Shares from operations (4,080,967,118) 2,168,500,714
Adjustment for:
Dividend income (422,351,518) (329,802,921)
Interest income (4,847,848) (886,944)
Overdraft Interest expense 175,718 101,979
Withholding Taxes 48,430,361 38,373,871
Capital Gains Tax 14 906,496 5,017,423
Distributions to holders of redeemable shares 298,201,355 226,328,972
Change in financial assets and liabilities:
Net decrease/(increase) in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,236,845,597 (6,628,464,504)
Net increase in financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 4,350,283 2,419,575
Net increase in due from/to brokers (186,199) (4,913,679)
Net increase in other assets (1,899,093) (1,237,821)
Net increase in other liabilities 1,610,909 7,188,941
(2,919,731,057) (4,517,374,394)
Dividend income received 413,627,414 322,425,586
Interest Income received 4,404,497 155,850
Overdraft Interest paid (175,718) (101,979)
Withholding Tax paid (48,430,361) (38,373,871)
Capital Gains Tax paid (906,496) (5,017,423)
Net cash used in operating activities (2,551,211,721) (4,238,286,231)
Cashflows from financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable shares (298,201,355) (226,328,972)
Proceeds from issuance of redeemable shares* 6,929,723,515 6,964,790,445
Redemption of redeemable shares (4,046,470,183) (2,394,531,810)
Equalisation 2(s) 17,396,334 12,081,823
Net cash provided by financing activities 2,602,448,311 4,356,011,486
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 51,236,590 117,725,255
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 205,340,056 139,876,715
Effect on exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents* (121,317,336) (52,261,914)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 135,259,310 205,340,056
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year is comprised of:
Cash at bank 135,422,488 205,340,056
Bank overdraft 2(h), 7 (163,178) -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
*Effect on exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents are now shown in a separate line. Differences in the effect on

exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents against the statement of changes in net assets is due to effects of changes
in cash and non-cash items.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2022

1.

Reporting entity

HSBC ETFs plc (the “Company”) was incorporated in Ireland, as an open-ended investment company
with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds on 27 February 2009 with registration
number 467896. The Company is authorised by the Central Bank as an Undertaking for Collective
Investment in Transferable Securities (“UCITS”) pursuant to the European Communities (Undertakings
for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations, 2011 as amended (the “UCITS
Regulations 2011”) and the Central Bank (Supervision and Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48 (1))
(Undertakings for Collective Investment In Transferable Securities) Regulations 2019 (the “Central
Bank UCITS Regulations”), (together the “UCITS Regulations”).

The Company has been structured as an umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds, in
that the Directors may from time to time, with the prior approval of the Central Bank, issue different
series of shares representing separate portfolio of assets. The assets of each sub-fund will be invested
in accordance with the investment objective and policies applicable to such sub-fund as disclosed in
the Prospectus and the relevant supplement of the Prospectus (the “Supplement”).

The objective of the Company is the collective investment in transferable securities and other liquid
financial assets of capital raised from the public, operating on the principle of risk spreading in
accordance with the UCITS Regulations.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company has 50 sub-funds in operation (31 December 2021: 41).

The Company has 5 inactive sub-funds. HSBC ECONOMIC SCALE WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS
ETF was closed on 18 September 2020 and was delisted from London Stock Exchange on 21
September 2020. HSBC MSCI SOUTH AFRICA CAPPED UCITS ETF was closed on 21 April 2022
and was delisted from London Stock Exchange on 26 April 2022. HSBC MSCI EM FAR EAST UCITS
ETF was closed on 6 July 2022 and was delisted from London Stock Exchange on 11 July 2022. HSBC
MSCI MALAYSIA UCITS ETF was closed on 7 December 2022 and was delisted from London Stock
Exchange on 12 December 2022. HSBC MSCI RUSSIA CAPPED UCITS ETF was suspended from
trading from 2 March 2022 as a result of Russia’s invasion of Ukraine. The sub-fund was closed on 24
March 2023 and was delisted from London Stock Exchange on 29 March 2023.

HSBC MSCI SAUDI ARABIA 20/35 CAPPED UCITS ETF was revoked by the Central Bank on 8
December 2021.

The Company appointed HSBC Investment Funds (Luxembourg) S.A. as Management Company and
HSBC Investment Funds (Luxembourg) S.A. appointed HSBC Global Asset Management (UK) Limited
to act as Investment Manager for all of the sub-funds.

Significant accounting policies
(a) Basis of accounting

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted for use in the European Union, and applied in
accordance with the Companies Act 2014 and the UCITS Regulations.

The comparative figures included in the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares and Statement of Cash Flows relate to the balances at and for
the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of measurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, applying the historical
cost convention, except for the non-derivative financial instruments valued at fair value through
profit or loss and derivative financial instruments which have been valued at fair value through
profit or loss.

HSBC ECONOMIC SCALE WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS ETF was closed on 18 September
2020 and was delisted from London Stock Exchange on 21 September 2020. HSBC MSCI SOUTH
AFRICA CAPPED UCITS ETF was closed on 21 April 2022 and was delisted from London Stock
Exchange on 26 April 2022. HSBC MSCI EM FAR EAST UCITS ETF was closed on 6 July 2022
and was delisted from London Stock Exchange on 11 July 2022. HSBC MSCI MALAYSIA UCITS
ETF was closed on 7 December 2022 and was delisted from London Stock Exchange on 12
December 2022. HSBC MSCI RUSSIA CAPPED UCITS ETF was suspended from trading from 2
March 2022 as a result of Russia’s invasion of Ukraine. The sub-fund was closed on 24 March
2023 and was delisted from London Stock Exchange on 29 March 2023. As a result, the Russian
assets of all sub-funds have been written down to zero. The Financial Statements of these five
sub-funds have been prepared on non-going concern basis.

HSBC MSCI SAUDI ARABIA 20/35 CAPPED UCITS ETF was revoked by the Central Bank on 8
December 2021.

(c) Functional and presentation currency

() Functional and presentation currency of the Company

Items included in the Financial Statements are measured using the primary economic environment
in which the Company operates. This is the US Dollars, which is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it operates (the “functional currency’). The Company's
presentation currency is the same as its functional currency.

(i) Functional and presentation currency of the sub-funds

Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the sub-funds
operate. If indicators of the primary economic environment are mixed, then management uses its
judgement to determine the functional currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects
of the underlying transactions, events and conditions. The majority of each sub-fund’s investments
and transactions are denominated in one of the following: Euro, US Dollar, Pound Sterling or Hong
Kong Dollar. Similarly, subscriptions and redemptions are determined based on the net asset
value, and received and paid in Euro, US Dollar, Pound Sterling or Hong Kong Dollar. The
functional currency of the sub-funds, which is in each case is the Euro, US Dollar, Pound Sterling
or Hong Kong Dollar, is shown in the Statement of Financial Position of each sub-fund. The
Company has also adopted these functional currencies as the presentation currency of each sub-
fund.

(iii) Translation and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at the Statement of Financial
Position date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from translation are included in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Functional and presentation currency (continued)

(d)

(iii) Translation and balances (continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses relating to the financial assets and liabilities carried at fair
value through profit or loss are presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within net
gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and foreign
exchange.

(iv)Presentational translation
For the purpose of presenting the Financial Statements of the Company:

e the Statement of Financial Position of the sub-funds with functional currencies other than
US Dollar were translated to US Dollars at the exchange rate ruling at 31 December 2022;
and

¢ the Statement of Comprehensive Income, proceeds from Redeemable Participating Shares
issued, redemptions of Redeemable Participating Shares, equalisation and Statement of
Cash Flows of the sub-funds with functional currencies other than US Dollar were translated
at the US Dollar average monthly rates where those rates represent a reasonable
approximation of actual rates.

The translation method resulted in a foreign currency translation amount of USD (121,317,310)
(31 December 2021: USD (52,284,527) due to the use of average rates as referred to above and
the movement of closing exchange rates between 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.
This has no impact on the net asset value per share of each of the sub-funds.

Judgement and estimates

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with IFRS as adopted by the EU, requires
the Board to make judgements, estimates and assumptions which affects the application of policies
and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors which are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities which are not readily apparent from
others.

Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the financial
period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Judgements

The Company has concluded that there are no significant judgements within the Financial
Statements. Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have effects
on the amounts recognised in the Financial Statements is included in Note 2 (c i and ii).

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

The determination of what constitutes an active market and what inputs are “observable” requires
judgment by the Directors. Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have
a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the year ending 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 is included in Note 4

(d).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) New standards, amendments and interpretations effective from 1 January 2022

New or amended standards Impact on Financial Statements
Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a The application of the Amendment resulted in
Contract (Amendments to IAS 37) no significant changes to the Company’s

Financial Statements.

Reference to the Conceptual Ffamgwork The application of the Amendment resulted in
with gmgndments to IFRS 3 'Business | qo significant changes to the Company's
Combinations’ Financial Statements.

(f) New standards, amendments and interpretations effective for future reporting financial
periods that have not been early adopted

A number of new standards are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2023 and
earlier application is permitted, however the Company has not adopted the new or amended
standards early in preparing these Financial Statements.

The following amended standards and interpretations are not expected to have a significant impact
on the Company’s Financial Statements:

- IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts - effective 1 January 2023;

- Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current - Amendments to IAS 1 - effective 1
January 2024;

- Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture —
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - no effective date yet;

- Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8) - effective 1 January 2023;

- Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2) —
effective 1 January 2023;

- Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments
to IAS 12 - effective 1 January 2023.

(g) Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(i) Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

On initial recognition the Company classifies financial assets as measured at amortised cost or
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

- itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Business model assessment:

In making an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held,
the Company considers all of the relevant information about how the business is managed,
including:

the documented investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This
includes whether the investment strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets
to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows
through the sale of the assets;

how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's
management;

the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

how the Investment Manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on the
fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons
for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition
are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing recognition of
the assets.

The Company has determined that it has two business models:

Held-to-collect business model: this includes cash and cash equivalents, due from brokers,
due from shareholders, dividend receivable, interest receivable and other receivables.
These financial assets are held to collect contractual cash flow; and

Other business model: this includes transferable securities and financial derivative
instruments. These financial assets are managed and their performance is evaluated, on
a fair value basis, with frequent sales taking place.

None of the Company’s assets qualify for measurement at fair value through other comprehensive

income.

Financial instruments such as cash and cash equivalents, due to/from broker and other short-term
receivables and payables are measured at amortised cost. All other assets of the Company are
debt securities, equity investments and derivatives, and required to be measured at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

(i) Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date - the date on which the
Company commits to purchase or sell the investment. Financial assets and financial liabilities at
FVTPL are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Reclassifications

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company
were to change its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected
financial assets would be reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the
change in the business model.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value and financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial Liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is derivative or it
is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value
and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit loss (“ECL”) associated
with its financial assets carried at amortised cost. Significantly, all of the Company’s financial
assets measured at amortised cost are short term assets. Therefore, as the term length of these
assets is less than one year, the Company in effect measures loss allowances based on their life-
time ECLs. When estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort, such as counterparty credit
ratings.

Write off

The gross carrying amount of financial assets is written off when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.

Amortised Cost Measurement

The 'amortised cost' of a financial instrument is the amount at which the financial asset of financial
liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial
amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss allowance.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments
and receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or liability (or, where appropriate, a
shorter financial period) to the carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates future cash flows considering
all contractual terms of the financial instrument, but not future credit losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

(iii) Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire or it transfers the rights to receive contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risk and rewards of
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or
the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset that is derecognised) and the
consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is
recognised in the profit or loss. Any interest in such transferred financial assets that is created or
retained by the Company is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expired.

(iv) Fair value measurement principles

Fair value' is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has access at that date. The fair
value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

The fair value of financial instruments where quoted in an active market is based on their quoted
market prices at the reporting date without any deduction for estimated future selling costs. The
Company utilises the last traded market price for both financial assets and financial liabilities where
the bid-ask spread is narrow.

If an active quoted market price is not available on a recognised stock exchange or from a
broker/dealer for non-exchange-traded financial instruments, the fair value of the instrument is
estimated using valuation techniques, including use of recent arm’s length market transactions,
reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted
cash flow techniques, option pricing models or any other valuation technique that provides a
reliable estimate of prices obtained in actual market transactions.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash flows are based on
management’s best estimates and the discount rate used is a market rate at the Statement of
Financial Position date applicable to an instrument with similar terms and conditions. Where other
pricing models are used, inputs are based on market data at the Statement of Financial Position
date.

(v) Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial
Position where the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously. Income and expenses are presented on a net basis for gains and losses
from financial instruments at FVTPL and foreign exchange gains and losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

(i)

()

Cash and cash equivalents comprise deposits with banks and highly liquid financial assets with
maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition that are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in their fair value and are used by the Company in management of short-term
commitments, other than cash collateral provided in respect of derivatives. As at 31 December
2022 and at 31 December 2021, all cash and overdraft balances are held with HSBC Bank plc.
Details of overdraft facility are disclosed in Note 7.

Due from/to brokers

Amounts due to/from brokers relate to margin cash and cash collateral which is held by or due to
brokers for open futures contracts and represents the exchange traded futures contracts’ margin
deposits held with brokers. This amount is the minimum deemed by the brokers and counterparties
for collateral requirements and is restricted and reported separately to the unrestricted cash on the
sub-funds’ Statement of Financial Position.

Broker cash balances (restricted cash) held with HSBC Bank plc at 31 December 2022 amounted
to USD 28,906,682 (31 December 2021: USD 28,720,484). None of these balances were
withdrawable. Broker cash balances relate to balances due to/from brokers with respect to open
futures contracts.

Payables for securities purchased/receivables for securities sold

Payables for securities purchased and receivables for securities sold represent purchases and
sales that have been contracted for but not yet delivered by the end of the financial period. These
accounts are measured at amortised cost and presented in the Statement of Financial Position as
part of other assets and other liabilities.

(k) Other assets and other liabilities

0]

In the Statement of Financial Position, receivables for securities sold, due from shareholders,
dividend receivable, interest receivable and any other miscellaneous receivable amounts are
included in other assets figure. Other liabilities figure in the Statement of Financial Position is
consisted of payables for securities purchased, due to shareholders, management fee payable
and other miscellaneous payable amounts.

Income

Interest income is shown gross of any non-recoverable withholding taxes and is disclosed under
“Net gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and foreign exchange”
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Interest income is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for all instruments and
financial assets at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Dividend income on financial assets at FVTPL is credited to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income on the date on which the relevant securities are listed as “ex-dividend”. Dividend income,
which is disclosed separately in the Statements of Comprehensive Income, is shown gross of any
non-recoverable withholding taxes.

Stock lending commission income from securities lending transactions is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income under other income.

(m) Expenses

Expenses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on an accrual basis and as
the related services are performed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n) Dividend Distributions

Distributions to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares are recorded in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income as finance costs when declared (i.e. the decision has been through the
final required approval stage and cannot be reversed).

(o) Redeemable Participating Shares

Redeemable Participating Shares are redeemable at the shareholder’s option and are classified
as financial liabilities. The Redeemable Participating Shares can be redeemed at any time for cash
equal to a proportionate share of a particular sub-fund’s net asset value.

(p) Withholding Tax Expense

The Company may be liable to taxes (including withholding taxes) in countries other than Ireland
on dividend, interest income earned and capital gains arising on its investments. Income that is
subject to such tax is recognised gross of the taxes and the corresponding withholding tax is
recognised as tax expense. The Company may not be able to benefit from a reduction in the rate
of such foreign tax by virtue of the double taxation treaties between Ireland and other countries.
The amount of tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be
paid or received that reflects uncertainty related to withholding taxes. The Company may not,
therefore, be able to reclaim any foreign withholding tax suffered by it in particular countries.

(q) Capital Gains Tax

(r)

Realised and unrealised gains on disposals of assets of the Company may be subject to capital
gains tax imposed by an assets' country of origin. Tax on such realised and unrealised gains is
recognised as a tax expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Income tax expense
Interpretation 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The IFRS Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) published a new interpretation IFRIC 23
‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’, specifying how entities should reflect uncertainty in
accounting for income taxes. IFRIC 23 addresses the previous lack of guidance in IAS 12 ‘Income
Taxes’, which specifies how to account for current and deferred tax, but not how to reflect the
effects of uncertainty. The Management Company evaluated the effect of IFRIC 23 and deemed
that it did not have a significant impact on the Financial Statements since substantially all of the
Company’s financial instruments are, in the opinion of the Management Company, not subject to
material uncertain tax treatment.

Under current law and practice the Company qualifies as an investment undertaking as defined in
Section 739B of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended. As such, it is not chargeable to
Irish tax on its income or gains.

However, Irish tax may arise on the happening of a “chargeable event’. A chargeable event
includes any distribution payments to shareholders or any encashment, redemption, cancellation
or transfer of shares.

No Irish tax will arise on the Company regarding chargeable events.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)

()

(t)

Income tax expense (continued)

Interpretation 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (continued)

A Chargeable Event does not include:

(i)  any transaction in relation to Shares held in a recognised clearing system;

(i)  any exchange by a Shareholder effected by way of a bargain made at arm’s length by the
Company, of Shares in the Company for other Shares in the Company;

(i)  certain transfers of Shares between spouses or civil partners and former spouses or former
civil partners;

(iv) an exchange of Shares arising on a qualifying amalgamation or reconstruction of the
Company with another Irish investment undertaking; or

(v) the cancellation of Shares in the Company arising from an exchange in relation to a scheme
of amalgamation.

Income, interest and capital gains (if any) received on investments made by the Company may be
subject to withholding taxes imposed by the country from which the investment income/gains are
received and such taxes may not be recoverable by the Company or its shareholders.

Equalisation

Equalisation is operated in connection with the issue and redemption of shares. It represents the
income element included in the price for the issue and redemption of shares. Equalisation
arrangements are intended to ensure that the income per share is not affected by changes in the
number of shares in issue during the financial period.

The buying/selling price of each share contains an amount called equalisation. This is equivalent
to the net income less expenses accrued in the Company at the time of purchase/sale. For
distributing sub-funds, equalisation attributable to subscriptions in the sub-funds form part of the
distributions to those shareholders who subscribed to the sub-funds during the distribution period.
The equalisation element of the distributions is not reported to shareholders separately from the
net income distributed. The equalisation attributable to redemptions from the respective sub-funds,
if any, is disclosed in the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares.

Transaction costs

Transaction costs are incremental costs, which are separately identifiable and directly attributable
to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or financial liability. Transaction costs
include fees and commissions paid to brokers and counterparties. Transaction costs are expensed
on an accrual basis and are recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as part of other
expenses. Transaction costs incurred during the financial period by each sub-fund are detailed in
Note 3(e).

(u) Securities lending

Securities which are lent out as part of the securities lending agreement continue to be recognised
as financial assets and liabilities in the balance sheet. Securities lending constitutes temporary
transfer of ownership and would not have any impact on the sub-funds holdings in the Statement
of Financial Position when securities are lent. Further information on securities lending and the
breakdown of this amount is detailed in Note 8 to the Financial Statements.
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3.

Fees and expenses

(a) Management fee

The Company has a fee structure where, in respect of each of the sub-funds, all of the fees and
expenses (except for transaction costs and taxes or duty charges for portfolio re-balancing that
are paid separately out of the assets of the relevant sub-funds) are paid as one single fee. This is
referred to as the “Total Expense Ratio” or “TER” in the Prospectus and is being disclosed in these
Financial Statements as the “Management fee”.

The Management fee is paid to the Management Company, and the Management Company is
then responsible for the payment of all other operational expenses of the Company. This includes,
but is not limited to, fees and expenses of the Directors, the Management Company, Investment
Manager, distributors, the Depositary, the Administrator, the Registrar and Transfer Agent, the
Auditors, the Secretary and such other person as the Management Company may determine at its
discretion, and the operating administrative and services expenses as referred to below.

The Management fee covers all of the fees and expenses, except transaction charges and taxes
or duty charges for portfolio re-balancing (which are classified as "other expenses" in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income), all of which will be paid separately out of the assets of the
relevant sub-fund.

The following list is indicative but not exhaustive of the types of services that the Management fee
covers:

(i) all establishment costs of the Company;

(i) the cost of listing and maintaining a listing of shares on any stock exchange;

(iii) registration fees;

(iv) financial index licencing fees;

(v) the cost of convening and holding Directors’ and shareholders’ meetings;

(vi) professional fees and expenses for legal, auditing and other consulting services;

(vii) the costs and expenses of preparing, printing, publishing and distributing prospectuses,
supplements, annual and semi-annual reports and other documents to current and
prospective shareholders;

(viii) the costs and expenses of any investment adviser appointed by the Investment Manager;

(ix) for currency hedged classes, fees to third parties to cover the execution of the share class
currency hedging policy. An additional fee for this service will apply to currency hedged
classes as detailed in the relevant sub-fund’s Supplement; and

(x) such other costs and expenses (excluding non-recurring and extraordinary costs and
expenses) as may arise from time to time and which have been approved by the Directors as
necessary or appropriate for the continued operation of the Company or of any sub-fund.

(xi) interest on the overdraft facility as per note 7.

The Management fee is calculated and accrued daily at a rate ranging from 0.05% to 0.60% from
the net asset value (Total Expense Ratio section) of each sub-fund and payable monthly in arrears.
The Management fee for each sub-fund is decided based on, among other things, its investment
strategy and return potential. Management fee of each sub-fund of the Company is listed in the
relevant sub-fund’s Supplement.

If any of the sub-funds’ expenses exceeded the Management fee outlined above in relation to
operating the funds, the Management Company will cover any shortfall from its own assets.

The Management fee is not expected to exceed the amounts disclosed above. However, the
Directors are of the view that if an increase in a sub-fund’s Management fee is required, that
decision will require prior approval by shareholders of the relevant sub-fund, which must be
approved by a majority vote at a meeting of shareholders or by written resolution of all
shareholders.
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3.

Fees and expenses (continued)

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Management fee (continued)

The Management fee for the financial year amounted to USD 30,375,637 (31 December 2021:
USD 29,815,971) of which USD 2,686,486 (31 December 2021: USD 3,775,847) was payable at
the financial year end.

Administrator's and Depositary’s Fees

The Management Company is responsible for the payment to the Administrator and Depositary
out of the Management fee, an annual fee, payable monthly in arrears at a rate ranging from 0.50
basis points to 3.25 basis points of the net monthly average assets of the sub-funds, subject to a
minimum flat annual fee of EUR 1,070,000. The Administrator's and Depositary’s fee payable by
the Management Company out of the Management fee for the financial year ended 31 December
2022 is USD 5,778,699 (31 December 2021: USD 5,489,935) of which USD 987,445 (31
December 2021: USD 2,022,057) is payable at 31 December 2022.

Directors’ fees and expenses

The maximum amount of each Director’s fees is Euro 50,000 per annum per Director and will not
exceed that amount without the approval of the Board (with each Director abstaining on any
resolution relating to their own remuneration).

The Directors’ fees which are paid out of Management fee for the financial year ended 31
December 2022 amounted to USD 131,444 (31 December 2021: USD 119,809). The Directors’
out of pocket expenses for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 was USD 712 (31
December 2021: USD Nil).

Auditor’s fees

Fees for the statutory auditors, KPMG Ireland, in respect of the financial year 31 December 2022,
relate entirely to the audit of the Financial Statements of the Company. Auditors’ fees for the
financial year end amounted to USD 288,682 (31 December 2021: USD 203,524) excluding VAT.
The Auditors out of pocket expenses excluding VAT for the year end amounted to USD 6,387 (31
December 2021: USD 5,928). All payments for the statutory auditor are met from the TER charge
detailed above and levied by the Management Company.

Transaction costs

The table below provides an analysis of the total transaction costs on the purchase and sale of
transferable securities such as equities and derivative instruments for each of the Company’s sub-
funds. For the year ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

31 December 31 December

Sub-Funds 2022 2021
HSBC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF uUSD 527,418 usD 97,829
HSBC BLOOMBERG EUR SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND UCITS ETF* EUR 76 -
HSBC BLOOMBERG GLOBAL SUSTAINABLE AGGREGATE 1-3 YEAR BOND

UCITS ETF** USD 238 -
HSBC BLOOMBERG USD SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND UCITS ETF*** USD 120 -
HSBC DEVELOPED WORLD SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF USD 44,257 USD 58,594

HSBC ECONOMIC SCALE WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS ETF**** -

*The sub-fund was launched on 16 November 2021 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 17 November 2021.
**The sub-fund was launched on 13 January 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 14 January 2022.
***The sub-fund was launched on 18 November 2021 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 19 November 2021.
****The sub-fund was redeemed on 18 September 2020 and terminated on 21 September 2020.
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3. Fees and expenses (continued)

(e) Transaction costs (continued)

31 December

31 December

Sub-Funds 2022 2021
HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF UsD 278,000 USD 213,532
HSBC EURO STOXX 50 UCITS ETF EUR 335,889 EUR 413,996
HSBC EUROPE EX UK SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF* EUR 9,142 -
HSBC EUROPE SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF EUR 110,421 EUR 139,621
HSBC FTSE 100 UCITS ETF GBP 819,110 GBP 224,887
HSBC FTSE 250 UCITS ETF GBP 40,255 GBP 66,633
HSBC FTSE EPRA/NAREIT DEVELOPED UCITS ETF USD 284,689 USD 84,458
HSBC HANG SENG TECH UCITS ETF HKD 6,060,875 HKD 5,485,322
HSBC JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF USD 15,649 uUsD 10,238
HSBC MSCI AC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS

ETF** USD 24,379 -
HSBC MSCI AC FAR EAST EX JAPAN UCITS ETF USD 228,243 USD 481,069
HSBC MSCI BRAZIL UCITS ETF uUsSD 21,160 USD 6,267
HSBC MSCI CANADA UCITS ETF USD 25,091 USD 37,658
HSBC MSCI CHINA A UCITS ETF USD 45,410 USD 61,755
HSBC MSCI CHINA UCITS ETF USD 1,809,678 USD 463,471
HSBC MSCI EM FAR EAST UCITS ETF** USD 48,119 USD 18,279
HSBC MSCI EM LATIN AMERICA UCITS ETF UsSD 2,824 USD 3,427
HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS

ETF**** USD 30,568 -
HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS SMALL CAP ESG UCITS ETF***** USD 20,254 -
HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF USD 1,086,588  USD 1,054,621
HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS VALUE ESG UCITS ETF* UsD 37,950 -
HSBC MSCI EUROPE CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF™ EUR 3,126 EUR 24,930
HSBC MSCI EUROPE ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF™ EUR 20,982 -
HSBC MSCI EUROPE UCITS ETF EUR 36,784 EUR 11,728
HSBC MSCI INDONESIA UCITS ETF USD 145,450 USD 57,012
HSBC MSCI JAPAN CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF™M™ USD 494 USD 628
HSBC MSCI JAPAN UCITS ETF USD 8,253 USD 10,750
HSBC MSCI KOREA CAPPED UCITS ETF USD 45,330 USD 34,485
HSBC MSCI MALAYSIA UCITS ETFMAW USD 22,665 USD 7,763
HSBC MSCI MEXICO CAPPED UCITS ETF USD 3,047 USD 5,005
HSBC MSCI PACIFIC EX JAPAN UCITS ETF USD 87,628 USD 37,048
HSBC MSCI RUSSIA CAPPED UCITS ETF* USD 20,844 USD 52,933

*The sub-fund was launched on 21 April 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 22 April 2022.
**The sub-fund was launched on 11 April 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 12 April 2022.
***The sub-fund was closed on 6 July 2022 and delisted from London Stock Exchange on 11 July 2022.
****The sub-fund was launched on 7 April 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 8 April 2022.
*exxThe sub-fund was launched on 3 November 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 4 November 2022,
The sub-fund was launched on 6 December 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 8 December 2022.

MThe sub-fund was launched on 5 August 2021 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 6 August 2021.

MAThe sub-fund was launched on 5 December 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 6 December 2022.
MMThe sub-fund was launched on 10 November 2021 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 11 November 2021
AMAMThis sub-fund was closed on 7 December 2022 and was delisted from London Stock Exchange on 12

December 2022.

*\The sub-fund was temporarily suspended from trading from 2 March 2022, following Russia’s invasion of Ukraine. The
sub-fund was closed on 24 March 2023 and was delisted from London Stock Exchange on 29 March 2023.
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3. Fees and expenses (continued)

(e) Transaction costs (continued)

(f)

31 December

31 December

Sub-Funds 2022 2021
HSBC MSCI SOUTH AFRICA CAPPED UCITS ETF* USD 3,063 USD 35,044
HSBC MSCI TAIWAN CAPPED UCITS ETF USD 91,747 USD 106,572
HSBC MSCI TURKEY UCITS ETF USD 8,208 UsD 7,322
HSBC MSCI USA CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF** USD 2,069 USD 910
HSBC MSCI USA ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF*** USD 121 -
HSBC MSCI USA UCITS ETF USD 355 USD 1,638
HSBC MSCI WORLD CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF**** USD 30,986 USD 59,161
HSBC MSCI WORLD ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF? USD 9,658 -
HSBC MSCI WORLD SMALL CAP ESG UCITS ETF™ USD 28,116 -
HSBC MSCIWORLD UCITS ETF USD 426,505 USD 756,403
HSBC MSCI WORLD VALUE ESG UCITS ETFM™ USD 64,310 -
HSBC MULTI FACTOR WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS ETF USD 1,223,169 USD 1,325,695
HSBC NASDAQ GLOBAL SEMICONDUCTOR UCITS ETFMM USD 2,983 -
HSBC S&P 500 UCITS ETF USD 47,953 USD 72,855
HSBC UK SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF GBP 74,761 GBP 32,558
HSBC USA SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF USD 35,602 UsD 17,430
HSBC WORLD ESG BIODIVERSITY SCREENED EQUITY UCITS ETFM™M USD 4,413 -

Total*

uUSD 9,310,388

UsD 7,027,737

*The sub-fund was closed on 21 April 2022 and delisted from London Stock Exchange on 26 April 2022.

**The sub-fund was launched on 3 August 2021 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 4 August 2021.

***The sub-fund was launched on 17 November 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 18 November 2022,
****The sub-fund was launched on 7 July 2021 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 8 July 2021.
The sub-fund was launched on 30 November 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 1 December 2022.
MThe sub-fund was launched on 20 October 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 21 October 2022.
AMAThe sub-fund was launched on 18 October 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 19 October 2022.
AMAThe sub-fund was launched on 25 January 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 26 January 2022.
AMAMThe sub-fund was launched on 10 August 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 11 August 2022.
~*Average exchange rates were used to translate functional currencies of the sub-funds in to presentation currency.

Dividend Purification

The Shariah Committee has issued guidelines to quantify the annual amount of income of the Company
that should be donated to charity, being derived from companies eligible for investment pursuant to the
investment objective, policy and restrictions set out in the Supplement for each sub-fund, but that are
engaged in an activity or activities of a marginal nature which is or are proscribed by the Shariah
Committee and which is not or are not screened out by the investment restrictions. Such amount will
be calculated on an annual basis, based on the purification ratios, expressed as a percentage of each
company’s dividend. The purification ratios will be provided by the relevant index provider for each sub-
fund, for all companies in which the sub-funds have invested. For companies, whose purification ratios
are not provided by the index provider, purification ratios will be calculated based on the financial
information of these companies received from the Investment Manager. Such income will be disbursed
as a charitable donation to one or more worthy causes approved by the Shariah Committee.

For the year ended ended 31 December 2022, incurred dividend purification was EUR 18.61 in HSBC
MSCI EUROPE ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF, USD 49.48 in HSBC MSCI USA ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF
and USD 75.52. in HSBC MSCI WORLD ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF. As the amounts are negligible,
they will be accrued and paid for the year ended 31 December 2023. The Shariah Committee will issue
an annual Shariah compliance certificate for the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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4.

Risks associated with financial instruments

The Company’s investment activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including price
risk, currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s overall risk
management process focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to mitigate potential
adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.

Certain of the Company’s sub-funds will seek to replicate the performance of a financial index while
minimising as far as possible the tracking error between the sub-funds’ performance and that of the
relevant financial index. Certain sub-funds will seek to achieve this objective by holding a portfolio of
securities that constitute the respective financial index.

The securities in which certain of the sub-funds invest will be traded or dealt in on a regulated market
(a multilateral system operated and/or managed by a market operator, which brings together or
facilitates the bringing together of multiple third-party buying and selling interests in financial instruments
in the system).

The sub-funds also have Derivative Instruments (“FDIs”) for efficient portfolio management of its assets
and for investment purposes. Efficient portfolio management means investment decisions involving
transactions that are entered into for one or more of the following specific aims: the reduction of risk;
the reduction of cost; or the generation of additional capital or income for the sub-funds with an
appropriate level of risk, taking into account the risk profile of the sub-funds and the general provisions
of the UCITS Regulations. In particular, FDIs may be used for the purpose of minimising tracking error
i.e. the risk that the sub-funds return varies from the respective benchmark financial index.

Changes to the composition and/or weighting of the securities constituting the financial index which is
tracked by a sub-fund will ordinarily require that sub-fund to make corresponding adjustments or
rebalancing to its investments in order to seek to track the financial index. The Investment Manager will
accordingly seek to rebalance the composition and/or weighting of the securities held by a sub-fund
from time to time to the extent practicable and possible to conform to changes in the compaosition and/or
weighting of securities that constitute the respective financial index. Other re-balancing measures may
be taken from time to time to seek to maintain the correspondence between the performance of a sub-
fund and the performance of the financial index.

The Company uses the commitment approach to calculate the sub-funds’ global exposure. The
commitment approach is a methodology which aggregates the underlying market or notional values of
derivatives to determine the exposure of the sub-fund to derivatives.

The Management Company employs a risk management process in respect of each sub-fund which
enables it, together with the Investment Manager, to accurately measure, monitor and manage the
various risks associated with FDI. A statement of this risk management process has been prepared and
submitted to the Central Bank in accordance with the Central Bank requirements. Any FDI not included
in the risk management process in respect of the Company will not be utilised until such time as a
revised risk management process has been submitted to the Central Bank. The Management Company
will, on request, provide supplementary information to shareholders relating to the risk management
methods employed including the quantitative limits that are applied and any recent developments in the
risk and yield characteristics of the main categories of investment.

When using FDI as part of efficient portfolio management techniques and instruments, a relevant sub-
fund may incur operational costs and such costs are paid by the relevant sub-fund to the counterparty
with which the Company has entered into a relevant agreement. The Company ensures that all
revenues arising from efficient portfolio management techniques, net of direct and indirect costs, are
returned to the relevant sub-fund. The exposure obtained through efficient portfolio management and
the identity of the counterparties are in Note 5.

The Company does not currently use total return swaps.
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4. Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates
or equity and credit spreads will affect the sub-funds’ income or the fair value of its holdings of
financial instruments.

(i) Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether caused by factors
specific to an individual investment, its issuer or all factors affecting all instruments traded in the
market. The Company’s financial instruments principally comprise equity investments. The
Investment Manager attempts to mitigate this risk through the construction of a well-diversified
portfolio in accordance with the respective sub-fund’s investment objective. In accordance with the
Company’s policies and procedures, the Investment Manager monitors the Company’s overall
other price risk on a daily basis, and the Board reviews it on a quarterly basis.

The investment concentrations within the portfolio for each sub-fund are disclosed in the Schedule
of Investments by investment type.

The below table provides an analysis of the effect on net assets and profit/(loss) of the respective
sub-funds due to a change in market indices, with all other variables held constant.

Actual Actual
Actual Actual changein changein
change in changein net assets net assets
benchmark benchmark and and
Benchmark index index profit/(loss) profit/(loss)
Sub-Funds Index*" 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2022 2021 2022 2021
FTSE Asia Pacific ex
HSBC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN Japan ESG Low
SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF Carbon Select Index (15.70%) 0.58% (61,968,397) 516,963
Bloomberg MSCI Euro
HSBC BLOOMBERG EUR Corporate SRI Carbon
SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND ESG-Weighted (EUR
UCITS ETF* Unhedged) (13.47%) (0.29%)"  (4,612,684) (99,647)
Bloomberg MSCI
HSBC BLOOMBERG GLOBAL Global Aggregate 1-3
SUSTAINABLE AGGREGATE 1-3 Year SRI Carbon ESG-
YEAR BOND UCITS ETF** Weighted Index (7.91%) N/A  (6,214,991) N/A
Bloomberg MSCI US
HSBC BLOOMBERG USD Corporate SRI Carbon
SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND ESG-Weighted (USD
UCITS ETF* Unhedged) (15.65%) 0.14%"  (8,369,842) 68,216
FTSE Developed ESG
HSBC DEVELOPED WORLD Low Carbon Select
SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF Index (17.14%) 22.02% (21,469,011) 24,428,700
HSBC ECONOMIC SCALE
WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS HSBC Economic Scale
8 Index Worldwide N/A N/A N/A N/A

*The sub-fund was launched on 16 November 2021 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 17 November 2021.
**The sub-fund was launched on 13 January 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 14 January 2022.
***The sub-fund was launched on 18 November 2021 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 19 November 2021.
****The sub-fund was redeemed on 18 September 2020 and terminated on 21 September 2020.

"The sub-fund launched during the year. Hence, the figure shows the change in benchmark since inception.
*References to benchmarks are for illustrative purposes only. There is no guarantee that a sub-fund will track or replicate its
benchmark.
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4. Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(@) Market risk (continued)

(i) Price risk (continued)

Sub-Funds

HSBC EMERGING MARKET
SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

HSBC EURO STOXX 50 UCITS ETF

HSBC EUROPE EX UK

SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF*

HSBC EUROPE SUSTAINABLE
EQUITY UCITS ETF

HSBC FTSE 100 UCITS ETF

HSBC FTSE 250 UCITS ETF

HSBC FTSE EPRA/NAREIT
DEVELOPED UCITS ETF

HSBC HANG SENG TECH UCITS
ETF

HSBC JAPAN SUSTAINABLE
EQUITY UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI AC ASIA PACIFIC EX
JAPAN CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED
UCITS ETF**

HSBC MSCI AC FAR EAST EX
JAPAN UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI BRAZIL UCITS ETF
HSBC MSCI CANADA UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI CHINA A UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI CHINA UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI EM FAR EAST UCITS
ETF

HSBC MSCI EM LATIN AMERICA
UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS
CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS
ETF**

Benchmark
Index*»

FTSE Emerging ESG
Low Carbon Select
Index

EURO STOXX® 50
Index

FTSE Developed
Europe ex UK ESG
Low Carbon Select
Index

FTSE Developed
Europe ESG Low
Carbon Select Index

FTSE 100® Index

FTSE 250® Index

FTSE EPRA/NAREIT
Developed® Index

Hang Seng Tech Index

FTSE Japan ESG Low
Carbon Select Index

MSCI AC Asia Pacific
ex Japan Climate Paris
Aligned Index

MSCI AC Far East ex
Japan Index

MSCI Brazil Index
MSCI Canada Index
MSCI China A
Inclusion Index

MSCI China Index

MSCI EM Far East
Index

MSCI EM Latin
America Index

MSCI Emerging
Markets Climate Paris
Aligned Index

Actual
change in
benchmark
index

31 Dec

2022
(17.98%)

(9.49%)

(3.79%)

(11.70%)
4.70%
(17.39%)

(25.09%)
(26.67%)

(15.11%)

(10.91%)

(21.57%)
14.15%
(12.87%)

(25.90%)
(21.93%)

N/A

8.92%

(13.75%)

Actual

Actual changein
change in net assets
benchmark and
index profit/(loss)

31 Dec 31 Dec
2021 2022
0.98% (37,130,049)
23.34% (35,437,895)
N/A (288,071)
18.82%  (6,710,603)
18.44% 22,328,403
16.90%  (8,046,075)

26.09% (150,043,546)
(32.47%) (690,850,829)

4.09% (23,792,414)

N/A  (2,245,348)

(8.42%)
(17.65%)
25.98%

(85,501,938)
3,259,890
(3,901,597)

3.20% (15,209,501)
(21.72%) (170,613,935)

(9.27%) N/A
(8.09%) 1,808,586
N/A  (2,808,867)

*The sub-fund was launched on 21 April 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 22 April 2022.
**The sub-fund was launched on 11 April 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 12 April 2022.
***The sub-fund was launched on 7 April 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 8 April 2022.

"The sub-fund launched during the year. Hence, the figure shows the change in benchmark since inception.
*"References to benchmarks are for illustrative purposes only. There is no guarantee that a sub-fund will track or replicate its

benchmark.
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Actual
change in
net assets

and
profit/(loss)

31 Dec

2021
1,299,744

108,560,128

N/A

12,967,900
68,590,809
9,804,165

65,909,706
(596,218,309)

5,242,019

N/A

(43,633,865)
(7,732,409)
218,919,237

1,871,751
(125,271,172)

(2,466,930)

(1,663,364)

N/A



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

4. Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(@) Market risk (continued)

(i) Price risk (continued)

Sub-Funds

HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS
SMALL CAP ESG UCITS ETF*
HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS
UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS
VALUE ESG UCITS ETF**

HSBC MSCI EUROPE CLIMATE
PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF***

HSBC MSCI EUROPE ISLAMIC ESG Islamic Universal ESG

UCITS ETF****

HSBC MSCI EUROPE UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI INDONESIA UCITS ETF MSCI Indonesia Index

HSBC MSCI JAPAN CLIMATE
PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF*****

HSBC MSCI JAPAN UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI KOREA CAPPED
UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI MALAYSIA UCITS ETF
HSBC MSCI MEXICO CAPPED
UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI PACIFIC ex JAPAN
UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI RUSSIA CAPPED
UCITS ETF™

HSBC MSCI SOUTH AFRICA
CAPPED UCITS ETF™*

HSBC MSCI TAIWAN CAPPED
UCITS ETF

Actual
changein
benchmark
Benchmark index
Index*” 31 Dec
2022
100% MSCI Emerging
Markets Small Cap
SRI ESG Universal
Select Index 6.63%
MSCI Emerging
Markets Index (20.09%)
100% MSCI Emerging
Markets Value SRI
ESG Target Select
Index 0.36%
MSCI Europe Climate
Paris Aligned Index (13.33%)
100% MSCI Europe
Screened Index (4.02%)
MSCI Europe Index (9.49%)
3.59%
MSCI Japan Climate
Paris Aligned Index (23.65%)
MSCI Japan Index (16.65%)
MSCI Korea Capped
Index (29.05%)
MSCI Malaysia Index N/A
MSCI Mexico Capped
Index (2.02%)
MSCI Pacific ex Japan
Index (5.94%)
MSCI Russia Capped
Index N/A
MSCI South Africa
Capped Index N/A
MSCI Taiwan Capped
Index (28.99%)

Actual Actual
change in changein net
benchmark assets and
index profit/(loss)
31 Dec 31 Dec
2021 2022
N/A 1,334,035
(2.54%) (326,822,972)
N/A 135,942
5.05%" (1,656,992)
N/A (365,919)
25.13% (11,223,066)
2.11% 3,677,330
(2.12%)~  (2,626,852)
1.71% (32,160,521)
(8.03%) (13,584,192)
(6.24%) N/A
22.53% (259,372)
4.68% (20,900,217)
19.01% N/A
4.43% N/A
28.10%  (6,684,916)

*The sub-fund was launched on 3 November 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 4 November 2022.
**The sub-fund was launched on 6 December 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 8 December 2022.
***The sub-fund was launched on 5 August 2021 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 6 August 2021.

****The sub-fund was launched on 5 December 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 6 December 2022.

Actual
change in
net assets

and
profit/(loss)

31 Dec

2021

N/A

(30,971,853)

N/A

730,825

N/A
31,850,670
1,310,987
(207,349)
3,135,296
(6,103,256)
(242,969)
2,842,343
10,654,580
20,049,993
257,514

13,609,342

*exxThe sub-fund was launched on 10 November 2021 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 11 November 2021.

~The sub-fund was temporarily suspended from trading from 2 March 2022, following Russia’s invasion of Ukraine. The sub-fund
was closed on 24 March 2023 and was delisted from London Stock Exchange on 29 March 2023.
~*The sub-fund was closed on 21 April 2022 and delisted from London Stock Exchange on 26 April 2022.

"The sub-fund launched during the year. Hence, the figure shows the change in benchmark since inception.
*References to benchmarks are for illustrative purposes only. There is no guarantee that a sub-fund will track or replicate its

benchmark.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

4. Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)
(@) Market risk (continued)

(i) Price risk (continued)

Actual
Actual Actual Actual change in
changein change in changeinnet net assets
benchmark benchmark  assets and and
Benchmark index index profit/(loss) profit/(loss)
Sub-Funds Index*” 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2022 2021 2022 2021
HSBC MSCI TURKEY UCITS ETF MSCI Turkey Index 90.42% (28.35%) 13,951,056  (2,959,149)
HSBC MSCI USA CLIMATE PARIS MSCI USA Climate
ALIGNED UCITS ETF* Paris Aligned Index (23.64%) 7.78%"  (5,894,946) 1,272,087
100% MSCI USA
HSBC MSCI USA ISLAMIC ESG Islamic ESG Universal
UCITS ETF** Screened Index (2.27%) N/A (270,835) N/A
HSBC MSCI USA UCITS ETF MSCI USA Index (19.85%) 26.45%  (6,530,271) 10,918,356
HSBC MSCI WORLD CLIMATE MSCI World Climate
PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF*** Paris Aligned Index (21.57%) 8.23%" (34,686,438) 11,989,098

100% MSCI World
HSBC MSCI WORLD ISLAMIC ESG Islamic Universal ESG
UCITS ETF**** Screened Index (4.09%) N/A (603,863) N/A

100% MSCI World
HSBC MSCI WORLD SMALL CAP Small Cap SRI ESG
ESG UCITS ETF****=* Leaders Select Index 9.23% N/A 5,484,293 N/A

HSBC MSCIWORLD UCITS ETF MSCI World Index (18.14%) 21.82% (818,735,095) 994,968,159

100% MSCI World
HSBC MSCI WORLD VALUE ESG  Value SRI ESG Target

UCITS ETF™ Select Index 8.98% N/A 12,397,782 N/A
HSBC MULTI FACTOR HSBC Worldwide

WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS ETF  Index (18.36%) 18.54% (193,031,630) 279,054,689
HSBC NASDAQ GLOBAL Nasdaqg Global

SEMICONDUCTOR UCITS ETF™*  Semiconductor Index (26.53%) N/A  (3,674,644) N/A
HSBC S&P 500 UCITS ETF S&P 500® Index (18.51%) 28.16% (808,020,029) 1,725,835,507
HSBC UK SUSTAINABLE EQUITY  FTSE UK ESG Low

UCITS ETF Carbon Select Index (6.61%) 18.59%  (1,080,309) 1,082,570
HSBC USA SUSTAINABLE EQUITY FTSE USA ESG Low

UCITS ETF Carbon Select Index (17.48%) 27.02% (113,893,728) 147,376,878

100% Euronext ESG
HSBC WORLD ESG BIODIVERSITY Biodiversity Screened
SCREENED EQUITY UCITS ETF™** World USD Index (6.96%) N/A (527,134) N/A

*The sub-fund was launched on 3 August 2021 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 4 August 2021.

**The sub-fund was launched on 17 November 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 18 November 2022.
***The sub-fund was launched on 7 July 2021 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 8 July 2021.

****The sub-fund was launched on 30 November 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 1 December 2022.
**x*xThe sub-fund was launched on 20 October 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 21 October 2022.
~*The sub-fund was launched on 18 October 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 19 October 2022.
~*The sub-fund was launched on 25 January 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 26 January 2022.
~*+*The sub-fund was launched on 10 August 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 11 August 2022.
"The sub-fund launched during the year. Hence, the figure shows the change in benchmark since inception.
*\References to benchmarks are for illustrative purposes only. There is no guarantee that a sub-fund will track or replicate its
benchmark.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

4.

Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(@) Market risk (continued)

(i) Price risk (continued)

The majority of sub-funds employ an investment strategy of full replication of the respective
underlying benchmark index, therefore a Beta of 1 was assumed in the calculation of the above
sensitivity analysis. The methodology utilised above is based on historical data and cannot take
account of the fact that future market price movement and correlations between markets in
conditions of market stress may bear no relation to historical patterns. The only sub-funds that do
not employ a full replication strategy are HSBC MSCI World UCITS ETF and HSBC MSCI
Emerging Markets UCITS ETF, which both utilise an optimisation strategy instead, and HSBC Multi
Factor Worldwide Equity UCITS ETF, which is actively managed and does not track a benchmark.

(i) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument as determined in a sub-fund's
functional currency will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Each sub-fund
may invest in financial instruments and enter into transactions denominated in currencies other
than its functional currency. Consequently, each sub-fund is exposed to risks that the exchange
rate of its currency relative to other foreign currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse
effect on the value of that portion of the Company’s assets or liabilities

To the extent that each sub-fund may invest in foreign currency-denominated securities, it may
also invest in currency exchange rate agreements. The sub-funds may use such FDI’s (which will
be based only on underlying assets or sectors which are permitted under the investment policy of
the sub-funds): (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the
underlying asset where the Investment Manager determines that an FDI exposure to the
underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure; (iii) to tailor each sub-fund’s
interest rate exposure to the Investment Manager's outlook for interest rates; and/or (iv) to gain an
exposure to the composition and performance of a particular index (provided always that each
sub-fund may not have an indirect exposure through an index to an instrument, issuer or currency
to which it cannot have a direct exposure) which will improve the efficiency of the management of
sub-funds.

The sub-funds may buy and sell foreign currency futures and may engage in foreign currency
transactions either on a spot or forward basis, to reduce the risks of adverse market changes in
exchange rates.

Monetary items are units of currency held and assets and liabilities to be received or paid in a fixed
or determinable number of units of currency. Monetary assets and liabilities included cash and
cash equivalents, trade receivables and payables including due to/from brokers, and amounts due
to/from brokers.

All assets and liabilities that do not meet the definition of monetary items are classified as non-
monetary. Marketable equity investments are considered non-monetary assets. The sub-funds, in
line with the securities comprising their underlying indices, are exposed to the currency risk of the
respective reference index/strategy. The currency risk associated with equities is included in other
price risk. Net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares are non-
monetary.

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, none of the sub-funds had any significant
monetary assets or liabilities that are exposed to currency risk since majority of the monetary
assets are in the denomination of the sub-funds' currency.

(iii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

4.

Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(iii) Interest rate risk (continued)

The majority of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities are non-interest bearing. Interest
bearing financial assets and liabilities include cash at bank which matures or reprices in the short-
term, no longer than 3 months.

As a result, the Company is subject to limited exposure to fair value interest rate risk due to
fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates.

Only HSBC BLOOMBERG EUR SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND UCITS ETF, HSBC
BLOOMBERG USD SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND UCITS ETF and HSBC BLOOMBERG
GLOBAL SUSTAINABLE AGGREGATE 1-3 YEAR BOND UCITS ETF sub-funds held fixed
income securities i.e. bonds as at year ended 31 December 2022 which are exposed to interest
rate risk.

HSBC BLOOMBERG EUR SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND UCITS ETF Fund as at 31

December 2022

Interest Non-interest
bearing bearing Total
EUR EUR EUR
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss 34,235,580 600 34,236,180
Cash and cash equivalents 113,923 - 113,923
Due from brokers - 72,784 72,784
Other Assets - 777,413 777,413
Assets 34,349,503 850,797 35,200,300
Interest Non-interest
bearing bearing Total
EUR EUR EUR
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss - 1,355 1,355
Other liabilities - 516,782 516,782
Liabilities - 518,137 518,137
Interest sensitivity gap 34,349,503

The following tables detail the effect on net assets should interest rates have increased/decreased
by 75 basis points (bps) with all other variables remaining constant, assuming that a 75bps
increase/decrease in the base interest rate would result in a correlating 75bps increase/decrease
in the value of net interest bearing assets. In reality, an increase/decrease of 75bps would not
result in a direct correlating increase/decrease in the fair value of net interest bearing assets, as
the movement in the value of net interest bearing assets would depend on the individual asset
class and/or market sentiment towards any sensitivity in the interest rate. The majority of the
portfolio of the sub-fund is of fixed rate interest nature and therefore interest income received
would not be affected by the fluctuation of interest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

4.

Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)
(iii) Interest rate risk (continued)

HSBC BLOOMBERG EUR SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND UCITS ETF Fund as at 31
December 2022 (continued)

Interest

bearing

EUR

Effect after 75 bps decrease 34,607,124
Effect after 75 bps increase 34,091,882

HSBC BLOOMBERG EUR SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND UCITS ETF Fund as at 31
December 2021*

Interest Non-interest
bearing bearing Total
EUR EUR EUR
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss 34,360,920 - 34,360,920
Cash and cash equivalents 6,916 - 6,916
Due from brokers - 60,540 60,540
Other Assets - 224,619 224,619
Assets 34,367,836 285,159 34,652,995
Interest Non-interest
bearing bearing Total
EUR EUR EUR
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss - 10 10
Other liabilities - 5,324 5,324
Liabilities - 5,334 5,334
Interest sensitivity gap 34,367,836

The following tables detail the effect on net assets should interest rates have
increased/decreased by 50 basis points (bps) with all other variables remaining constant,
assuming that a 50bps increase/decrease in the base interest rate would result in a correlating
50bps increase/decrease in the value of net interest bearing assets. In reality, an
increase/decrease of 50bps would not result in a direct correlating increase/decrease in the fair
value of net interest bearing assets, as the movement in the value of net interest bearing assets
would depend on the individual asset class and/or market sentiment towards any sensitivity in
the interest rate. The majority of the portfolio of the sub-fund is of fixed rate interest nature and
therefore interest income received would not be affected by the fluctuation of interest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

4.

Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(iii) Interest rate risk (continued)

HSBC BLOOMBERG EUR SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND UCITS ETF Fund as at 31
December 2021 (continued)®

Interest

bearing

EUR

Effect after 50 bps decrease 34,539,675
Effect after 50 bps increase 34,195,997

The sub-fund was launched on 16 November 2021 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 17 November 2021.

HSBC BLOOMBERG USD SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND UCITS ETF Fund as at 31
December 2022

Interest Non-interest
bearing bearing Total
UsD USD uUsD
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss 53,472,763 227 53,472,990
Cash and cash equivalents 375,232 - 375,232
Due from brokers - 59,231 59,231
Other Assets - 762,836 762,836
Assets 53,847,995 822,294 54,670,289
Interest Non-interest
bearing bearing Total
UsSD USD UsD
Liabilities
Other liabilities - 604,906 604,906
Liabilities - 604,906 604,906
Interest sensitivity gap 53,847,995

The following tables detail the effect on net assets should interest rates have increased/decreased
by 75 basis points (bps) with all other variables remaining constant, assuming that a 75bps
increase/decrease in the base interest rate would result in a correlating 75bps increase/decrease
in the value of net interest bearing assets. In reality, an increase/decrease of 75bps would not
result in a direct correlating increase/decrease in the fair value of net interest bearing assets, as
the movement in the value of net interest bearing assets would depend on the individual asset
class and/or market sentiment towards any sensitivity in the interest rate. The majority of the
portfolio of the sub-fund is of fixed rate interest nature and therefore interest income received
would not be affected by the fluctuation of interest.

Interest

bearing

UsD

Effect after 75 bps decrease 54,251,855
Effect after 75 bps increase 53,444,135
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

4.

Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(iii) Interest rate risk (continued)

HSBC BLOOMBERG USD SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND UCITS ETF Fund as at 31
December 2021"

Interest Non-interest
bearing bearing Total
USD USD USD
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss 48,725,910 - 48,725,910
Cash and cash equivalents 243,818 - 243,818
Due from brokers - 53,961 53,961
Other Assets - 384,886 384,886
Assets 48,969,728 438,847 49,408,575
Interest Non-interest
bearing bearing Total
USD USD USD
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss - 31 31
Other liabilities - 7,545 7,545
Liabilities - 7,576 7,576
Interest sensitivity gap 48,969,728

The following tables detail the effect on net assets should interest rates have increased/decreased
by 50 basis points (bps) with all other variables remaining constant, assuming that a 50bps
increase/decrease in the base interest rate would result in a correlating 50bps increase/decrease
in the value of net interest bearing assets. In reality, an increase/decrease of 50bps would not
result in a direct correlating increase/decrease in the fair value of net interest bearing assets, as
the movement in the value of net interest bearing assets would depend on the individual asset
class and/or market sentiment towards any sensitivity in the interest rate. The majority of the
portfolio of the sub-fund is of fixed rate interest nature and therefore interest income received
would not be affected by the fluctuation of interest.

Interest

bearing

uUsD

Effect after 50 bps decrease 49,214,577
Effect after 50 bps increase 48,724,879

The sub-fund was launched on 18 November 2021 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 19 November 2021.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

4.

Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(iii) Interest rate risk (continued)

HSBC BLOOMBERG GLOBAL SUSTAINABLE AGGREGATE 1-3 YEAR BOND UCITS ETF
Fund as at 31 December 2022"

Interest Non-interest
bearing bearing Total
USD USD USD
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss 78,531,292 - 78,531,292
Cash and cash equivalents 405,323 - 405,323
Due from brokers - 52,325 52,325
Other Assets - 1,625,389 1,625,389
Assets 78,936,615 1,677,714 80,614,329
Interest Non-interest
bearing bearing Total
USD USD USD
Liabilities
Other liabilities - 631,554 631,554
Liabilities - 631,554 631,554
Interest sensitivity gap 78,936,615

The following tables detail the effect on net assets should interest rates have increased/decreased
by 75 basis points (bps) with all other variables remaining constant, assuming that a 75bps
increase/decrease in the base interest rate would result in a correlating 75bps increase/decrease
in the value of net interest bearing assets. In reality, an increase/decrease of 75bps would not
result in a direct correlating increase/decrease in the fair value of net interest bearing assets, as
the movement in the value of net interest bearing assets would depend on the individual asset
class and/or market sentiment towards any sensitivity in the interest rate. The majority of the
portfolio of the sub-fund is of fixed rate interest nature and therefore interest income received
would not be affected by the fluctuation of interest.

Interest

bearing

UsD

Effect after 75 bps decrease 79,528,640
Effect after 75 bps increase 78,344,590

The sub-fund was launched on 13 January 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 14 January 2022.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

4.

Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(iii) Interest rate risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Company has invested in a corporate bond security; Britannia
Industries 5.5% 03/06/2024. This bond security was held in 3 sub-funds, which are HSBC MSCI
EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF, HSBC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY
UCITS ETF and HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF.

HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF Fund as at 31 December 2021

Interest Non-interest
bearing bearing Total
UsD USD UsD
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss 20,952 1,218,605,545 1,218,626,497
Cash and cash equivalents 15,554,577 - 15,554,577
Due from brokers - 831,022 831,022
Other Assets - 2,862,882 2,862,882
Assets 15,575,529 1,222,299,449 1,237,874,978
Interest Non-interest
bearing bearing Total
uUsD USD uUsD
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss - 115,221 115,221
Other liabilities - 4,442,159 4,442,159
Liabilities - 4,557,380 4,557,380
Interest sensitivity gap 15,575,529

The following tables detail the effect on net assets should interest rates have increased/decreased
by 50 basis points (bps) with all other variables remaining constant, assuming that a 50bps
increase/decrease in the base interest rate would result in a correlating 50bps increase/decrease
in the value of net interest bearing assets. In reality, an increase/decrease of 50bps would not
result in a direct correlating increase/decrease in the fair value of net interest bearing assets, as
the movement in the value of net interest bearing assets would depend on the individual asset
class and/or market sentiment towards any sensitivity in the interest rate. The majority of the
interest bearing assets of the sub-fund is of fixed rate nature and therefore interest income
received would not be affected by the fluctuation of interest.

Interest

bearing

UsD

Effect after 50 bps decrease 15,653,407
Effect after 50 bps increase 15,497,651
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)
4.

(a) Market risk (continued)

(iii) Interest rate risk (continued)

Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

HSBC ASIA PACIFIC EXJAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF Fund as at 31 December

2021

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss

Cash and cash equivalents
Due from brokers

Other Assets
Assets

Liabilities

Other liabilities

Liabilities

Interest sensitivity gap

Interest Non-interest
bearing bearing Total
USsD USD USsD
119 88,624,325 88,624,444
514,876 - 514,876
- 37,876 37,876
- 156,176 156,176
514,995 88,818,377 89,333,372
Interest Non-interest
bearing bearing Total
UsD USsD UsD
- 217,515 217,515
- 217,515 217,515
514,995

The following tables detail the effect on net assets should interest rates have increased/decreased
by 50 basis points (bps) with all other variables remaining constant, assuming that a 50bps
increase/decrease in the base interest rate would result in a correlating 50bps increase/decrease
in the value of net interest bearing assets. In reality, an increase/decrease of 50bps would not
result in a direct correlating increase/decrease in the fair value of net interest bearing assets, as
the movement in the value of net interest bearing assets would depend on the individual asset
class and/or market sentiment towards any sensitivity in the interest rate. The majority of the
interest bearing assets of the sub-fund is of fixed rate nature and therefore interest income

received would not be affected by the fluctuation of interest.

Effect after 50 bps decrease
Effect after 50 bps increase
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

4.

Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)
(iii) Interest rate risk (continued)

HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF Fund as at 31 December

2021

Interest Non-interest
bearing bearing Total
usD UsD usD
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss 264 132,397,540 132,397,804
Cash and cash equivalents 980,703 - 980,703
Due from brokers - 58,706 58,706
Other Assets - 209,538 209,538
Assets 980,967 132,665,784 133,646,751
Interest Non-interest
bearing bearing Total
usD uUsD usD
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss - 8,359 8,359
Other liabilities - 272,467 272,467
Liabilities - 280,826 280,826
Interest sensitivity gap 980,967

The following tables detail the effect on net assets should interest rates have increased/decreased
by 50 basis points (bps) with all other variables remaining constant, assuming that a 50bps
increase/decrease in the base interest rate would result in a correlating 50bps increase/decrease
in the value of net interest bearing assets. In reality, an increase/decrease of 50bps would not
result in a direct correlating increase/decrease in the fair value of net interest bearing assets, as
the movement in the value of net interest bearing assets would depend on the individual asset
class and/or market sentiment towards any sensitivity in the interest rate. The majority of the
interest bearing assets of the sub-fund is of fixed rate nature and therefore interest income
received would not be affected by the fluctuation of interest.

Interest

bearing

UsD

Effect after 50 bps decrease 985,872
Effect after 50 bps increase 976,062
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

4.

Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(b) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation
or commitment that it has entered into with the Company. Credit risk is generally higher when a
non-exchange traded financial instrument is involved because the counterparty for non-exchange
traded financial instruments is not backed by an exchange clearing house. Exchange clearing
houses benefit both parties in a transaction as they bear most of the credit risk. If two individuals
deal with one another, the buyer bears the credit risk of the seller, and vice versa. When an
exchange clearing house is used, the credit risk that is held against both buyer and seller is passed
on to the exchange clearing house.

Credit risk associated with investing activities is managed by the Investment Manager as part of
the overall investment process. To reduce the Company’s counterparty credit exposures,
securities trading is primarily conducted on recognised exchanges and on a delivery-versus-
payment basis. The risk of default is considered minimal, as delivery of securities on a settled
trade is simultaneous with the Depositary receiving payment. Payment is made on a purchase
simultaneous with the securities being received by the Depositary. The trade will fail if either party
fails to meet its obligation.

The assets of the Company held by the Depositary will be segregated from the assets of either the
Depositary or its agents or both. The Company is subject to credit risk to the extent that this
institution may be unable to fulfil its obligations either to return the Company’s securities or repay
amounts owed. The Investment Manager does not anticipate any losses as a result of this
concentration.

The ECL is not material and hence not included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

All of the cash of the Company held by the Depositary is placed on deposit with an affiliate of the
Depositary, HSBC Bank plc with credit rating of AA- (31 December 2021: AA-) by Fitch and credit
rating of A+ (31 December 2021: A+) by Standard and Poor’s. The Company’s future contracts
and related collateral amounts were held with HSBC Bank plc. The Company’s Contracts for
Difference (“CFD”) and related collateral amounts were held with Goldman Sachs rated as A by
Fitch and BBB+ by Standard and Poor's as at 31 December 2021. No CFDs held in the sub-funds
as at 31 December 2022. These institutions are highly rated by prominent credit rating agencies.

The Company will rank as a general creditor in the event of bankruptcy or insolvency of HSBC
Bank plc. Cash held by HSBC Bank plc is not held in a segregated client account. HSBC Bank plc
complies with the FSA capital requirements in the event of insolvency of HSBC Bank plc.

The Company’s credit risk exposure is represented by the carrying amounts of cash at bank and
due from or to brokers as disclosed on the Statement of Financial Position on the respective pages
of each sub-fund. Bonds or other debt securities involve credit risk to the issuer which may be
evidenced by the issuer’s credit rating.
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4. Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(b) Credit Risk (continued)

Investments in debt securities

As at 31 December 2022, HSBC BLOOMBERG EUR SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND
UCITS ETF, HSBC BLOOMBERG USD SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND UCITS ETF and
HSBC BLOOMBERG GLOBAL SUSTAINABLE AGGREGATE 1-3 YEAR BOND UCITS ETF
invested in debt securities (31 December 2021: HSBC BLOOMBERG EUR SUSTAINABLE
CORPORATE BOND UCITS ETF and HSBC BLOOMBERG USD SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE
BOND UCITS ETF). These sub-funds do not have significant concentrations of credit risk (see
Schedule of Investments). The following table reflects the Standard and Poor's credit ratings of
the debt investments held as a percentage of total debt investments.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had invested in a corporate bond security: Britannia
Industries 5.5% 03/06/2024. This bond security was held in 3 sub-funds: HSBC MSCI EMERGING
MARKETS UCITS ETF, HSBC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF
and HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF. The bond security was
non rated as at 31 December 2021.

HSBC BLOOMBERG EUR SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND UCITS ETF?
Portfolio by rating category (Standard and Poor’s)

% of Total Debt % of Total Debt

Investments Investments
Rating 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
A 6.08 6.95
A- 17.42 14.75
A+ 7.92 8.82
AA 1.04 1.84
AA- 3.48 3.40
AA+ 0.55 0.58
AAA 0.27 0.36
BB+ 0.26 0.33
BBB 15.74 13.84
BBB- 8.36 8.80
BBB+ 20.61 21.75
Non-Rated 18.27 18.58
Total 100.00 100.00

The sub-fund was launched on 16 November 2021 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 17 November 2021.
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4. Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)
(b) Credit Risk (continued)

Investments in debt securities (continued)

HSBC BLOOMBERG USD SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND UCITS ETF?

Portfolio by rating category (Standard and Poor’s)

% of Total Debt

Investments % of Total Debt Investments
Rating 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
A 11.54 11.08
A- 17.94 19.27
A+ 7.01 7.60
AA 1.45 1.25
AA- 3.43 3.13
AA+ 1.83 1.82
AAA 1.71 1.89
BB+ 0.91 0.42
BBB 16.94 16.92
BBB- 9.77 7.65
BBB+ 20.68 23.91
Non-Rated 6.79 5.06
Total 100.00 100.00

The sub-fund was launched on 18 November 2021 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 19 November 2021.

HSBC BLOOMBERG GLOBAL SUSTAINABLE AGGREGATE 1-3 YEAR BOND UCITS ETF?

Portfolio by rating category (Standard and Poor’s)

% of Total Debt Investments

Rating 31 December 2022
A 0.37
A- 4.02
A+ 2.17
AA 5.29
AA- 0.87
AA+ 31.43
AAA 6.33
BBB 2.18
BBB- 0.76
BBB+ 3.91
Non-Rated 42.67
Total 100.00

The sub-fund was launched on 13 January 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 14 January 2022.
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4.

Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(b) Credit Risk (continued)

Analysis by Maturity

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had invested in a corporate debt security; Britannia
Industries 5.5% which matures in 03/06/2024. This bond security was held in 3 sub-funds, which
were HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF, HSBC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN
SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF and HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY
UCITS ETF.

The Company has also invested in debt securities mainly in HSBC BLOOMBERG BARCLAYS
EUR SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND UCITS ETF, HSBC BLOOMBERG BARCLAYS USD
SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND UCITS ETF and HSBC BLOOMBERG GLOBAL
SUSTAINABLE AGGREGATE 1-3 YEAR BOND funds as at 31 December 2022 (31 December
2021: HSBC BLOOMBERG EUR SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND UCITS ETF and HSBC
BLOOMBERG USD SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND UCITS ETF).

The following table shows maturity analysis of debt securities held in the sub-funds as at 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2021.
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

4.

Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(b) Credit Risk (continued)
Analysis by Maturity (continued)

31 December 2022

Analysis of Maturity

HSBC BLOOMBERG EUR
SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND
UCITS ETF

HSBC BLOOMBERG GLOBAL
SUSTAINABLE AGGREGATE 1-3 YEAR
BOND UCITS ETF*

HSBC BLOOMBERG USD
SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND
UCITS ETF

0-2 years

7.44

26.41

5.48

% of Net Assets Value

2-5 years 5-10 years 10+ years
37.10 43.96 10.21
70.85 0.30 0.63
27.33 32.18 33.91

*The sub-fund was launched on 13 January 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 14 January 2022.
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Other
investments

0.00

0.00

Other net
assets

1.29

1.81

1.10

Total

100.00

100.00

100.00
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for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

4.

(b) Credit Risk (continued)

Analysis by Maturity (continued)

31 December 2021

Analysis of Maturity

HSBC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN
SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

HSBC BLOOMBERG EUR
SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND
UCITS ETF*

HSBC BLOOMBERG USD
SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND
UCITS ETF**

HSBC EMERGING MARKET
SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF
HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS
UCITS ETF

Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

0-2 years

5.69

1.30

2-5 years

0.00

33.69

25.70
0.00

0.00

% of Net Assets Value

5-10 years

46.69

34.66

Other
10+ years investments

- 99.45

13.10 0.00

36.97 0.00
- 99.26

- 98.80

*The sub-fund was launched on 16 November 2021 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 17 November 2021.
**The sub-fund was launched on 18 November 2021 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 19 November 2021.
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Other net
assets

0.55

0.83

1.37

0.74

1.20

Total

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

4.

Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities. The Company is exposed to daily cash redemptions of Redeemable
Participating Shares and monitors this activity to ensure that funds are available to meet the
redemption requirements.

The Company’s investments are considered to be readily realisable as they are all traded on
regulated markets. The Company has therefore limited exposure to liquidity risk.

The Company’s financial instruments also comprise investments in derivative contracts traded
over-the-counter, which are not traded in an organised public market and which generally may be
illiquid. As a result, the Company may not be able to liquidate quickly some of its investments in
these instruments at an amount close to its fair value in order to meet its liquidity requirements, or
to respond to specific events such as a deterioration in the credit worthiness of any particular
issuer. This risk is mitigated by restricting the exposure to any particular instrument.

The Company has also obtained overdraft facilities in order to manage its short term liquidity
requirements. Details of the Company’s overdraft facility are outlined in Note 7.

In accordance with the Company’s policies and procedures in place and ESMA’s guidelines on
liquidity stress testing in UCITS and alternative investment funds, the Investment Manager
monitors the Company’s overall liquidity risk on at least a monthly basis, and the Board reviews it
on a quarterly basis.

Substantially all of the Company's financial liabilities included in the Statement of Financial Position
at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 on the respective pages of each sub-fund, are
payable within one month.
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4.

Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(d) Fair value of assets and liabilities

IFRS 13 requires disclosures of financial instruments measured at fair value to be based on a
three-level fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs in such fair value
measurements. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as
follows:

Level 1 Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access at the
measurement date;

Level 2 Inputs other than unadjusted quoted prices that are observable for the
asset or liability either directly or indirectly, including inputs in markets that
are not considered to be active.

Level 3 This category includes all instruments for which the valuation technique
includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs
have a significant effect on the instrument's valuation. This category
includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar
instruments but for which significant unobservable adjustments or
assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments

A financial instrument’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any
input that is significant to the fair value measurement. However, the determination of what
constitutes “observable” requires judgement by the Directors.

Inputs are used in applying the various valuation techniques and broadly refer to the assumptions
that market participants use to make valuation decisions, including assumptions about risk. Inputs
may include price information, volatility statistics, specific and broad credit data, liquidity statistics,
and other factors.

The Directors consider observable data to be that market data which is readily available, regularly
distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent
sources that are actively involved in the relevant market. The categorisation of a financial
instrument within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the instrument and does
not necessarily correspond to the Directors' perceived risk of that instrument.

Transferable securities

Transferable securities with values based on quoted market prices in active markets are classified
within Level 1. These include active listed equities and debt securities. Transferable securities that
trade in markets that are not considered to be active, but are valued based on quoted market
prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are
classified within Level 2. Transferable securities classified within Level 3 have significant
unobservable inputs, as they trade infrequently or not at all. Level 3 investments in equity securities
are disclosed in Note 4(d).

Derivative instruments

Derivative instruments can be exchange-traded or privately negotiated over-the-counter (“OTC”).
Exchange-traded derivatives, such as contracts for difference and futures contracts, are typically
classified within Level 1 or Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy depending on whether or not they
are deemed to be actively traded.
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4.

Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(d) Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

The financial instruments as at 31 December 2022 and 31

follows:

Equities

Futures contracts

Debt Securities
Warrants

Contract for differences
Forward contracts

December 2021 were classified as

Level 1/2/3
Level 1/2
Level 1/2

Level 2
Level 2
Level 2

The following table presents the fair value hierarchy of the Company’s financial assets and

liabilities measured at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

At 31 December 2022
Financial assets at FVTPL
Equities

Debt Securities
Transferable securities
Futures contracts

Forward contracts
Warrants

Total

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Futures contracts

Forward contracts

Total

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
17,857,733,759 58,029,046 1,484,669 17,917,247,474
71,086,377 97,455,584 - 168,541,961
17,928,820,136 155,484,630 1,484,669 18,085,789,435
13,340 37,294 - 50,634

- 5,571 - 5,571

- 67,466 - 67,466
17,928,833,476 155,594,961 1,484,669 18,085,913,106
(6,734,993) (105,215) - (6,840,208)

- (803) - (803)

(6,734,993) (106,018) - (6,841,011)

Exceptions on Level 1 classification of investments in equity securities are disclosed in note 4(d).

At 31 December 2021
Financial assets at FVTPL
Equities

Warrants

Debt Securities
Transferable securities
Futures contracts

Total

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Futures contracts

Contract for differences

Total

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
19,259,826,791 36,991,713 2,791,347  19,299,609,851
- 97,694 - 97,694

22,985,037 64,837,437 - 87,822,474
19,282,811,828 101,926,844 2,791,347  19,387,530,019
3,749,008 - - 3,749,008
19,286,560,836 101,926,844 2,791,347  19,391,279,027
(195,542) - - (195,542)

- (2,295,186) - (2,295,186)

(195,542) (2,295,186) - (2,490,728)
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4. Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(d) Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

A reconciliation of movements in Level 3 assets and liabilities for the year ended 31 December
2022 and for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below.

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

usD usD
Opening balance 2,791,347 215,983
Purchases 1,650,384 2,027,731
Sales (2,377,118) (120,087)
Realised (losses)/gains (1,435,182) 739
Unrealised losses (63,531,084)" (1,041,772)
Transfers into Level 3* 67,064,354 1,734,815
Transfers out of level 3* (2,725,063) (19,469)
FX gains/(losses) on level 3 47,031 (6,593)
Closing balance 1,484,669 2,791,347

AMainly consisted of the cost of the L3 securities transferred into the sub-funds during the year.
*All transfers are taken at the end of the financial year.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and other short term deposits with original
maturities of three months or less, net of bank overdrafts and are categorised as Level 2. The
carrying amount of these short-term financial assets approximate fair value because of their short-
term nature and the high credit quality of counterparties.

Receivable for investments sold and other receivables include the contractual amounts for
settlement of trades and other obligations due to the Company. Payable for investments sold and
other payables represent the contractual amounts and obligations due by the Company for
settlement of trades and expenses. All receivable and payable balances are categorised as Level
2. The carrying amount of these short-term financial assets approximate fair value because of
their short-term nature and the high credit quality of counterparties.

Redeemable Participating Shares are redeemable at the shareholder’s options and are classified
as financial liabilities. The Company issues the redeemable shares at the amount equal to the
proportionate share of net assets of the Company at the time of the redemption, calculated on a
basis consistent with that used in these Financial Statements. Accordingly, the carrying amount
of net assets attributable to holders of redeemable shares approximates their fair value. The
Redeemable Participating Shares can be redeemed at any time for cash equal to a proportionate
share of a particular sub-fund’s net asset value. As such, Level 2 is deemed to be the most
appropriate categorisation for net assets attributable to holders of redeemable shares.

At 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, had the unobservable inputs such as last traded
prices and average cost used in the fair value measurement categorised within level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy increased or decreased by 5% with all other variables held constant, the decrease
or increase in the net assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares of each
sub-fund is shown below.
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4.

Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(d) Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

Sub-Funds

HSBC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN
SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

HSBC ECONOMIC SCALE WORLDWIDE
EQUITY UCITS ETF*

HSBC EMERGING MARKET
SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF

HSBC EUROPE SUSTAINABLE EQUITY
UCITS ETF
HSBC FTSE 250 UCITS ETF

HSBC FTSE EPRA/NAREIT DEVELOPED
UCITS ETF

HSBC JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY
UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI AC FAR EAST EX JAPAN
UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI CHINA A UCITS ETF
HSBC MSCI CHINA UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI EM FAR EAST UCITS ETF**

HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS
SMALL CAP ESG UCITS ETF***

HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS
UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI JAPAN UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI PACIFIC EX JAPAN UCITS
ETF

HSBC MSCI TAIWAN CAPPED UCITS
ETF

HSBC MULTI FACTOR WORLDWIDE
EQUITY UCITS ETF

Value of Level 3 investment

Impact on NAV due to
change in the value of Level
3investment (5% change)

USsD USD
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2021 2022 2021
68,084 34,827 3,404 1,741
10,497 11,185 525 559
37,484 66,560 1,874 3,328
3 - 0 -
2,571 2,894 129 145
- 395,836 - 19,792
- 45,245 - 2,262
154,404 533,512 7,720 26,676
46,297 - 2,315 -
853,289 590,378 42,664 29,519
- 10,094 - 505
1,670 - 83 -
250,966 281,128 12,548 14,056
- 217,282 - 10,864
- 385,120 - 19,256
0 - 0 -
59,404 217,286 2,970 10,864
1,484,669 2,791,347 74,232 139,567

*The sub-fund was redeemed on 18 September 2020 and terminated on 21 September 2020.
**The sub-fund was closed on 6 July 2022 and delisted from London Stock Exchange on 11 July 2022.
*** The sub-fund was launched on 3 November 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 4 November 2022.
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4.

Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(d) Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

HSBC MSCI USA CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF, HSBC MSCI USA UCITS ETF, HSBC
MSCI WORLD CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF, HSBC MSCI WORLD UCITS ETF and
HSBC S&P 500 UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, Abiomed, which is valued at USD 0 at 31
December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil), due to stale pricing. Shares were created back for a
class action as there was no information about the cash payment.

HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment,
Aeroflot Russian Airlines, which is valued at USD 0 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021
Nil), due to the suspension of trading since February 2022.

HSBC EUROPE SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, ALD (Rights),
which is valued at USD 3 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil), due to the suspension
of trading since December 2022.

HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF and HSBC MSCI EMERGING
MARKETS UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, ALROSA, which is valued at USD 0 at 31
December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil), due to the suspension of trading since February 2022.

HSBC MSCI AC FAR EAST EX JAPAN UCITS ETF, HSBC MSCI CHINA A UCITS ETF, HSBC
MSCI CHINA UCITS ETF and HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF held Level 3
investment, AVIC Helicopter, which is valued at USD 157,565 at 31 December 2022 (31 December
2021: Nil), due to the suspension of trading since December 2022.

HSBC MSCI TAIWAN CAPPED UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, Cathay Financial Holding
(Rights), which is valued at USD 0 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil), due to the
suspension of trading since December 2022.

HSBC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF, HSBC EMERGING
MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF, HSBC MSCI AC FAR EAST EX JAPAN UCITS
ETF, HSBC MSCI CHINA UCITS ETF and HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF held
Level 3 investment, China Evergrande Group, which is valued at USD 280,621 at 31 December
2022 (31 December 2021: Nil), due to the suspension of trading since March 2022.

HSBC MSCI AC FAR EAST EX JAPAN UCITS ETF, HSBC MSCI CHINA UCITS ETF and HSBC
MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, China Huishan Diary
Holdings, which is valued at USD 0 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: USD 0), due to the
suspension of trading since June 2017.

HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKET SMALL CAP ESG UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, China
Yuhua Education, which is valued at USD 1,665 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil),
due to the suspension of trading since December 2022.

HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, Credit
Bank of Moscow, which is valued at USD 0 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil), due
to the suspension of trading since February 2022.

HSBC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF and HSBC EMERGING
MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, Evergrande Property
Services Group, which is valued at USD 25,949 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil),
due to the suspension of trading since March 2022.

HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment,

Federal Grid, which is valued at USD 0 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil), due to the
suspension of trading since February 2022.
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4.

Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(d) Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

HSBC FTSE 250 UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, Finablr, which is valued at USD 2,571 at
31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: USD 2,894), due to the suspension of trading since March
2020.

HSBC S&P 500 UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, First Horizon National Corporation, which is
valued at USD 0 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: USD 0), due to the suspension of
trading since January 2015.

HSBC ECONOMIC SCALE WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS ETF, HSBC MSCI EMERGING
MARKETS UCITS ETF and HSBC MULTI FACTOR WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS ETF held
Level 3 investment, Folli Follie, which is valued at USD 80,823 at 31 December 2022 (31
December 2021: USD 86,120), due to the suspension of trading since May 2018.

HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF, HSBC MSCI EMERGING
MARKETS UCITS ETF and HSBC MULTI FACTOR WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS ETF held
Level 3 investment, Gazprom, which is valued at USD 0 at 31 December 2022 (31 December
2021: Nil), due to the suspension of trading since February 2022.

HSBC MSCI AC FAR EAST EX JAPAN UCITS ETF, HSBC MSCI CHINA UCITS ETF and HSBC
MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, Hanergy Mobile Energy
Holding, which is valued at USD 0 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: USD 0), due to non-
availability of market prices and being suspended from trading.

HSBC ECONOMIC SCALE WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS ETF, HSBC EMERGING MARKET
SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF, HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF and
HSBC MULTI FACTOR WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, Inter RAO
UES, which is valued at USD 0 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil), due to the
suspension of trading since February 2022.

HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF and HSBC MSCI EMERGING
MARKETS UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, Lukoil, which is valued at USD 0 at 31 December
2022 (31 December 2021: Nil), due to the suspension of trading since February 2022.

HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF and HSBC MSCI EMERGING
MARKETS UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, Magnit, which is valued at USD 0 at 31 December
2022 (31 December 2021: Nil), due to the suspension of trading since February 2022.

HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment,
Magnitogorsk Iron and Steel, which is valued at USD 0 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021:
Nil), due to the suspension of trading since February 2022.

HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF and HSBC MULTI FACTOR WORLDWIDE
EQUITY UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, MMC Norilsk Nickel, which is valued at USD 0 at
31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil). Due to market volatility, all Russian stocks were
suspended from 25 February 2022. As per recommendation from the Management Company’s
valuation committee, these stocks were fair valued down by 90% of its value on 02 March 2022.
On 10 March 2022, these stocks were further fair valued down to zero.

HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment,
Mobile Telesystems, which is valued at USD 0 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil),
due to the suspension of trading since February 2022.

HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, Mobile Telesystems

0JSC, which is valued at USD 0 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil), due to the
suspension of trading since February 2022.
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4.

Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(d) Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF and HSBC MSCI EMERGING
MARKETS UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, Moscow Exchange, which is valued at USD 0 at
31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil), due to the suspension of trading since February
2022.

HSBC FTSE 100 UCITS ETF, HSBC MSCI EUROPE UCITS ETF and HSBC MSCI WORLD
UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, NMC Health, which is valued at USD 0 at 31 December 2022
(31 December 2021: USD 0), due to the suspension of trading since February 2020.

HSBC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF and HSBC EMERGING
MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, NMDC Steel, which is
valued at USD 40,992 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil), due to the suspension of
trading since October 2022.

HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF and HSBC MSCI EMERGING
MARKETS UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, Novatek, which is valued at USD 0 at 31
December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil), due to the suspension of trading since February 2022.

HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF and HSBC MSCI EMERGING
MARKETS UCITS ETFheld Level 3 investment, Novelipetsk Iron & Steel, which is valued at USD
0 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil). Due to market volatility, all Russian stocks were
suspended from 25 February 2022. As per recommendation from the Management Company's
valuation committee, these stocks were fair valued down by 90% of its value on 02 March 2022.
On 10 March 2022, these stocks were further fair valued down to zero.

HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, Ozon Holdings, which
is valued at USD 0 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil), due to the suspension of
trading since February 2022.

HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF and HSBC MSCI EMERGING
MARKETS UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, PhosAgro, which is valued at USD 0 at 31 December
2022 (31 December 2021: Nil), due to the suspension of trading since February 2022.

HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, Polymetal International,
which is valued at USD 0 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021 Nil), due to the suspension of
trading since February 2022.

HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF and HSBC MSCI EMERGING
MARKETS UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, Polyus Gold, which is valued at USD 0 at 31
December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil). Due to market volatility, all Russian stocks were suspended
from 25 February 2022. As per recommendation from the Management Company's valuation
committee, these stocks were fair valued down by 90% of its value on 02 March 2022. On 10 March
2022, these stocks were further fair valued down to zero.

HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF and HSBC MSCI EMERGING
MARKETS UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, Rosneft Oil, which is valued at USD 0 at 31
December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil), due to the suspension of trading since February 2022.

HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment,

Rostelecom, which is valued at USD 0 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil), due to the
suspension of trading since February 2022.

268



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

4.

Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(d) Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

HSBC BLOOMBERG GLOBAL SUSTAINABLE AGGREGATE 1-3 YEAR BOND UCITS ETF held
Level 3 investment, Russian Federal Bond 7.4% 17/07/2024, which is valued at USD 0 at 31
December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil). Due to market volatility, the Management Company’s
valuation committee recommended Russian Government bonds denominated in RUB to be fair
valued down to zero as of March 2022.

HSBC BLOOMBERG GLOBAL SUSTAINABLE AGGREGATE 1-3 YEAR BOND UCITS ETF held
Level 3 investment, Russian Federal Bond OFZ 5.3% 04/10/2023, which is valued at USD 0 at 31
December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil). Due to market volatility, the Management Company’s
valuation committee recommended Russian Government bonds denominated in RUB to be fair
valued down to zero as of March 2022.

HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF, HSBC MSCI EMERGING
MARKETS UCITS ETF and HSBC MULTI FACTOR WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS ETF held Level
3 investment, Sherbank of Russia, which is valued at USD 0 at 31 December 2022 (31 December
2021: Nil), due to the suspension of trading since February 2022.

HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF and HSBC MSCI EMERGING
MARKETS UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, Severstal, which is valued at USD 0 at 31 December
2022 (31 December 2021: Nil), due to the suspension of trading since February 2022.

HSBC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF, HSBC EMERGING
MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF, HSBC MSCI AC FAR EAST EX JAPAN UCITS ETF,
HSBC MSCI CHINA UCITS ETF and HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF held Level 3
investment, Shimao Group Holdings, which is valued at USD 205,247 at 31 December 2022 (31
December 2021: Nil), due to the recommendation of the Management Company’s valuation
committee.

HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, Sistema
PJSFC, which is valued at USD 0 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil), due to the
suspension of trading since February 2022.

HSBC MSCI CHINA A UCITS ETF and HSBC MSCI CHINA UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment,
ST KMTT (Rights), which is valued at USD 0 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil), due to
stale pricing. Shares were created back for a class action as there was no information about the cash
payment.

HSBC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF, HSBC EMERGING
MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF, HSBC MSCI AC FAR EAST EX JAPAN UCITS
ETF, HSBC MSCI CHINA UCITS ETF and HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF and
held Level 3 investment, Sunac China Holdings, which is valued at USD 689,228 at 31 December
2022 (31 December 2021: Nil), due to the recommendation of the Management Company’s
valuation committee.

HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF, HSBC MSCI EMERGING
MARKETS UCITS ETF and HSBC MULTI FACTOR WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS ETF held Level
3 investment, Surgutneftegas, which is valued at USD 0 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021:
Nil), due to the suspension of trading since February 2022.

HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF, HSBC MSCI EMERGING
MARKETS UCITS ETF and HSBC MULTI FACTOR WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS ETF held Level
3 investment, Surgutneftegas (Preference Shares), which is valued at USD 0 at 31 December 2022
(31 December 2021.: Nil), due to the suspension of trading since February 2022.
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Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(d) Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF and HSBC MSCI EMERGING
MARKETS UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, Tatneft, which is valued at USD 0 at 31 December
2022 (31 December 2021: Nil), due to the suspension of trading since February 2022.

HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, TCS Group Holding,
which is valued at USD 0 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil), due to the suspension of
trading since February 2022.

HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment,
Transneft (Preference Shares), which is valued at USD 0 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021
Nil). Due to market volatility, all Russian stocks were suspended from 25 February 2022. As per
recommendation from the Management Company's valuation committee, these stocks were fair
valued down by 90% of its value on 02 March 2022. On 10 March 2022, these stocks were further
fair valued down to zero.

HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, United Co RUSAL
International PJSC, which is valued at USD 0 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil), due to
the suspension of trading since February 2022.

HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, VK, which is valued at
USD 0 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil), due to the suspension of trading since
February 2022.

HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF and HSBC MSCI EMERGING
MARKETS UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, VTB Bank, which is valued at USD 0 at 31 December
2022 (31 December 2021: Nil), due to the suspension of trading since February 2022.

HSBC ECONOMIC SCALE WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, Wintek,
which is valued at USD 0 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: USD 0), due to the suspension
of trading since July 2015.

HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF and HSBC MULTI FACTOR WORLDWIDE
EQUITY UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, X5 Retail Group, which is valued at USD 0 at 31
December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil), due to the suspension of trading since February 2022.

HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKET SMALL CAP ESG UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, XL
Axiata (Rights), which is valued at USD 5 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil), due to the
suspension of trading since December 2022.

HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF held Level 3 investment, Yandex, which is valued

at USD 0 at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil), due to the suspension of trading since
February 2022.
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5.

Derivative Contracts
Futures contracts

Futures contracts are commitments either to purchase or sell a specific financial instrument, currency,
commodity or an index at a specified future date for a specified price and may be settled in cash or
another financial asset. Futures are standardised exchange-traded contracts. Initial margin
requirements for futures are met in cash or other instruments, and changes in the future contract values
are settled daily through cash margin accounts.

Forward contracts

Forward contracts are contractual agreements to buy or sell a specified financial instrument at a
specific price and date in the future. Forwards are customised contracts transacted in the OTC market.
The Company may enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to manage the currency risk arising
from the Company’s investment or anticipated investment in investments denominated in foreign
currencies. Forward contracts may be used for hedging and currency management of both local and
foreign currencies.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, HSBC MSCI WORLD UCITS ETF held forward contracts
(2021: No sub-funds held).

Contracts for difference

CFDs are agreements between the Company and third parties which allow the Company to acquire
an exposure to the price movement of specific securities without actually purchasing the securities.
Upon entering into a CFD, the Company is required to deposit with a broker initial cash margin equal
to a certain percentage of the contract amount. Variation margin payments are made or received by
the Company depending upon the fluctuation in the value of the underlying securities. The changes in
contract values are recorded as unrealised gains or losses and the Company recognises a realised
gain or loss when the contract is closed or when the contract is re-set. CFDs are fair valued as the
change in market value of the underlying security applied to the notional amount of the CFD held at
the end of the financial period, representing the unrealised gain or loss on these CFDs. The market
value of the underlying security is determined by reference to the quoted market price available on a
recognised stock exchange.

Allincome accruing to the underlying securities in the CFDs and the financing charges associated with
the CFD trading are accrued by the Company on an accruals basis and is recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income as part of the net gain/(loss) on financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, no sub funds held CFDs (31 December 2021: CFDs held in
HSBC MSCI CANADA UCITS ETF).

Warrants

A warrant is a financial instrument which is usually issued along with a bond or preferred stock, entitling
the holder to buy a specific amount of securities at a specific price, usually above the current market price
at the time of issuance, for a specified or unspecified period. The listed warrants are traded on recognised
exchanges and all warrants are valued at fair value. Realised and change in unrealised gains and losses
are recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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5.

Derivative Contracts (continued)

Offsetting assets and liabilities

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the sub-funds are subject to master netting arrangements with the counterparties to the futures, forwards
and CFDs. No financial assets or liabilities, subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or similar arrangements, are presented on a net basis in the
Statement of Financial Position of the Company at the 31 December 2022 or as at 31 December 2021. The gross amounts of unrealised gains and losses on
futures and CFDs, by counterparty, are disclosed in the Schedule of Investments of the sub-funds. Margin is posted by the sub-funds with the derivative
counterparties when the previously held margin falls below the minimum margin requirement. At the 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the sub-
funds do not have any material amounts of unrealised losses on open futures, forwards or CFDs by counterparty as shown below:

31 December 2022

Financial assets - HSBC"

HSBC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN
SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF
HSBC BLOOMBERG EUR SUSTAINABLE
CORPORATE BOND UCITS ETF

HSBC BLOOMBERG USD SUSTAINABLE
CORPORATE BOND UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI BRAZIL UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI CHINA A UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI EM LATIN AMERICA UCITS
ETF

AIncludes Futures Contracts.

Currency
usD
EUR
usD
usD
usD

usD

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial
assets

360
600
227
42,094
27

3,600

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial
liabilities

offset in the
Statement of
Financial
Position

272

Net amounts of
financial assets
presented in the

Statement of
Financial
Position

360
600
227
42,094
27

3,600

Gross amounts not offset in the Statement of
Financial Position

Financial
instruments
(including non-
cash collateral)
available for offset

(360)

(600)

(3,540)

Cash
collateral
received

Net amount

227
42,094
27
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5.

Derivative Contracts (continued)

Offsetting assets and liabilities (continued)

31 December 2022

Financial assets - HSBC"

HSBC MSCI PACIFIC ex JAPAN UCITS ETF
HSBC MSCI TURKEY UCITS ETF

Total (in USD)

AIncludes Futures Contracts.

Currency
usbD
usbD

Gross amounts
of recognised

Gross amounts financial liabilities

Net amounts of
financial assets
presented in the

Gross amounts not offset in the Statement of
Financial Position

Financial
instruments

of recognised offset in the Statement of (including non- Cash
financial Statement of Financial cash collateral) collateral
assets Financial Position Position available for offset received Net amount
21 - 21 (21) - -
3,664 - 3,664 - - 3,664
50,633 - 50,633 (4,561) - 46,072
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5. Derivative Contracts (continued)
Offsetting assets and liabilities (continued)

Gross amounts not offset in the Statement of
31 December 2022 Financial Position

Gross amounts
of recognised

financial Net amounts of
liabilities financial assets Financial
Gross amounts offset in the presented in the instruments
of recognised Statement of Statement of (including non- Cash
financial Financial Financial cash collateral) collateral
Financial liabilities - HSBC" Currency liabilities Position Position available for offset pledged Net amount
HSBC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN
SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF USD 51,298 - 51,298 (360) (50,938) -
HSBC BLOOMBERG EUR SUSTAINABLE
CORPORATE BOND UCITS ETF EUR 1,355 - 1,355 (600) (755) -
HSBC DEVELOPED WORLD SUSTAINABLE
EQUITY UCITS ETF uUsD 51,323 - 51,323 - (51,323) -
HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE
EQUITY UCITS ETF uUsD 48,915 - 48,915 - (48,915) -
HSBC EURO STOXX 50 UCITS ETF EUR 374,440 - 374,440 - (374,440) -
HSBC EUROPE EX UK SUSTAINABLE
EQUITY UCITS ETF* EUR 4,070 - 4,070 - (4,070) -
HSBC EUROPE SUSTAINABLE EQUITY
UCITS ETF EUR 24,049 - 24,049 - (24,049) -
HSBC FTSE 100 UCITS ETF GBP 6,240 - 6,240 - (6,240) -

*The sub-fund was launched on 21 April 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 22 April 2022.
Alncludes Futures Contracts.
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5. Derivative Contracts (continued)

Offsetting assets and liabilities (continued)

Gross amounts not offset in the Statement of

31 December 2022 Financial Position
Gross
amounts of
recognised Net amounts of
financial financial Financial
assets offset liabilities instruments
Gross amounts inthe presented in the (including non-
of recognised  Statement of Statement of cash collateral)
financial Financial Financial available for ~ Cash collateral
Financial liabilities - HSBC" Currency liabilities Position Position offset pledged Net amount
HSBC FTSE 250 UCITS ETF GBP 4,967 - 4,967 - (4,967) -
HSBC FTSE EPRA/NAREIT DEVELOPED
UCITS ETF uUsD 188,709 - 188,709 - (188,709) -
HSBC HANG SENG TECH UCITS ETF HKD 72,500 - 72,500 - (72,500) -
HSBC JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS
ETF uUsD 33,022 - 33,022 - (33,022) -
HSBC MSCI AC FAR EAST EX JAPAN UCITS
ETF uUsD 45,807 - 45,807 - (45,807) -
HSBC MSCI AC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN
CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF* usD 2,719 - 2,719 - (2,719) -
HSBC MSCI CANADA UCITS ETF uUsD 11,340 - 11,340 - (11,340) -
HSBC MSCI CHINA UCITS ETF uUsD 101,675 - 101,675 - (101,675) -
HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS CLIMATE
PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF** UsD 1,549 - 1,549 - (1,549) -

*The sub-fund was launched on 11 April 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 12 April 2022.
**The sub-fund was launched on 7 April 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 8 April 2022.
Alncludes Futures Contracts.
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5. Derivative Contracts (continued)

Offsetting assets and liabilities (continued)

Gross amounts not offset in the Statement of

31 December 2022 Financial Position
Gross
amounts of
recoghised Net amounts of
financial financial Financial
assets offset liabilities instruments
Gross amounts inthe presented in the (including non-
of recognised  Statement of Statement of cash collateral)
financial Financial Financial available for Cash collateral
Financial liabilities - HSBC" Currency liabilities Position Position offset pledged Net amount
HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS SMALL
CAP ESG UCITS ETF* usD 2,239 - 2,239 - (2,239) -
HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF uUsD 160,967 - 160,967 - (160,967) -
HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS VALUE
ESG UCITS ETF** uUsD 8,710 - 8,710 - (8,710) -
HSBC MSCI EUROPE CLIMATE PARIS
ALIGNED UCITS ETF EUR 8,627 - 8,627 - (8,627) -
HSBC MSCI EUROPE UCITS ETF EUR 69,171 - 69,171 - (69,171) -
HSBC MSCI INDONESIA UCITS ETF uUsD 3,695 - 3,695 - (3,695) -
HSBC MSCI JAPAN CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED
UCITS ETF uUsD 2,844 - 2,844 - (2,844) -
HSBC MSCI JAPAN UCITS ETF uUsD 75,843 - 75,843 - (75,843) -
HSBC MSCI KOREA CAPPED UCITS ETF uUsD 22,055 - 22,055 - (22,055) -

*The sub-fund was launched on 3 November 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 4 November 2022.
**The sub-fund was launched on 6 December 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 8 December 2022.
Alncludes Futures Contracts.
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5. Derivative Contracts (continued)

Offsetting assets and liabilities (continued)

31 December 2022

Financial liabilities - HSBC*

HSBC MSCI EM LATIN AMERICA UCITS ETF
HSBC MSCI MEXICO CAPPED UCITS ETF
HSBC MSCI PACIFIC ex JAPAN UCITS ETF
HSBC MSCI TAIWAN CAPPED UCITS ETF
HSBC MSCI USA UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI USA CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED
UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI WORLD CLIMATE PARIS
ALIGNED UCITS ETF

HSBC MSCI WORLD SMALL CAP ESG UCITS
ETF*

HSBC MSCI WORLD UCITS ETF

Currency
usb
uUsD
uUsD
uUsD
uUsD

usD
usD

usb
usb

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial
liabilities

3,540

11,595

62,041

30

10,850

9,093
61,404

10,026
3,474,085

Gross
amounts of
recoghised

financial
assets offset
in the
Statement of
Financial
Position

*The sub-fund was launched on 20 October 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 21 October 2022.

Alncludes Futures Contracts.
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Net amounts of
financial
liabilities

presented in the
Statement of
Financial
Position

3,540

11,595

62,041

30

10,850

9,093
61,404

10,026
3,474,085

Gross amounts not offset in the Statement of

Financial
instruments
(including non-
cash collateral)
available for
offset

(3,540)

(21)

Financial Position

Cash collateral
pledged
(11,595)
(62,020)

(30)
(10,850)

(9,093)
(61,404)

(10,026)
(3,474,085)

Net amount
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5.

Derivative Contracts (continued)

Offsetting assets and liabilities (continued)

31 December 2022

Financial liabilities - HSBC" Currency
HSBC MSCI WORLD VALUE ESG UCITS ETF* usb
HSBC MULTI FACTOR WORLDWIDE EQUITY

UCITS ETF uSsSbD
HSBC NASDAQ GLOBAL SEMICONDUCTOR

UCITS ETF** UuSbD
HSBC S&P 500 UCITS ETF usb
HSBC UK SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF GBP
HSBC USA SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF USsD
HSBC WORLD ESG BIODIVERSITY

SCREENED EQUITY UCITS ETF*** uSbD

Total (in USD)

Gross amounts not offset in the Statement of

Financial Position

Gross
amounts of
recoghised Net amounts of
financial financial Financial
assets offset liabilities instruments
Gross amounts inthe presented in the (including non-
of recognised  Statement of Statement of cash collateral)
financial Financial Financial available for Cash collateral
liabilities Position Position offset pledged Net amount
21,031 - 21,031 - (21,031) -
280,086 - 280,086 - (280,086) -
3,268 - 3,268 - (3,268) -
1,353,213 - 1,353,213 - (1,353,213) -
191 - 191 - (191) -
188,495 - 188,495 - (188,495) -
1,634 - 1,634 - (1,634) -
6,840,208 - 6,840,208 (4,561) 6,835,647

*The sub-fund was launched on 18 October 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 19 October 2022.

**The sub-fund was launched on 25 January 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 26 January 2022.

***The sub-fund was launched on 10 August 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 11 August 2022.

Alncludes Futures Contracts.
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5. Derivative Contracts (continued)

Offsetting assets and liabilities (continued)

31 December 2022

Financial assets - HSBC" Currency
HSBC MSCI WORLD UCITS ETF uUsD
Total (in USD)

Financial liabilities - HSBC* Currency
HSBC MSCI WORLD UCITS ETF uUsD

Total (in USD)

AIncludes Forwards Contracts.

Gross amounts not offset in the Statement of

Financial Position

Gross
amounts of
recoghised Net amounts of
financial financial Financial
assets offset liabilities instruments
inthe presented in the (including non-
Gross amounts  Statement of Statement of cash collateral)
of recognised Financial Financial available for Cash collateral
financial assets Position Position offset received Net amount
5,571 - 5,571 (803) - 4,768
5,571 - 5,571 (803) - 4,768
Gross
amounts of
recognised Net amounts of
financial financial Financial
assets offset liabilities instruments
Gross amounts inthe presented in the (including non-
of recognised  Statement of Statement of cash collateral)
financial Financial Financial available for Cash collateral
liabilities Position Position offset pledged Net amount
803 - 803 (803) - -
803 - 803 (803) - -
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5. Derivative Contracts (continued)

Offsetting assets and liabilities (continued)

Gross amounts not offset in the Statement of

31 December 2021 Financial Position
Gross
amounts
of recognised
financial Net amounts of Financial
liabilities  financial assets instruments
Gross amounts  offsetinthe presented in the (including non-
of recognised Statement of Statement of cash collateral)
financial Financial Financial available for Cash collateral
Financial assets - HSBC" Currency assets Position Position offset received Net amount
HSBC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN SUSTAINABLE
EQUITY UCITS ETF uUsD 4,192 - 4,192 - - 4,192
HSBC DEVELOPED WORLD SUSTAINABLE
EQUITY UCITS ETF uUsD 8,730 - 8,730 - - 8,730
HSBC EURO STOXX 50 UCITS ETF EUR 137,455 - 137,455 - - 137,455
HSBC EUROPE SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS
ETF EUR 23,938 - 23,938 - - 23,938
HSBC FTSE 100 UCITS ETF GBP 84,300 - 84,300 - - 84,300
HSBC FTSE 250 UCITS ETF GBP 15,682 - 15,682 - - 15,682
HSBC FTSE EPRA/NAREIT DEVELOPED
UCITS ETF uUsD 95,525 - 95,525 - - 95,525
HSBC HANG SENG TECH UCITS ETF HKD 43,400 - 43,400 - - 43,400
HSBC JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS
ETF UsD 10,497 - 10,497 - - 10,497
HSBC MSCI AC FAR EAST EX JAPAN UCITS
ETF uUsD 36,662 - 36,662 - - 36,662
HSBC MSCI CANADA UCITS ETF USsD 77,486 - 77,486 - - 77,486
HSBC MSCI EM FAR EAST UCITS ETF uUsD 2,370 - 2,370 - - 2,370

Alncludes Futures Contracts.
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5. Derivative Contracts (continued)

Offsetting assets and liabilities (continued)

Gross amounts not offset in the Statement of

31 December 2021 Financial Position
Gross
amounts
of recognised
financial Net amounts of Financial
liabilities  financial assets instruments
Gross amounts  offsetinthe presented in the (including non-
of recognised Statement of Statement of cash collateral)
financial Financial Financial available for Cash collateral
Financial assets - HSBC" Currency assets Position Position offset received Net amount
HSBC MSCI EM LATIN AMERICA UCITS ETF uUsD 5,314 - 5,314 - - 5,314
HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF uUsD 425 - 425 (425) - -
HSBC MSCI EUROPE CLIMATE PARIS
ALIGNED UCITS ETF* EUR 4,188 - 4,188 - - 4,188
HSBC MSCI EUROPE UCITS ETF EUR 40,330 - 40,330 - - 40,330
HSBC MSCI JAPAN UCITS ETF uUsD 41,776 - 41,776 - - 41,776
HSBC MSCI MALAYSIA UCITS ETF uUsD 984 - 984 - - 984
HSBC MSCI MEXICO CAPPED UCITS ETF uUsD 5,511 - 5,511 - - 5,511
HSBC MSCI PACIFIC EX JAPAN UCITS ETF USsD 10,425 - 10,425 - - 10,425
HSBC MSCI RUSSIA CAPPED UCITS ETF** uUsD 38,570 - 38,570 - - 38,570
HSBC MSCI TAIWAN CAPPED UCITS ETF UsD 2,040 - 2,040 - - 2,040

*The sub-fund was launched on 5 August 2021 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 6 August 2021.
**The sub-fund was temporarily suspended from trading from 2 March 2022, following Russia’s invasion of Ukraine. The sub-fund was closed on 24 March 2023 and was delisted from London
Stock Exchange on 29 March 2023.

Alncludes Futures Contracts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

5. Derivative Contracts (continued)

Offsetting assets and liabilities (continued)

Gross amounts not offset in the Statement of

31 December 2021 Financial Position

Gross amounts
of recognised

offset in the
Statement of

presented in the
Statement of

Gross

amounts

of recognised
financial Net amounts of Financial
liabilities  financial assets instruments

(including non-
cash collateral)

financial Financial Financial available for Cash collateral
Financial assets - HSBC" Currency assets Position Position offset received Net amount
HSBC MSCI TURKEY UCITS ETF uSbD 224 - 224 - - 224
HSBC MSCI USA CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED
UCITS ETF* USsD 1,119 - 1,119 - - 1,119
HSBC MSCI USA UCITS ETF uSbD 5,977 - 5,977 - - 5,977
HSBC MSCI WORLD CLIMATE PARIS
ALIGNED UCITS ETF** USD 14,256 - 14,256 - - 14,256
HSBC MSCI WORLD UCITS ETF uSbD 2,095,200 - 2,095,200 - - 2,095,200
HSBC MULTI FACTOR WORLDWIDE EQUITY
UCITS ETF uSsSbD 582,216 - 582,216 - - 582,216
HSBC S&P 500 UCITS ETF usb 315,553 - 315,553 - - 315,553
HSBC UK SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF GBP 1,515 - 1,515 - - 1,515
HSBC USA SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF uSsD 16,755 - 16,755 - - 16,755
Total (in USD) 3,749,008 - 3,749,008 (425) - 3,748,583

*The sub-fund was launched on 3 August 2021 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 4 August 2021.
**The sub-fund was launched on 7 July 2021 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 8 July 2021.
Alncludes Futures Contracts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

5. Derivative Contracts (continued)

Offsetting assets and liabilities (continued)

Gross amounts not offset in the Statement of

31 December 2021 Financial Position
Gross
amounts of
recognised Net amounts of
financial financial Financial
assets offset liabilities instruments
Gross amounts in the presented in the (including non-
of recognised  Statement of Statement of cash collateral)
financial Financial Financial available for ~ Cash collateral
Financial liabilities - HSBC" Currency liabilities Position Position offset pledged Net amount
HSBC BLOOMBERG EUR SUSTAINABLE
CORPORATE BOND UCITS ETF* EUR 10 - 10 - (10) -
HSBC BLOOMBERG USD SUSTAINABLE
CORPORATE BOND UCITS ETF** uUsD 31 - 31 - (31) -
HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE
EQUITY UCITS ETF uUsD 8,359 - 8,359 - (8,359) -
HSBC MSCI CHINA A UCITS ETF uUsD 16,896 - 16,896 - (16,896) -
HSBC MSCI CHINA UCITS ETF uUsD 52,980 - 52,980 - (52,980) -
HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF uUsD 115,221 - 115,221 (425) (114,796) -
HSBC MSCI INDONESIA UCITS ETF UsD 484 - 484 - (484) -
HSBC MSCI KOREA CAPPED UCITS ETF UsD 1,560 - 1,560 - (1,560) -
Total (in USD) 195,542 - 195,542 (425) (195,117) -

*The sub-fund was launched on 16 November 2021 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 17 November 2021.
**The sub-fund was launched on 18 November 2021 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 19 November 2021.

Alncludes Futures Contracts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

5. Derivative Contracts (continued)

Offsetting assets and liabilities (continued)

Gross amounts not offset in the Statement of

31 December 2021 Financial Position
Gross
amounts of
recognised Net amounts of
financial financial Financial
assets offset liabilities instruments
Gross amounts in the presented in the (including non-
of recognised  Statement of Statement of cash collateral)
financial Financial Financial available for ~ Cash collateral
Financial liabilities - Goldman Sachs” Currency liabilities Position Position offset pledged Net amount
HSBC MSCI CANADA UCITS ETF uUsD 2,295,186 - 2,295,186 - - 2,295,186
Total (in USD) 2,295,186 - 2,295,186 - - 2,295,186

AIncludes Contracts for difference.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

5. Derivative Contracts (continued)
Calculation of Global Exposure

Global exposure is a measure designed to limit either the incremental exposure and leverage
generated by the Company through the use of FDI (including embedded derivatives) or the market risk
of the sub-funds' portfolio.

In calculating global exposure, the Company adopts a commitment approach in managing risks. The
commitment approach will be applied to all positions in FDI, whether used as part of the sub-funds’
general investment policy, for purposes of risk reduction or for the purpose of efficient portfolio
management.

6. Net asset value

NAV Total
Per Share NAV
Functional 31 December 31 December
Share Class Currency 2022 2022
HSBC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY
UCITS ETF USD(ACC) usD 14.46 391,670,855
HSBC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY
UCITS ETF USD(DIST)* USsD 14.50 5,457,707
HSBC BLOOMBERG EUR SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE
BOND UCITS ETF EUR(ACC) EUR 9.81 34,682,163
HSBC BLOOMBERG GLOBAL SUSTAINABLE
AGGREGATE 1-3 YEAR BOND UCITS ETF USD(ACC)** USsD 9.98 79,982,775
HSBC BLOOMBERG USD SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE
BOND UCITS ETF USD(ACC) UsD 11.39 54,065,383
HSBC DEVELOPED WORLD SUSTAINABLE EQUITY
UCITS ETF USD(ACC) usD 17.54 125,846,789
HSBC DEVELOPED WORLD SUSTAINABLE EQUITY
UCITS ETF USD(DIST)*** UsD 17.46 449,894
HSBC ECONOMIC SCALE WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS
ETF USD(DIST)**** UsD - -
HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS
ETF USD(ACC) UsD 12.64 190,154,097
HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS
ETF USD(DIST)***** usD 12.77 18,482,228
HSBC EURO STOXX 50 UCITS ETF EUR(ACC)****x EUR 43.00 2,965,948
HSBC EURO STOXX 50 UCITS ETF EUR(DIST) EUR 39.84 377,928,590
HSBC EUROPE EX UK SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF
EUR(DIST)? EUR 12.36 7,664,161
HSBC EUROPE SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF
EUR(ACC) EUR 12.49 57,226,800
HSBC EUROPE SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF
EUR(DIST)* EUR 12.46 728,592
HSBC FTSE 100 UCITS ETF GBP(DIST) GBP 74.23 486,192,039

*The share class was launched on 6 July 2022.

**The share class was launched on 13 January 2022.

***The share class was launched on 27 July 2022.

****The sub-fund was fully redeemed on 18 September 2020 and terminated on 21 September 2020.
*****The share class was launched on 28 June 2022.

AThe share class was launched on 21 April 2022.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

6. Net asset value (continued)

Share Class

HSBC FTSE 250 UCITS ETF GBP(DIST)

HSBC FTSE EPRA/NAREIT DEVELOPED UCITS ETF
USD(ACC)*

HSBC FTSE EPRA/NAREIT DEVELOPED UCITS ETF
USD(DIST)

HSBC HANG SENG TECH UCITS ETF HKD(ACC)

HSBC JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF
USD(ACC)

HSBC JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF
USD(DIST)**

HSBC MSCI AC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN CLIMATE PARIS
ALIGNED UCITS ETF USD(ACC)***

HSBC MSCI AC FAR EAST EX JAPAN UCITS ETF
USD(ACC)

HSBC MSCI AC FAR EAST EX JAPAN UCITS ETF
USD(DIST)***

HSBC MSCI BRAZIL UCITS ETF USD(DIST)

HSBC MSCI CANADA UCITS ETF USD(DIST)

HSBC MSCI CHINA A UCITS ETF USD(ACC)****

HSBC MSCI CHINA A UCITS ETF USD(DIST)

HSBC MSCI CHINA UCITS ETF USD(ACC)****

HSBC MSCI CHINA UCITS ETF USD(DIST)

HSBC MSCI EM FAR EAST UCITS ETF USD(DIST)*****
HSBC MSCI EM LATIN AMERICA UCITS ETF USD(DIST)

HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS CLIMATE PARIS
ALIGNED UCITS ETF USD(ACC)?

HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS SMALL CAP ESG
UCITS ETF USD(ACC)M

HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF
USD(ACC)™A

*The share class was launched on 20 July 2022.
**The share class was launched on 6 July 2022.
***The share class was launched on 11 April 2022.
****The share class was launched on 13 July 2022.

Functional
Currency
GBP

usD

usD
HKD

usD
usD
usD
usD

usD
usbD
usbD
usD
usD
usbD
usD
usD
usbD

usD
usD

usb

NAV

Per Share

31 December
2022

17.75

22.49

20.25
44.42

13.24

13.29

14.61

43.62

43.39
15.04
19.76
10.22
10.57

6.69

6.48

21.28

12.08

17.09

9.72

*eexxThe sub-fund was closed on 6 July 2022 and delisted from London Stock Exchange on 11 July 2022.

AThe share class was launched on 7 April 2022.
MThe share class was launched on 3 November 2022.
AMAThe share class was launched on 28 June 2022.
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Total
NAV
31 December
2022

46,867,003
4,058,753

599,355,591
2,593,763,536

153,317,747
5,574,830
20,747,380
396,538,028

2,577,618
23,568,257
30,625,342

545,520
58,639,619
37,155,133

746,745,991

20,743,459
20,536,976
20,508,332

69,643,449



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

6. Net asset value (continued)

Share Class
HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF USD(DIST)

HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS VALUE ESG UCITS
ETF USD(ACC)*

HSBC MSCI EUROPE CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS
ETF EUR(ACC)

HSBC MSCI EUROPE ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF
EUR(ACC)*

HSBC MSCI EUROPE UCITS ETF EUR(ACC)***
HSBC MSCI EUROPE UCITS ETF EUR(DIST)
HSBC MSCI INDONESIA UCITS ETF USD(DIST)

HSBC MSCI JAPAN CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF
USD(ACC)

HSBC MSCI JAPAN UCITS ETF USD(ACC)****

HSBC MSCI JAPAN UCITS ETF USD(DIST)

HSBC MSCI KOREA CAPPED UCITS ETF USD(DIST)
HSBC MSCI MALAYSIA UCITS ETF USD(DIST)*****
HSBC MSCI MEXICO CAPPED UCITS ETF USD(DIST)
HSBC MSCI PACIFIC EX JAPAN UCITS ETF USD(ACC)***
HSBC MSCI PACIFIC EX JAPAN UCITS ETF USD(DIST)
HSBC MSCI RUSSIA CAPPED UCITS ETF USD(DIST)*
HSBC MSCI SOUTH AFRICA CAPPED UCITS ETF
USD(DIST)™

HSBC MSCI TAIWAN CAPPED UCITS ETF USD(DIST)
HSBC MSCI TURKEY UCITS ETF USD(DIST)

HSBC MSCI USA CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF
USD(ACC)

*The share class was launched on 7 December 2022.
**The share class was launched on 5 December 2022.
***The share class was launched on 13 July 2022.
****The share class was launched on 20 July 2022.

Functional
Currency

usD
usD
EUR

EUR
EUR
EUR
usD

usD
usD
usbD
usbD
usD
usD
usbD
usD
usD

usbD
usD
usD

usb

NAV

Per Share

31 December
2022

9.62

10.86

17.96

19.70
14.96
14.55
78.38

12.67
33.05
31.89
45.23
37.23
14.21
13.35

51.54
2.84

26.51

Total
NAV
31 December
2022

1,565,976,267
38,014,658
12,659,482

9,138,715
361,138
119,681,287
102,485,486

11,211,749
1,088,114
195,047,305
47,492,715
13,031,141
518,026
354,610,632

23,192,904
14,746,270

23,318,635

*eexxThis sub-fund was closed on 7 December 2022 and was delisted from London Stock Exchange on 12 December 2022.
"The sub-fund was temporarily suspended from trading from 2 March 2022, following Russia’s invasion of Ukraine. The sub-
fund was closed on 24 March 2023 and was delisted from London Stock Exchange on 29 March 2023.
MThe sub-fund was closed on 21 April 2022 and delisted from London Stock Exchange on 26 April 2022.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

6. Net asset value (continued)

Share Class

HSBC MSCI USA CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF
USD(DIST)*

HSBC MSCI USA ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF USD(ACC)**
HSBC MSCI USA UCITS ETF USD(DIST)

HSBC MSCI WORLD CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS
ETF USD(ACC)

HSBC MSCI WORLD ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF
USD(ACC)***

HSBC MSCI WORLD SMALL CAP ESG UCITS ETF
USD(ACC)****

HSBC MSCI WORLD UCITS ETF EUR HEDGED(ACC)*****
HSBC MSCI WORLD UCITS ETF USD(ACC)"

HSBC MSCI WORLD UCITS ETF USD(DIST)

HSBC MSCI WORLD VALUE ESG UCITS ETF USD(ACC)™
HSBC MULTI FACTOR WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS ETF
USD(ACC)MA

HSBC MULTI FACTOR WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS ETF
USD(DIST)

HSBC NASDAQ GLOBAL SEMICONDUCTOR UCITS ETF
USD(ACC)M

HSBC S&P 500 UCITS ETF USD(ACC)MAMm

HSBC S&P 500 UCITS ETF USD(DIST)

HSBC UK SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF GBP(ACC)
HSBC UK SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF
GBP(DIST)™A

HSBC USA SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF USD(ACC)
HSBC USA SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF
USD(DIST)*

HSBC WORLD ESG BIODIVERSITY SCREENED EQUITY
UCITS ETF USD(ACC)*

*The share class was launched on 20 July 2022.

**The share class was launched on 17 November 2022.
***The share class was launched on 30 November 2022.
****The share class was launched on 20 October 2022.
*****The share class was launched on 8 December 2022.
The share class was launched on 28 June 2022.

MThe share class was launched on 18 October 2022.
MAThe share class was launched on 27 July 2022.
MMThe share class was launched on 25 January 2022.
AMAAThe share class was launched on 21 June 2022.
*"The share class was launched on 6 July 2022.

*\The share class was launched on 11 August 2022.
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Functional
Currency

usD
usD
usD

usD
usD

usD
EUR
usD
usD
usD

usD
usD

usD
usD
usD
GBP

GBP
usb

usD

usD

NAV

Per Share

31 December
2022

26.48
22.19
36.89

20.13

18.43

16.74
22.62
23.98
26.10
15.15

22.72

22.13

7.51
35.73
38.81
15.95

15.79
21.06

21.01

28.55

Total
NAV
31 December
2022

1,866,412
11,984,006
33,205,341

162,262,510
14,815,638

59,834,051
791,551
5,685,267
4,574,968,594
138,807,671

223,546
1,058,279,324

13,938,695
292,146
4,398,823,398
15,497,475

997,218
655,897,449

326,234

7,623,818



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

6. Net asset value (continued)

Share Class

HSBC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY
UCITS ETF USD(ACC)

HSBC BLOOMBERG EUR SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE
BOND UCITS ETF EUR(ACC)*

HSBC BLOOMBERG USD SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE
BOND UCITS ETF USD(ACC)**

HSBC DEVELOPED WORLD SUSTAINABLE EQUITY
UCITS ETF USD(ACC)

HSBC ECONOMIC SCALE WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS
ETF USD(DIST)***

HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS
ETF USD(ACC)

HSBC EURO STOXX 50 UCITS ETF EUR(DIST)

HSBC EUROPE SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF
EUR(ACC)

HSBC FTSE 100 UCITS ETF GBP(DIST)
HSBC FTSE 250 UCITS ETF GBP(DIST)

HSBC FTSE EPRA/NAREIT DEVELOPED UCITS ETF
USD(DIST)

HSBC HANG SENG TECH UCITS ETF HKD(ACC)

HSBC JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF
USD(ACC)

HSBC MSCI AC FAR EAST EX JAPAN UCITS ETF
USD(ACC)

HSBC MSCI BRAZIL UCITS ETF USD(DIST)

HSBC MSCI CANADA UCITS ETF USD(DIST)

HSBC MSCI CHINA A UCITS ETF USD(DIST)

HSBC MSCI CHINA UCITS ETF USD(DIST)

HSBC MSCI EM FAR EAST UCITS ETF USD(DIST)

HSBC MSCI EM LATIN AMERICA UCITS ETF USD(DIST)
HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF USD(DIST)

HSBC MSCI EUROPE CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS
ETF EUR(ACC)***

HSBC MSCI EUROPE UCITS ETF EUR(DIST)
HSBC MSCI INDONESIA UCITS ETF USD(DIST)

HSBC MSCI JAPAN CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF
USD(ACC)****

HSBC MSCI JAPAN UCITS ETF USD(DIST)

HSBC MSCI KOREA CAPPED UCITS ETF USD(DIST)
HSBC MSCI MALAYSIA UCITS ETF USD(DIST)

HSBC MSCI MEXICO CAPPED UCITS ETF USD(DIST)
HSBC MSCI PACIFIC EX JAPAN UCITS ETF USD(DIST)

*The share class was launched on 16 November 2021.
**The share class was launched on 18 November 2021.
***The share class was launched on 5 August 2021.
****The share class was launched on 10 November 2021.

Functional
Currency

usb
EUR
usD
usb
usD

usD
EUR

EUR
GBP
GBP

usD
HKD

usD

usD
usD
usD
usb
usD
usb
usD
usb

EUR
EUR
usD

usb
usD
usb
usb
usD
usb

NAV

Per Share

31 December
2021

17.22

11.38

13.53

21.18

15.46
45.10

14.13
73.60
22.16

27.91
60.84

15.62

55.81
14.85
23.16
14.50

8.45
56.07
21.45
12.40

20.68
16.51
77.68

16.61
39.05
64.39
30.15
39.18
14.77

**xxThe sub-fund was redeemed on 18 September 2020 and terminated on 21 September 2020.
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Total
NAV
31 December 2021

89,115,857
34,647,661
49,400,999

111,176,032

133,365,925
469,532,937

69,646,851
376,086,072
58,490,604

256,746,160
1,839,661,073

128,874,978

521,833,884
44,058,804
851,308,193
59,461,513
581,344,292
26,912,021
20,909,768
1,233,317,598

14,582,311
127,957,655
62,531,369

9,801,047
185,560,498
76,628,230
3,934,754
12,732,485
229,158,343



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

6. Net asset value (continued)

NAV
Per Share Total

Functional 31 December NAV
Share Class Currency 2021 31 December 2021
HSBC MSCI RUSSIA CAPPED UCITS ETF USD(DIST)* usb 13.23 106,826,419
HSBC MSCI SOUTH AFRICA CAPPED UCITS ETF
USD(DIST) usbD 46.55 5,819,041
HSBC MSCI TAIWAN CAPPED UCITS ETF USD(DIST) uUsD 74.78 48,605,946
HSBC MSCI TURKEY UCITS ETF USD(DIST) usb 1.56 10,475,887
HSBC MSCI USA CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF
USD(ACC)** usbD 34.67 16,467,713
HSBC MSCI USA UCITS ETF USD(DIST) uUsD 46.50 41,847,144
HSBC MSCI WORLD CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS
ETF USD(ACC)*** usD 25.67 146,812,548
HSBC MSCI WORLD UCITS ETF USD(DIST) usD 32.42 4,634,565,455
HSBC MULTI FACTOR WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS ETF
USD(DIST) uUsD 274 1,546,553,745
HSBC S&P 500 UCITS ETF USD(DIST) uUsD 48.21 6,159,042,368
HSBC UK SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF GBP(ACC) GBP 17.07 5,888,399
HSBC USA SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF USD(ACC) uUsD 25.47 546,934,618

*The sub-fund was temporarily suspended from trading from 2 March 2022, following Russia’s invasion of Ukraine. The sub-
fund was closed on 24 March 2023 and was delisted from London Stock Exchange on 29 March 2023.

**The share class was launched on 3 August 2021.

***The share class was launched on 7 July 2021.

NAV Total
Per Share NAV
Functional 31 December 31 December
Share Class Currency 2020 2020
HSBC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY
UCITS ETF USD(ACC)* uUsD 17.26 35,728,244
HSBC DEVELOPED WORLD SUSTAINABLE EQUITY
UCITS ETF USD(ACC)** usD 17.35 42,518,915
HSBC ECONOMIC SCALE WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS
ETF USD(DIST)*** uUsD - -
HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS
ETF USD(ACC)***=* usD 15.38 57,669,102
HSBC EURO STOXX 50 UCITS ETF EUR(ACC) EUR 37.14 163,773,833
HSBC EUROPE SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF
EUR(ACC)****x EUR 11.89 17,233,695
HSBC FTSE 100 UCITS ETF GBP(DIST) GBP 64.41 361,957,203
HSBC FTSE 250 UCITS ETF GBP(DIST) GBP 19.45 48,227,224
HSBC FTSE EPRA/NAREIT DEVELOPED UCITS ETF
USD(ACC) UsD 22.68 158,764,971

*The share class was launched on 20 August 2020.

**The share class was launched on 9 July 2020.

***The sub-fund was redeemed on 18 September 2020 and terminated on 21 September 2020.
****The share class was launched on 27 August 2020

**+**The share class was launched on 5 June 2020.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

6. Net asset value (continued)

Share Class
HSBC HANG SENG TECH UCITS ETF HKD(ACC)*

HSBC JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF
USD(ACC)**

HSBC MSCI AC FAR EAST EX JAPAN UCITS ETF
USD(ACC)

HSBC MSCI BRAZIL UCITS ETF USD(DIST)

HSBC MSCI CANADA UCITS ETF USD(DIST)

HSBC MSCI CHINA A UCITS ETF USD(DIST)

HSBC MSCI CHINA UCITS ETF USD(ACC)

HSBC MSCI EM FAR EAST UCITS ETF USD(DIST)
HSBC MSCI EM LATIN AMERICA UCITS ETF USD(DIST)
HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF USD(ACC)
HSBC MSCI EUROPE UCITS ETF EUR(ACC)

HSBC MSCI INDONESIA UCITS ETF USD(DIST)

HSBC MSCI JAPAN UCITS ETF USD(ACC)

HSBC MSCI KOREA CAPPED UCITS ETF USD(DIST)
HSBC MSCI MALAYSIA UCITS ETF USD(DIST)

HSBC MSCI MEXICO CAPPED UCITS ETF USD(DIST)
HSBC MSCI PACIFIC EX JAPAN UCITS ETF USD(ACC)
HSBC MSCI RUSSIA CAPPED UCITS ETF USD(DIST)

HSBC MSCI SAUDI ARABIA 20/35 CAPPED UCITS ETF
USD(DIST)***

HSBC MSCI SOUTH AFRICA CAPPED UCITS ETF
USD(DIST)

HSBC MSCI TAIWAN CAPPED UCITS ETF USD(DIST)
HSBC MSCI TURKEY UCITS ETF USD(DIST)

HSBC MSCI USA UCITS ETF USD(DIST)

HSBC MSCI WORLD UCITS ETF USD(ACC)

HSBC MULTI FACTOR WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS ETF
USD(ACC)

HSBC S&P 500 UCITS ETF USD(ACC)

HSBC UK SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF
GBP(ACC)****

HSBC USA SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF
USD(ACC)*++**

*The share class was launched on 9 December 2020.
**The share class was launched on 5 June 2020.

Functional
Currency
HKD

usD

usb
usD
usb
usD
usb
usD
usD
usD
EUR
usD
usD
usD
usD
usD
usD
usD

usD

usD
usD
usD
usb
usD

usb
usD

GBP

usD

NAV

Per Share

31 December
2020

90.61

15.04

61.15
18.60
18.75
14.27
10.92
62.64
24.39
13.03
13.47
77.66
39.05
70.78
33.40
32.67
14.52
11.75

45.18
59.45

2.26
37.06
26.92

23.23
37.99

14.45

20.03

Total
NAV
31 December
2020

244,638,493
22,560,489

602,294,457
55,200,101
30,930,999
37,091,889
672,894,008
23,802,397
23,777,910
848,550,010
164,957,931
53,197,087
240,229,045
34,684,082
5,110,563
12,251,366
229,534,043

107,248,113

3,388,850
20,807,545
13,131,795
33,354,877

2,363,615,324

1,111,265,634
4,894,911,943

1,661,858

148,430,349

***The sub-fund was redeemed and terminated on 21 September 2020 and was revoked by the Central Bank on 8 December

2021.
****The share class was launched on 8 October 2020.
*****The share class was launched on 5 June 2020.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

7. Overdraft Facility

The Company has entered into the following overdraft facilities with HSBC Bank pilc:

Uncommitted overdraft

Limit % of
Sub-Funds USD NVAC/r*
HSBC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS
ETF 3,000,000 10%
HSBC BLOOMBERG EUR SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND
UCITS ETF 5,000,000 10%
HSBC BLOOMBERG GLOBAL SUSTAINABLE AGGREGATE 1-3
YEAR BOND UCITS ETF* 10,000,000 10%
HSBC BLOOMBERG USD SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE BOND
UCITS ETF 5,000,000 10%
HSBC DEVELOPED WORLD SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF 10,000,000 10%
HSBC EMERGING MARKET SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF 5,000,000 10%
HSBC EURO STOXX 50 UCITS ETF 12,000,000 10%
HSBC EUROPE EX UK SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF** 840,000 10%
HSBC EUROPE SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF 10,000,000 10%
HSBC FTSE 100 UCITS ETF 35,000,000 10%
HSBC FTSE 250 UCITS ETF 6,500,000 10%
HSBC FTSE EPRA/NAREIT DEVELOPED UCITS ETF 3,750,000 10%
HSBC HANG SENG TECH UCITS ETF 10,000,000 10%
HSBC JAPAN SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF 3,000,000 10%
HSBC MSCI AC ASIA PACIFIC EX JAPAN CLIMATE PARIS
ALIGNED UCITS ETF*** 1,660,000 10%
HSBC MSCI AC FAR EAST EX JAPAN UCITS ETF 12,500,000 10%
HSBC MSCI BRAZIL UCITS ETF 1,250,000 10%
HSBC MSCI CANADA UCITS ETF 5,000,000 10%
HSBC MSCI CHINA A UCITS ETF 5,000,000 10%
HSBC MSCI CHINA UCITS ETF 11,250,000 10%
HSBC MSCI EM FAR EAST UCITS ETF**** 500,000 10%
HSBC MSCI EM LATIN AMERICA UCITS ETF 1,000,000 10%
HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED
UCITS ETF***** 2,200,000 10%
HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS SMALL CAP ESG UCITS
ETF” 10,000,000 10%
HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF 12,500,000 10%
HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS VALUE ESG UCITS ETF™ 10,000,000 10%
HSBC MSCI EUROPE CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF 5,000,000 10%
HSBC MSCI EUROPE ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF™ N/A N/A
HSBC MSCI EUROPE UCITS ETF 5,000,000 10%
HSBC MSCI INDONESIA UCITS ETF 1,250,000 10%

*The sub-fund was launched on 13 January 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 14 January 2022.

**The sub-fund was launched on 21 April 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 22 April 2022.

***The sub-fund was launched on 11 April 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 12 April 2022.

****The sub-fund was closed on 6 July 2022 and delisted from London Stock Exchange on 11 July 2022.

**++*The sub-fund was launched on 7 April 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 8 April 2022.

AThe sub-fund was launched on 3 November 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 4 November 2022.
MThe sub-fund was launched on 6 December 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 8 December 2022.
MAThe sub-fund was launched on 5 December 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 6 December 2022.
ANet value of Assets under Custody (“NVAC”) represents 10% of the NVAC with the Depositary. To the extent that
the facility is drawn down, the assets and cash balances held by the Depositary are held as collateral for the overdraft
facilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

7. Overdraft Facility (continued)

Uncommitted overdraft

Limit % of
Sub-Funds USD  NVACH*
HSBC MSCI JAPAN CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF 800,000 10%
HSBC MSCI JAPAN UCITS ETF 3,750,000 10%
HSBC MSCI KOREA CAPPED UCITS ETF 2,000,000 10%
HSBC MSCI MALAYSIA UCITS ETFMM 500,000 10%
HSBC MSCI MEXICO CAPPED UCITS ETF 1,000,000 10%
HSBC MSCI PACIFIC EX JAPAN UCITS ETF 2,500,000 10%
HSBC MSCI RUSSIA CAPPED UCITS ETF* 6,000,000 10%
HSBC MSCI SOUTH AFRICA CAPPED UCITS ETF** 500,000 10%
HSBC MSCI TAIWAN CAPPED UCITS ETF 1,500,000 10%
HSBC MSCI TURKEY UCITS ETF 1,000,000 10%
HSBC MSCI USA CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF 3,000,000 10%
HSBC MSCI USA ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF*** N/A N/A
HSBC MSCI USA UCITS ETF 3,500,000 10%
HSBC MSCI WORLD CLIMATE PARIS ALIGNED UCITS ETF 5,000,000 10%
HSBC MSCI WORLD ISLAMIC ESG UCITS ETF**** N/A N/A
HSBC MSCI WORLD SMALL CAP ESG UCITS ETF***** 10,000,000 10%
HSBC MSCI WORLD UCITS ETF 25,000,000 10%
HSBC MSCI WORLD VALUE ESG UCITS ETF” 10,000,000 10%
HSBC MULTI FACTOR WORLDWIDE EQUITY UCITS ETF 10,000,000 10%
HSBC NASDAQ GLOBAL SEMICONDUCTOR UCITS ETF™ 1,690,000 10%
HSBC S&P 500 UCITS ETF 30,000,000 10%
HSBC UK SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF 1,000,000 10%
HSBC USA SUSTAINABLE EQUITY UCITS ETF 5,700,000 10%
HSBC WORLD ESG BIODIVERSITY SCREENED EQUITY UCITS
ETF ™\ N/A N/A

*The sub-fund was temporarily suspended from trading from 2 March 2022, following Russia’s invasion of Ukraine. The
sub-fund was closed on 24 March 2023 and was delisted from London Stock Exchange on 29 March 2023.

**The sub-fund was closed on 21 April 2022 and delisted from London Stock Exchange on 26 April 2022.

***The sub-fund was launched on 17 November 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 18 November 2022.
****The sub-fund was launched on 30 November 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 1 December 2022.
*exxThe sub-fund was launched on 20 October 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 21 October 2022.
The sub-fund was launched on 18 October 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 19 October 2022.

MThe sub-fund was launched on 25 January 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 26 January 2022.
AMAThe sub-fund was launched on 10 August 2022 and listed on London Stock Exchange on 11 August 2022.

AMAN This sub-fund was closed on 7 December 2022 and was delisted from London Stock Exchange on 12 December
2022.

" NVAC represents 10% of the NVAC with the Depositary. To the extent that the facility is drawn down, the assets
and cash balances held by the Depositary are held as collateral for the overdraft facilities.

An overdraft fee is charged on the facility at the HSBC Bank plc’s base lending rate plus 2%, calculated
on a per annum basis. An annual fee of EUR 10,000 is payable per sub-fund. The overdraft fee on the
facility is paid out of TER. As at 31 December 2022, overdraft facility was drawn by HSBC MSCI EM
FAR EAST UCITS ETF and HSBC MSCI MALAYSIA UCITS ETF (31 December 2021: Nil).

For certain sub-funds, the agreements are not in place due to lead time in documentation. Until the
agreements are executed, the sub-funds rely on a ‘payment settlement limit’ that is in place to manage
the overdrafts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

8. Securities Lending
Securities lending is used by the sub-funds to generate additional income from the securities held by
the sub-funds. Further disclosures pertaining to securities lending are disclosed in Other Additional
Disclosures.
Securities lent by a sub-fund are not derecognised from the sub-fund’s balance sheet and securities
lent can be sold at any time. The sub-funds listed below engaged in securities lending as at 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2021.
Cash collateral and securities collateral for securities lending are mainly held by third parties (Tri-party
collateral agents) and by HSBC Bank plc and would not have any impact in the Statement of Financial
position of the sub-funds. Securities Lending Agent, HSBC Bank plc is the custodian of the collaterals.
The proportion of collateral held in the sub-funds is segregated in full and never pooled
The securities lending commission is allocated to the following parties:
75% of the gross revenue on securities lending is allocated to the relevant sub-fund.
10% of the gross revenue on securities lending is allocated to the Management Company.
15% of the gross revenue on securities lending is allocated to the Securities Lending Agent, HSBC
Bank plc.
Direct costs from securities lending include 15% of the gross revenue due to the Securities Lending
Agent which is USD 689,776 (31 December 2021: USD 456,349) and 10% of the gross revenue due
to the Management Company which is USD 459,851 (31 December 2021: USD 304,237) as shown in
the table below.
15% to the 10% to the Gross
As at 31 December 2022 75% to the Securities  Management Revenue
Company Lending Agent Company (100%)"
Sub-Funds usb usb usb usb
HSBC EURO STOXX 50 UCITS ETF 66,264 13,253 8,835 88,352
HSBC FTSE 100 UCITS ETF 51,322 10,264 6,843 68,429
HSBC FTSE 250 UCITS ETF 17,499 3,500 2,333 23,332
HSBC FTSE EPRA/NAREIT DEVELOPED UCITS
ETF 108,117 21,623 14,416 144,156
HSBC HANG SENG TECH UCITS ETF 285,600 57,120 38,080 380,800
HSBC MSCI AC FAR EAST EX JAPAN UCITS ETF 253,520 50,704 33,803 338,027
HSBC MSCI BRAZIL UCITS ETF 13,224 2,645 1,763 17,632
HSBC MSCI CANADA UCITS ETF 26,956 5,391 3,594 35,941
HSBC MSCI CHINA UCITS ETF 313,395 62,679 41,786 417,860
HSBC MSCI EM FAR EAST UCITS ETF* 1,923 385 256 2,564
HSBC MSCI EM LATIN AMERICA UCITS ETF 5,414 1,083 722 7,219
HSBC MSCI EMERGING MARKETS UCITS ETF 503,071 100,614 67,076 670,761
HSBC MSCI EUROPE UCITS ETF 30,022 6,004 4,003 40,029
HSBC MSCI JAPAN UCITS ETF 47,491 9,498 6,332 63,321
HSBC MSCI KOREA CAPPED UCITS ETF 47,212 9,442 6,295 62,949
HSBC MSCI MEXICO CAPPED UCITS ETF 286 57 38 381
HSBC MSCI PACIFIC ex JAPAN UCITS ETF 28,460 5,692 3,795 37,947
HSBC MSCI RUSSIA CAPPED UCITS ETF** 10,8